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EXPLANATORY NOTE

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes the resaftoperations of Antero Resources Corporation’s
(“Antero”) gathering and compression assets aratedloperations on a carve-out basis, the predeciess
accounting purposes of Antero Midstream Partnergthe “Partnership”) for periods prior to Novemiér
2014, when the Partnership completed the initiéllipwoffering (“IPQO”).

In connection with the completion of the IPO, Amteontributed its gathering and compression assetse
Partnership. The historical results of the predsoeoperations are not indicative of future resoftthe
Partnership.

References in this report to “Predecessor,” “wefir;” “us” or like terms, when referring to periopggor to
November 10, 2014, refer to Antero’s gathering eohpression assets, our predecessor for accounting
purposes. References to “the Partnership,” “weyr;” “us” or like terms, when referring to periodfier
November 10, 2014, refer to Antero Midstream Pasthé.

The Partnership’s common units are listed on the Merk Stock Exchange under the symbol “AM.”
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STAT EMENTS

Some of the inform ation in this Annual Report oorfh 10-K may contain forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements give oueatiexpectations, contain projections of resuits o
operations or of financial condition, or forecast$uture events. Words such as “may,” “assumegtétast,”
“position,” “predict,” “strategy,” “expect,” “inted,” “plan,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “mject,”
“budget,” “potential,” or “continue,” and similaxpressions are used to identify forward-lookingesteents.
They can be affected by assumptions used or by kriswinknown risks or uncertainties. Consequently,
forward-looking statements can be guaranteed. \ebaridering these forward-looking statements, ymukl
keep in mind the risk factors and other cautiorstiagements in this Annual Report on F orm 10-K.uatt
results may vary materially. You are cautionedtogilace undue reliance on any forward-lookingestegnts.
You should also understand that it is not possibleredict or identify all such factors and shontd consider
the following list to be a complete statement dpakential risks and uncertainties. Factors tlatid cause our
actual results to differ materially from the resudbntemplated by such forward-looking statemerdhude:

« Antero’s inability to meet its drilling and develment plan;

« business strategy;

« natural gas, natural gas liquids (“NGLs") and aitps;

- competition and government regulations;

- actions taken by third-party producers, operafmscessors and transporters;
« pending legal or environmental matters;

« costs of conducting our gathering and compressjiamnations;

« general economic conditions;

o credit markets;

» operating hazards, natural disasters, weatheretktilays, casualty losses and other matters
beyond our contro

« uncertainty regarding our future operating resultsj

« plans, objectives, expectations and intentionsainat in this report that are not historical.

We caution you that these forward-looking statemen¢ subject to all of the risks and uncertainties
most of which are difficult to predict and manyvdfich are beyond our control, incident to the getigeand
compression business. These risks include, buiatriémited to, commodity price volatility, inflain,
environmental risks, drilling and completion antletoperating risks, regulatory changes, the uaireyt
inherent in projecting future rates of productioash flow and access to capital, the timing of tmwaent
expenditures, and the other risks described uridisk“Factors” in this Annual Report on F orm 10-K .

Should one or more of the risks or uncertaintiescdbed in this report occur, or should underlying
assumptions prove incorrect, our actual resultspaugs could differ materially from those expressedny
forward-looking statements.

All forward-looking statements, expressed or imghlimcluded in this report are expressly qualified
their entirety by this cautionary statement. Thaatonary statement should also be consideredrinaxtion
with any subsequent written or oral forward-lookstgtements that we or persons acting on our baete|f
issue.

Except as otherwise required by applicable lawdigelaim any duty to update any forward-looking
statements, all of which are expressly qualifiedh®y/statements in this section, to reflect events
circumstances after the date of this Annual Repoi~ orm 10-K .
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

The following are abbreviations and definitionsceftain terms used in this document, which are
commonly used in our industry:

Bbl or barrel: One stock tank barrel, or 42 U.S. gallons ligudlvme, used in reference to oil, NGLs
or other liquid hydrocarbons.

Bbl/d: Bbl per day.

Bcfe: One billion cubic feet of natural gas equivaleithvone barrel of oil, condensate or NGLs
converted to six thousand cubic feet of natural gas

Bcfe/d: Bcfe per day.
Btu: British thermal units.
DOT: Department of Transportation.

dry gas: A natural gas containing insufficient quantitighgdrocarbons heavier than methane to
allow their commercial extraction or to requireithemoval in order to render the gas suitablefdiet use.

EPA: Environmental Protection Agency.

expansion capital expenditure€ash expenditures to construct new midstreamstifrature and
those expenditures incurred in order to extenditiedul lives of our assets, reduce costs, increasmues or
increase system throughput or capacity from cudeamls, including well connections that increasistng
system throughput.

FERC: Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

field: The general area encompassed by one or more gélsoreservoirs or pools that are located on a
single geologic feature, that are otherwise closgligted to the same geologic feature (either sirator
stratigraphic).

high pressure pipelinesPipelines gathering or transporting natural gas flas been dehydrated and
compressed to the pressure of the downstream pgsetir processing plants.

hydrocarbon: An organic compound containing only carbon andrbgdn.

low pressure pipelinesPipelines gathering natural gas at or near wealllrassure that has yet to be
compressed (other than by well pad gas lift congioesor dedicated well pad compressors) and detsdira

maintenance capital expenditure€ash expenditures (including expenditures forcthastruction or
development of new capital assets or the replacenmeprovement or expansion of existing capitaktss
made to maintain, over the long term, our operatiagacity or revenue.

MBbl: One thousand Bbls.

MBbl/d: One thousand Bbls per day.

Mcf: One thousand cubic feet of natural gas.

MMBtu: One million British thermal units.
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MMcf: One million cubic feet of natural gas.

MMcfe: One million cubic feet equivalent, determined gsinratio of six Mcf of natural gas to one
Bbls of crude oil, condensate or natural gas liguid

MMcf/d: One million cubic feet per day.
MMcfe/d: One million cubic feet equivalent per day.

natural gas: Hydrocarbon gas found in the earth, composed ¢fiame, ethane, butane, propane and
other gases.

NGLs: Natural gas liquids, which consist primarily ofi@he, propane, isobutane, normal butane and
natural gasoline.

oil: Crude oil and condensate.
SEC: United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

Tcfe: One Tcf equivalent, determined using a ratio M\cf of natural gas to one Bbl of crude oll,
condensate or natural gas liquids.

throughput: The volume of product transported or passing thinca pipeline, plant, terminal or other
facility.

WTI: West Texas Intermediate
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PART |

Items 1 and 2. Business and Properties
Our Partnership

We are a growthoriented limited partnership formed by Antero Resea Corporation (“Antero”) to

own, operate and develop midstream energy asss&\iwe Antero’s rapidly increasing production.r@asets
consist of gathering pipelines and compressorastatithrough which we provide midstream service&rttero

under a long-term, fixed-fee contract. Our assets are located in the rapielgloping liquids-rich

southwestern core of the Marcellus Shale in norgtwéest Virginia and the liquidsrich core of the Utica

Shale in southern Ohio, two of the premier Northekitan shale plays. We believe that our stratelgical
located assets and our relationship with Anteradtioosus to become a leading midstream energy compa
serving the Marcellus and Utica Shales.

Pursuant to our longterm contract with Antero, we have secured ay®ar dedication

covering substantially all of Antero’s current dnture acreage for gathering and compression sesvill of
Antero’s 543,000 net acre leasehold is dedicatets tior gathering and compression services excehé

third —party commitments in place prior to our formatiaich includes 131,000 Marcellus Shale net
leasehold acres characterized by dry gas and §guidh production that have been previously dedicated

third —party gatherers. Please read “—Antero’s ExistingdraParty Commitments.” Net of the excluded

acreage, our contract covers approximately 412n@dleasehold acres held by Antero as of December 3
2014 for gathering and compression services. litiaddo Antero’s existing acreage dedication, agreement
provides that any acreage Antero acquires in theduwvill be dedicated to us for gathering and coeapion
services. We also provide condensate gatheringcesrto Antero under the gathering and compression
agreement.

In addition, we have an option for two years toghase Antero’s fresh water distribution systems at
fair market value, with a right of first offeragreafter . Further, we have a right to particigateup to a 15%

non-operating equity interest in an unnamed-Bdile regional gathering pipeline extension (the gReal

Gathering System”) that will expire six months éolling the date on which the Regional Gathering Syiss
placed into service, which is currently scheduteddcur during the fourth quarter of 2015. In aiddit we

have entered into a righdf —first —offer agreement with Antero to allow fo r us to yice Antero with gas
processing or NGLs fractionation, transportatiomarketing services in the future .

Developments and Highlights
Energy Industry Environment

The gathering and compression agreement with Amtereides for fixed fee structures, and we intend
to continue to pursue additional fixed fee oppoittas with Antero and third parties in order to aldirect
commodity price exposure. However, to the exteat tlur future contractual arrangements with Antarthird
parties do not provide for fixed fee structures,magy become subject to commodity price risk. Wesalgect
to commaodity price risks to the extent that thepatt Antero’s development plan and therefore othayang
volumes. Recently, global energy commaodity pricasehdeclined precipitously as a result of sevexetiors
including increased worldwide supplies, a strorge. d ollar, relatively mild weather in the U.8nd str ong
competition among oil producing countries for marsteare. Specifically, prices for WTI have decdtirfeom
approximately $106.00 per Bbl in June 2014 to thas $50.00 per Bbl in January 2015. Prices farriiélub
natural gas in January 2015 have traded around $&0MMBtu compared to prices a year ago in Januar
2014 of around $4.4 0 per MMBtu. In response te¢tmarket conditions and concerns about accesgpitak
markets, U.S. exploration and development compdrags significantly reduced capital spending plans.
Antero’s capital budget for 2015 is projected tdfdeB billion, a 41% reduction from 2014. Antetars to
operate an average of 14 drilling rigs in 2015wxdrom 21 at December 31, 2014 , and to complaé 1
horizontal Marcellus and Utica wells in 2015, dofrom 17 7 in 2014.
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Initial Public Offering

On November 10, 2014, we completed our IPO of 45@I common units representing limited
partnership interests at a price of $25.00 per comunit. We were originally formed as Antero Reses
Midstream LLC and converted to a limited partngoshiconnection with the completion of the IPO. tA¢
closing of the IPO, Antero contributed its gathgrand compression assets to Antero Midstream LLC
(“Midstream Operating”), and the ownership of Migstm Operating was contributed to us . Net proceeds
received by us from the IPO were approximately $illon, after deducting underwriting discounts,
structuring fees and expenses. We used $843 millisepay i ndebtedness assumed from Anterojrtbrese
Antero for certain capital expenditures incurrent] &0 redeem 6,000,000 common units held by AnfEne.
Partnership retained $250 million of the net prossfer general partnership purposes.

2015 Capital Budget

During 2015, we plan to expand our existing Marcethnd Utica Shale gathering and compressio n
systems to accommodate Antero’s development pl&iesexpect to invest $415 to $435 million and $1616
million in expansion and maintenance capital, respely, resulting in a total capital budget of $4t» $450
million in 2015. This capital budget includes $2605260 million on gathering infrastructure, whiefil result
in 44 miles and 20 miles of additional low pressame high pressure gathering pipelines, respegtiueboth
the Marcellus and Utica Shale plays combined. Aoidélly, the budget includes the construction gramsion
of five compressor stations, which will add 545 Midoof additional compression capacity in 2015 yAar-
end 2015, we expect to have 180 miles of low presgathering lines, 117 miles of high pressure gratly
lines, and 920 MMcf/d of compression capacity irvee.

Our Assets

The following table provides information regardiogr gathering and compression systems as of
December 31, 2013 and 2014.

Low- High- Condensatt Compressior
Pressure Pressure Average Daily
Pipeline Pipeline  Pipeline Capacity  Throughput for
(miles) (miles) (miles) (MMcf/d)  the Year Ended
December 31
As of December 31 2014
201: 2014 201t 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 _ (Mmcfe/d)

Gathering and Compression System

Marcellus 54 91 39 62 — — 100 375 393
Utica 26 45 23 35 10 16 — _— 153
Total 80136 62 97 10 16 100 375 546

Our midstream infrastructure includes a networB ef 12—, 16 - and 20-inch gathering pipelines

and compressor stations that collects raw nat@sfigm Antero’s operations in the Marcellus ant&t
Shales. In addition, we have a system of condemgdtering pipelines to collect wellhead condensate
associated with Antero’s liquids rich productiortlie Utica Shale. Our compression assets currently
service Antero’s operations in the Marcellus Slaabs, but we may expand our compression capacity to
service the Utica Shale area in 2015.

As of December 31, 2014, our Marcellus and UticalSlgathering systems include 153 miles and 96
miles of pipelines , respectively, and our yeand daily Marcellus compression capacity is 375 Miilc

Our Relationship with Antero

Antero is our only current customer and is oneheflargest producers of natural gas and NGLs in the
Appalachian Basin, where it produced on average dBcfe/d net (14% liquids ) during 2014, an irage of
93% as compared to 2013. As of December 31, 20aikrd’'s estimated net proved reserves were 12.& ,Tcf
which were comprised of 83% natural gas, 16% N@hs, 1% oil. As of December 31, 2014, Antero’s ohgl
inventory consisted of 5,331 identified potentiatinontal well locations (3,502 of which were logdton
acreage dedicated to us) for
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gathering and compression services, which providesith significant opportunities for growth as Ard’s
robust drilling program continues and its produttiocreases. On January 20, 2015, Antero annouarted
expected 2015 drilling and completion budget obddillion. In 2015, Antero plans to operate an agerof 14
drilling rigs , including nine operat ed rigs iretMarcellus Shale, and five o perated rigs inUkiea Shale.
Antero also announced guidance for 2015 includimgegted production of 1.4 Bcfe/d, a 40% increasero
2014. Antero relies substantially on us to deliver midstream infrastructure necessary to accomtaaa
continuing production growth. For additional infaation regarding our contracts with Antero, pleassdr—
Contractual Arrangements with Antero.”

We are highly dependent on Antero as our only curcestomer, and we expect to derive most of our
revenues from Antero for the foreseeable futureotdingly, we are indirectly subject to the busgasks of
Antero. For additional information, please readsiRiFactor s—Risks Related to Our Business.” Becalisd
our revenue currently is, and a substantial mgjafitour revenue over the long term is expecteloetoderived
from Antero, any development that materially andeaidely affects Antero’s operations, financial ctind or
market reput ation could have a material advergaanon us.

Contractual Arrangements with Antero

Gathering and Compression

Pursuant to our 28year gathering and compression agreement, Anteradpeeed to dedicate all of its
current and future acreage in West Virginia, Ohid Bennsylvania to us (other than the thipgrty
commitments in place prior to our formation). Fafiscussion of Antero’s existing thirebarty commitments,

please read “—Antero’s Existing ThirdParty Commitments.” We also have an option to gadhe compress

natural gas produced by Antero on any acreagejitiees in the future outside of West Virginia, Ohied
Pennsylvania on the same terms and conditions. ithdegathering and compression agreement, wevieeegi
low pressure gathering fee of $0.30 per Mcf, a lgrssure gathering fee of $0.18 per Mcf, a congwadee
of $0.18 per Mcf, and a condensate gathering f&400 per Bbl, in each case subject to &fsed
adjustments. If and to the extent Antero requéstswe construct new high pressure lines and casspre
stations, the gathering and compression agreensetdios minimum volume commitments that requireehat
to utilize or pay for 75% and 70%, respectivelythef capacity of such new construction for 10 years
Additional high pressure lines and compressoratatinstalled on our own initiative are not subjecsuch
volume commitments. These minimum volume commitment new infrastructure are intended to support the
stability of our cash flows. For additional infortiwan, please read “Item 13. Certain Relationships Related
Transactions.”

Option to Acquire Antero’s Fresh Water DistributiBusiness

In addition to the gathering and compression agezgnfntero has also granted us an option to
purchase its fresh water distribution systemsianiarket value. Antero owns and operates two iedepnt
fresh water distribution systems that distribugsk water from the Ohio River and several otheiored water
sources for producers’ well completion operatianthie Marcellus and Utica Shales. These systensisiarf a
combination of permanent buried pipelines, moveahbléace pipelines and fresh water storage faaslitas
well as pumping stations to transport the freshtewtitroughout the pipeline networks.

Gas Processing and NGL Fractionation

Although we do not currently have any gas procgssSWGL fractionation, transportation or marketing
infrastructure, we have entered into a rigbt -first —offer agreement with Antero for gas processingises/

pursuant to which Antero has agreed, subject tmiteexceptions, not to procure any gas procesbi@d,
fractionation, transportation or marketing serviagth respect to its production (other than prodircsubject

to a pre-existing dedication) without first offering us thght to provide such services. For additional

information, please read “—Antero’s Existing ThirBarty Commitments” and “ltem 13. Certain Relatiapsh
and Related Transactions.”
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Option to Participate in Regional Gathering System

We have the option to participate for up to a 158 roperated equity interest in the Regional
Gathering System. The Regional Gathering Systesrpected to connect a portion of Antero’s Marcellus
Shale operating areas with the delivery point fons of its downstream firm transportation committse@ur
option will expire six months following the date which the Regional Gathering System is placed setwice,
which is currently scheduled to occur during therflo quarter of 2015. We have not yet determinedtftiat
extent, if any, we would exercise such option.

Antero’s Existing Third —-Party Commitments

Excluded Acreage

Antero previously dedicated a portion of its aceeagthe Marcellus Shale to certain third parties’
gathering and compression services. We refer soditrieage dedication as the “excluded acreagedf As
December 31, 2014, the excluded acreage consistggpooximately 131,000 of Antero’s existing net
leasehold acreage. At that same date, 1,829 off&ntB,331 potential horizontal well locations wéveated
within the excluded acreage.

Other Commitments

In addition to the excluded acreage, Antero hasredtinto take-or —pay contracts with volume

commitments for certain third parties’ high pregsgathering and compression services. Specifidhityse
volume commitments consist of up to an aggrega#0fMMcf/d on four high pressure gathering pipesin
and 1,020 MMcf/d on nine compressor stations. Sino the excluded acreage, Antero’s use of that
infrastructure up to the maximum aggregate higlsquree gathering and compression volumes is notsut
the gathering and compression agreement.

Title to Properties

Our real property is classified into two categari@3 parcels that we own in fee and (2) parcels in
which our interest derives from leases, easemggtgs -of -way, permits or licenses from landowners or
governmental authorities, permitting the use ohdaad for our operations. Portions of the landwich our
pipelines and major facilities are located are aving us in fee title, and we believe that we hatestactory
title to these lands. The remainder of the lanavhith our pipelines and major facilities are locaéee held by
us pursuant to surface leases between us, as,lesskthe fee owner of the lands, as lessors. We leased or
owned these lands without any material challengaknto us relating to the title to the land uporichithe
assets are located, and we believe that we haigéastdry leasehold estates or fee ownership df fards. We

have no knowledge of any challenge to the undeglfée title of any material lease, easement, rglit-way,
permit or license held by us or to our title to angterial lease, easement, riglf —way, permit or lease, and

we believe that we have satisfactory title to &it® material leases, easements, rigltitb-way, permits and
licenses.

Some of the leases, easements, rigbfs-way, permits and licenses that were transferragtivtom
Antero required the consent of the grantor of sughts, which in certain instances is a governmiestéity.
Antero obtained sufficient thirdparty consents, permits and authorizations fotrdmesfer of the assets

necessary to enable us to operate our businefisnai@rial respects. With respect to any remairiogsents,
permits or authorizations that have not been obthiwe have determined these will not have a nadteri
adverse effect on the operation of our businessldhee or Antero fail to obtain such consents, pesor
authorization in a reasonable time frame.

Seasonality

Demand for natural gas generally decreases dunmgpring and fall months and increases during the
summer and winter months. However, seasonal anesnsdich as mild winters or mild summers sometimes
lessen this fluctuation. In addition, certain natigas end users, utilities and marketers utileimal gas
storage facilities and purchase some of their gratied winter requirements during the spring, sumanel fall,
thereby smoothing demand for natural gas. Thisatsmlessen seasonal demand fluctuations. Thesersda
anomalies can increase demand for our servicesgltire summer and winter months and decrease deforand
our services during the spring and fall months.

10
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Competition

As a result of our relationship with Antero, wemtmt compete for the portion of Antero’s existing
operations for which we currently provide midstresenvices and will not compete for future portiofis
Antero’s operations that will be dedicated to usspant to our gathering and compression agreemiémt w
Antero. For a description of this contract, pleassd “—Our Relationship with Antero—Contractual

Arrangements with Antero.” However, we will facengpetition in attracting thireparty volumes to our

gathering and compression systems. In additiosethigird parties may develop their own gatherind) an
compression systems in lieu of employing our assets

Regulation of Operations

Regulation of pipeline gathering services may dftectain aspects of our business and the market fo
our services.

Gathering Pipeline Regulation

Section 1(b) of the Natural Gas Act of 1938, or N@&empts natural gas gathering facilities from
regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Comimissor FERC, under the NGA. Although the FERC has
not made any formal determinations with respeetrip of our facilities, we believe that the natuas
pipelines in our gathering systems meet the ti@uddti tests the FERC has used to establish whetbipetne is

a gathering pipeline not subject to FERC jurisdictiThe distinction between FER@egulated transmission
services and federally unregulated gathering sesyicowever, has been the subject of substariigtion,
and the FERC determines whether facilities areayat facilities on a caseby —case basis, so the

classification and regulation of some our gathefagjlities and intrastate transportation pipelingsy be
subject to change based on future determinationkd#ERC, the courts, or Congress. If the FERGwer
consider the status of an individual facility aretermine that the facility is not a gathering pipeland the
pipeline provides interstate transmission sentiee rates for, and terms and conditions of, sesvizevided by
such facility would be subject to regulation by #ERC under the NGA or the Natural Gas Policy Act @78,
or NGPA. Such FERC-regulation could decrease re¥ginarease operating costs, and, depending ugon th
facility in question, could adversely affect ousults of operations and cash flows. In additiomni§ of our
facilities were found to have provided servicestirerwise operated in violation of the NGA or NGRlis
could result in the imposition of civil penalties aell as a requirement to disgorge charges celiefctr such
service in excess of the rate established by tHRGFE

State regulation of gathering facilities generatigludes various safety, environmental and, in some
circumstances, nondiscriminatory take requiremantscomplaint-based rate regulation. States in which we

operate may adopt ratable take and common purchtgates, which would require our gathering pipsdito
take natural gas without undue discrimination wofeof one producer over another producer or onecgoof
supply over another similarly situated source giy. The regulations under these statutes may tieveffect
of imposing some restrictions on our ability asoamer of gathering facilities to decide with whore wontract

to gather natural gas. States in which we operatgatso adopt a complairbased regulation of natural gas

gathering activities, which allows natural gas proets and shippers to file complaints with statpilaors in
an effort to resolve grievances relating to gatigedccess and rate discrimination. We cannot prediether
such regulation will be adopted and whether suchnaplaint will be filed against us in the futurailére to
comply with state regulations can result in the asipjon of administrative, civil and criminal remesd. To
date, there has been no adverse effect to oumsydiie to state regulations.

Our gathering operations could be adversely aftestould they be subject in the future to more
stringent application of state regulation of reded services. Our gathering operations also may become
subject to additional safety and operational retipiia relating to the design, installation, testiognstruction,
operation, replacement and management of gathfaailgies. Additional rules and legislation pertaig to
these matters are considered or adopted from tirtime. We cannot predict what effect, if any, sabhnges
might have on our operations, but the industry ddod required to incur additional capital expendisuand
increased costs depending on future legislativeragdlatory changes.
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The Energy Policy Act of 2005, or EPAct 2005, anmeshthe NGA and NGPA to prohibit fraud and
manipulation in natural gas markets. The FERC egantly issued a final rule making it unlawful fory
entity, in connection with the purchase or saleatfiral gas or transportation service subject tREE
jurisdiction, to defraud, make an untrue statenoermit a material fact or engage in any pracie®,or course
of business that operates or would operate asud.fraihe FERC'’s anti-manipulation rules apply tivastate
sales and gathering activities only to the exthat there is a “nexus” to FERC-jurisdictional
transactions. EPAct 2005 also provided the FER@ thie authority to impose civil penalties of up to
$1,000,000 per day per violation.

Pipeline Safety Regulation

Some of our gas pipelines are subject to reguldtjothe Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety
Administration, or PHMSA, pursuant to the Naturad®ipeline Safety Act of 1968, or NGPSA, and the
Pipeline Safety Improvement Act of 2002, or PSléreauthorized and amended by the Pipeline Ingpecti
Protection, Enforcement and Safety Act of 200&herPIPES Act. The NGPSA regulates safety requingsne
in the design, construction, operation and maimeeaaf gas pipeline facilities, while the PSIA &dithes

mandatory inspections for all U.S. oil and natgas transmission pipelines in highonsequence areas, or
HCAs.

The PHMSA has developed regulations that requpelivie operators to implement integrity
management programs, including more frequent irtgpecand other measures to ensure pipeline sifety
HCAs. The regulations require operators, includisgto:

» perform ongoing assessments of pipeline integrity;

« identify and characterize applicable threats t@lige segments that could impact a HCA;

« improve data collection, integration and analysis;

« repair and remediate pipelines as necessary; and

- implement preventive and mitigating actions.

The 2011 Pipeline Safety Act, among other thingsrgased the maximum civil penalty for pipeline
safety violations and directed the Secretary oh3partation to promulgate rules or standards rejat

expanded integrity management requirements, auiomatemote-controlled valve use, excess flow valve

use, leak detection system installation and testrapnfirm the material strength of pipe operatihgve 30%
of specified minimum yield strength in high conseqce areas. Consistent with the act, PHMSA findlizdes
that increased the maximum administrative civilgdges for violation of the pipeline safety lawsdan
regulations to $200,000 per violation per day, veitmaximum of $2,000,000 for a series of violatioFtse

PHMSA has also issued a final rule applying safegulations to certain rural lowstress hazardous liquid

pipelines that were not covered previously by soifnés safety regulations. In addition, PHMSA hasblished
advanced notice of proposed rulemakings to sa@tments on the need for changes to its naturadugas
liquid pipeline safety regulations, including whetho extend the integrity management requiremtents
gathering lines. The PHMSA also issued an advibafletin providing guidance on the verificationretords
related to pipeline maximum allowable operatingsptee.

States are largely preempted by federal law frogaleging pipeline safety for interstate lines budgin
are certified by the DOT to assume responsibilityenforcing federal intrastate pipeline regulasiamd
inspection of intrastate pipelines. States may asivjgter standards for intrastate pipelines ttherse imposed
by the federal government for interstate lines; &esv, states vary considerably in their authonityt aapacity
to address pipeline safety. State standards mayd@cequirements for facility design and managernren
addition to requirements for pipelines. We do mitcpate any significant difficulty in complyingiti
applicable state laws and regulations. Our nagaalpipelines have continuous inspection and camgd
programs designed to keep the facilities in conmgkawith pipeline safety and pollution control regments.

We have incorporated all existing requirements smitoprograms by the required regulatory deadlines,

and are continually incorporating the new requinetsénto procedures and budgets. We expect to incur
increasing regulatory
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compliance costs, based on the intensificatiomefregulatory environment and upcoming changes to
regulations as outlined above. In addition to ratprly changes, costs may be incurred when thene is
accidental release of a commodity transported Ipysgstem, or a regulatory inspection identifieefiagiency
in our required programs.

Regulation of Environmental and Occupational Safetyand Health Matters

General

Our natural gas gathering and compression actvitie subject to stringent and complex federatk sta
and local laws and regulations relating to thegutidon of the environment. As an owner or operafdhese
facilities, we must comply with these laws and fatians at the federal, state and local levels.s€Haws and
regulations can restrict or impact our businesivities in many ways, such as:

* requiring the installation of pollutioacontrol equipment, imposing emission or dischangét$

or otherwise restricting the way we operate resglih additional costs to our operatio

» limiting or prohibiting construction activities ereas, such as air quality nonattainment areas,
wetlands, coastal regions or areas inhabited bgregeted or threatened spec

» delaying system modification or upgrades duringeenwof permit applications and revisions;

« requiring investigatory and remedial actions toigaite discharges, releases or pollution
conditions associated with our operations or aiteble to former operations; a

* enjoining the operations of facilities deemed tarbeon-compliance with permits issued

pursuant to or regulatory requirements imposedusi £nvironmental laws and regulatio

Failure to comply with these laws and regulatiora/migger a variety of administrative, civil and
criminal enforcement measures, including the assessof monetary penalties and natural resourceagam
Certain environmental statutes impose strict jaimd several liability for costs required to clegnamd restore
sites where hazardous substances, hydrocarbontidonsstes have been disposed or otherwise ralease
Moreover, neighboring landowners and other thindipg may file common law claims for personal igjand
property damage allegedly caused by the releabazardous substances, hydrocarbons or solid west¢hie
environment.

The trend in environmental regulation is to plag@erestrictions and limitations on activities that
may affect the environment and thus, there camb@ssurance as to the amount or timing of future
expenditures for environmental compliance or re@iath and actual future expenditures may be diffefiem
the amounts we currently anticipate. As with thelstrieam industry in general, complying with currantl
anticipated environmental laws and regulationsinarease our capital costs to construct, maintathaperate
equipment and facilities. While these laws and l&ipns affect our maintenance capital expenditaresnet
income, we do not believe they will have a matathlerse effect on our business, financial positioresults
of operations or cash flows, nor do we believe thay will affect our competitive position sincestbperations
of our competitors are generally similarly affectedaddition, we believe that the various actastin which
we are presently engaged that are subject to emwigatal laws and regulations are not expected tenmady
interrupt or diminish our operational ability totgar natural gas. We cannot assure you, howe\arfuture
events, such as changes in existing laws or enfegnepolicies, the promulgation of new laws or tagans,
or the development or discovery of new facts orditions will not cause us to incur significant codBelow is
a discussion of the material environmental laws ragailations that relate to our business. We beltbat we
are in substantial compliance with all of theseiemmental laws and regulations.

Hydraulic Fracturing Activities
Hydraulic fracturing is an important and commongpice that is used to stimulate production of
natural gas and/or oil from dense subsurface rogkdtions. The hydraulic fracturing process invelttee

injection of water, sand, and chemicals under presthrough a cased and cemented wellbore inteteag
subsurface formations to fracture the
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surrounding rock and stimulate production. Our andgtomer, Antero, uses hydraulic fracturing as pgits
completion operations as does most of the U.S.areshil and natural gas industry. Hydraulic frastgr
typically is regulated by state oil and natural gasimissions, but the EPA has asserted federalategy
authority over the process and published permitginiglance in February 2014 restricting the useledal fuels
in fracturing fluids. In May 2014, the EPA issuad/&dvanced Notice of Proposed Rulemaking seekirdipu
comment on its intent to develop and issue reguiatunder the Toxic Substances Control Act reggrttia
disclosure of information related to the chemieedsd in hydraulic fracturing. Moreover, the EPA is
developing effluent limitations for the treatmentladischarge of wastewater resulting from hydraulic
fracturing activities and plans to propose theaaddards sometime in the first half of 2015. Alsdes
promulgated by the EPA under the Clean Air Act remjthat certain wells employ “green completion”
technology after January 1, 2015 to address emisgibvolatile organic compounds, including methane

highly —-potent greenhouse gas, or GHG. In addition, the Department of the Interior published a revised

proposed rule on May 24, 2013 that would implemgtated requirements for hydraulic fracturing atiés
on federal lands, including new requirements ne¢ptd public disclosure, well bore integrity, arehtling of
flowback water. The rule will likely be finalized the first half of 2015.

In addition, Congress has from time to time congidéegislation to provide for federal regulatidn o
hydraulic fracturing under the Safe Drinking Watet, or SDWA, and to require disclosure of the cieais
used in the hydraulic fracturing process. At tlatestevel, several states have adopted or aredsmirgy legal
requirements that could impose more stringent péingj disclosure, and well construction requiretseam
hydraulic fracturing activities. For example, ini@hthe Department of Natural Resources recentppsed
draft regulations that would require a minimum aiigte between the hydraulic fracturing facilitied atreams,

require operators to take spitontainment measures, and regulate the typeseskliequired for waste

storage. Local government also may seek to adajmtamces within their jurisdictions regulating timae,
place and manner of drilling activities in genarahydraulic fracturing activities in particular.

Certain governmental reviews also have been coadumtare underway that focus on environmental
aspects of hydraulic fracturing practices. The Whlbuse Council on Environmental Quality is cooatiimg

an administration- wide review of hydraulic fracturing practices. TBBA has commenced a study of the

potential environmental effects of hydraulic fragtg on drinking water and groundwater, and a fieglort
drawing conclusions about the potential impactsyafraulic fracturing on drinking water resourcesxpected
to be available for public comment and peer revdewetime in the first half of 2015. Other governtaén
agencies, including the U.S. Department of Eneapelevaluated or are evaluating various other &spéc
hydraulic fracturing. These ongoing or proposedlists, depending on their degree of pursuit and any
meaningful results obtained, could spur initiatite@$urther regulate hydraulic fracturing under $i@WA or
other regulatory mechanisms. Moreover, the ObadmaiAistration is expected to release a serieswaf ne
regulations on the oil and gas industry in 2018luding federal standards limiting methane emissidinew
or more stringent federal, state, or local legatrietions relating to the hydraulic fracturing pess are adopted
in areas where Antero operates, Antero could ipotentially significant added costs to comply wstich
requirements, experience delays or curtailmertiénprsuit of exploration, development, or produrtti
activities, and perhaps even be precluded frorirdrilvells. Any such added costs or delays for Amteould
significantly affect our operations.

Hazardous Waste

Antero’s operations generate solid wastes, inclydimme hazardous wastes, that are subject to the
federal Resource Conservation and Recovery AG®RGIRA, and comparable state laws, which impose
requirements for the handling, storage, treatmedtdisposal of hazardous waste. RCRA currently @tem
many natural gas gathering and field processindesasom classification as hazardous waste. Spedifi
RCRA excludes from the definition of hazardous wasbduced waters and other wastes intrinsically
associated with the exploration, development, odpction of crude oil and natural gas. Howeversé¢heil and
gas exploration and production wastes may stilidgeilated under state solid waste laws and reguktiand it

is possible that certain oil and natural gas exgtion and production wastes now classified as+fazardous
could be classified as hazardous waste in thedutur
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Site Remediation

The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatd Liability Act, or CERCLA, also
known as the Superfund law, and comparable stateilapose liability without regard to fault or thegality
of the original conduct, on certain classes of gessesponsible for the release of hazardous sutegtanto the
environment. Such classes of persons include tirertuand past owners or operators of sites where a
hazardous substance was released, and compartidssgiesed or arranged for disposal of hazardous
substances at offsite locations, such as landAliough petroleum as well as natural gas is edetlifrom
CERCLA's definition of “hazardous substance,” ie ttourse of our ordinary operations, our operations
generate wastes that may be designated as hazawdmiances. CERCLA authorizes the EPA, states,and
some cases, third parties to take actions in resptmreleases or threatened releases of hazasdbstgnces
into the environment and to seek to recover froendlasses of responsible persons the costs theytmc
address the release. Under CERCLA, we could bessuty strict joint and several liability for theats of
cleaning up and restoring sites where hazardoustautes have been released into the environmerfiband
damages to natural resources.

We currently own or lease, and may have in the @ased or leased, properties that have been used
for the gathering and compression of natural gastlae gathering and transportation of oil. Althoung
typically used operating and disposal practiceswleae standard in the industry at the time, petroi
hydrocarbons or wastes may have been disposedrefeaised on or under the properties owned or delayg &
or on or under other locations where such substanaee been taken for disposal. Such petroleum
hydrocarbons or wastes may have migrated to pippejacent to our owned and leased sites or thpmsi
sites. In addition, some of the properties may Haen operated by third parties or by previous os/mdose
treatment and disposal or release of petroleumdrgidbons or wastes was not under our control. These
properties and the substances disposed or releast@m may be subject to CERCLA, RCRA and analsgou
state laws. Under such laws, we could be requaedrhove previously disposed wastes, including evast
disposed of by prior owners or operators; remediatgaminated property, including groundwater
contamination, whether from prior owners or opensatwr other historic activities or spills; or perforemedial
operations to prevent future contamination. Wenatecurrently a potentially responsible party ity &&deral or
state Superfund site remediation and there arairrertt, pending or anticipated Superfund response o
remedial activities at or implicating our faciléi®r operations.

Air Emissions

The federal Clean Air Act, and comparable states|aegulate emissions of air pollutants from vagiou
industrial sources, including natural gas procegpiants and compressor stations, and also imparseus
emission limits, operational limits and monitorimgporting and record keeping requirements onraisgion
sources. Failure to comply with these requiremeatsd result in monetary penalties, injunctiong)ditions or
restrictions on operations, and potentially crirhieraforcement actions. Such laws and regulatiogsire

pre - construction permits for the construction or mimaifion of certain projects or facilities with tpetential

to emit air emissions above certain thresholdsse&hpe-construction permits generally require use of best

available control technology, or BACT, to limit @missions. Several EPA new source performanceatds,
or NSPS, and national emission standards for hamardir pollutants, or NESHAP, also apply to ouilftes
and operations. These NSPS and NESHAP standard@ségmission limits and operational limits as wasl|
detailed testing, recordkeeping and reporting reguoénts on the “affected facilities” covered bysthe
regulations. Several of our facilities are “majéatilities requiring Title V operating permits whiémpose
semi-annual reporting requirements. We operate in nmatedmpliance with these various air quality
regulatory programs. We may incur capital expemdgun the future for air pollution control equipntén
connection with complying with existing and recgrnitoposed rules, or with obtaining or maintaining
operating permits and complying with federal, statd local regulations related to air emissionswelcer, we
do not believe that such requirements will haveasemial adverse effect on our operations.

Water Discharges
The Federal Water Pollution Control Act, or the&@liaVater Act, and analogous state laws impose
restrictions and strict controls with respect te ¢lischarge of pollutants, including spills andkkeaf oil and

other substances, into waters of the United States.discharge of pollutants into jurisdictionalters is
prohibited, except in accordance with
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the terms of a permit issued by the EPA or a dédehystate agency. Federal and state regulatoryceggecan

impose administrative, civil and criminal penalties non-compliance with discharge permits or other

requirements of the Clean Water Act and analogtats aws and regulations. We believe that we raairdl|
required discharge permits necessary to conduabpenations, and further believe we are in subistiant
compliance with the terms thereof. Any unpermittel@ase of petroleum or other pollutants from our
operations could result in government penaltiesawitliability.

Occupational Safety and Health Act

We are also subject to the requirements of ther&dccupational Safety and Health Act, as
amended, or OSHA, and comparable state laws tgatate the protection of the health and safety of
employees. In addition, OSHA’s hazard communicasitamdard, the Emergency Planning and Community
Right to Know Act and implementing regulations aiuilar state statutes and regulations require that
information be maintained about hazardous mateusds! or produced in our operations and that this
information be provided to employees, state andllgovernment authorities and citizens. We belidnag our
operations are in substantial compliance with hy@ieable worker health and safety requirements.

Endangered Species

The Endangered Species Act, or ESA, and analodateslaws restrict activities that may affect
endangered or threatened species or their habitagsdesignation of previously unprotected speages
threatened or endangered in areas where undepyaperty operations are conducted could cause instio
increased costs arising from species protectiorsarea or could result in limitations on our operatactivities
that could have an adverse impact on our resultpefations.

Climate Change

The EPA has determined that emissions of GHGs pteseendangerment to public health and the
environment because emissions of such gases amrday to the EPA, contributing to the warmingod
earth’s atmosphere and other climatic changes.Bais¢hese findings, EPA has adopted regulatiodeun
existing provisions of the federal Clean Air Adtat establish Prevention of Significant Deteriamtior PSD,

pre-construction permits, and Title V operating permitsGHG emissions from certain large stationary
sources. Under these regulations, facilities reglio obtain PSD permits must meet BACT standardtheir
GHG emissions established by the states or, in s@®es, by the EPA, on a cad®y -case basis. The EPA

has also adopted rules requiring the monitoringrapdrting of GHG emissions from specified souiicethe
United States, including, among others, certairoresoil and natural gas processing and fractiagati
facilities. Additionally, while Congress has froime to time considered legislation to reduce eroissiof
GHGs, the prospect for adoption of significant safion at the federal level to reduce GHG emissisn
perceived to be low at this time. NeverthelessQbama administration has announced it intendslopta
additional regulations to reduce emissions of Gldé$to encourage greater use of low carbon techesio
Although it is not possible at this time to prediciw legislation or new regulations that may bepaed to
address GHG emissions would impact our businegssach future laws and regulations that limit efnoiss of
GHGs could adversely affect demand for the oil aatliral gas that exploration and production opesato
produce, some of whom are our customers, whichdcingreby reduce demand for our midstream services.
Finally, it should be noted that some scientisteeh@oncluded that increasing concentrations of GiGise
Earth’s atmosphere may produce climate changeh#hvat significant physical effects, such as inadas
frequency and severity of storms, droughts anddéoand other climatic events; if any such effecsento
occur, it is uncertain if they would have an adeezfect on our financial condition and operations.

In summary, we believe we are in substantial coamgke with currently applicable environmental laws
and regulations. Although we have not experienegdnaaterial adverse effect from compliance with
environmental requirements, there is no assurdratehis will continue. We did not have any matecapital

or other non-recurring expenditures in connection with complymith environmental laws or environmental
remediation matters in 2014, nor do we anticipase such expenditures will be material in 2015.
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Employees

We do not have any employees. The officers of @emegal partner, who are also officers of Antero
manage our operations and activities. As of DecerBibe2014, Antero employed approximately 444 peopl
who provide direct, full-time support to our opéwsas. All of the employees required to conduct angport

our operations are employed by Antero and all efditect, full -time personnel are subject to the services

agreement with our general partner and Antero. dantensiders its relations with its employees to be
satisfactory.

Legal Proceedings

Our operations are subject to a variety of risks disputes normally incident to our business. As a
result, we may, at any given time, be a defendamarious legal proceedings and litigation arisimthe
ordinary course of business. However, we are naently subject to any material litigation.

We maintain insurance policies with insurers in ante and with coverage and deductibles that we,
with the advice of our insurance advisors and tialeelieve are reasonable and prudent. We canowgver,
assure you that this insurance will be adequapedtect us from all material expenses related temal future
claims for personal and property damage or thaetevels of insurance will be available in theufatat
economical prices.

Address, Website and Availability of Public Filings

Our principal executive offices are at 1615 Wynk&tpeet, Denver, Colorado 80202. Our telephone
number is (303) 357-7310. Our website is locatedvaly.anteromidstream.com

We will make available our Annual Reports on Foi@aKl, our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and
our Current Reports on Form 8-K. These documaetéogatedvww.anteromidstream.coonder the
“Investors Relations” link.

Information on our website is not incorporated ititis Annual Report on Form 10-K or our other
filings with the SEC and is not a part of them .

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Limited partner interests are inherently differérdm the capital stock of a corporation, although
many of the business risks to which we are subjecsimilar to those that would be faced by a coation
engaged in a similar business. You should caretidhysider the following risk factors together wathof the
other information included in this prospectus, udihg the matters addressed under “Cautionary Sttt

Regarding Forward- Looking Statements,” in evaluating an investmardur common units.

If any of the following risks were to occur, oursimess, financial condition, results of operatiamsl
cash available for distribution could be materiadigversely affected.

Risks Related to Our Business

Because substantially all of our revenue is deriveflom Antero, any development that materially and
adversely affects Antero’s operations, financial aedition or market reputation could have a materialand
adverse impact on us.

We are substantially dependent on Antero as oy sighificant customer, and we expect to derive a
substantial majority of our revenues from Anterotfte foreseeable future. As a result, any evehgther in
our area of operations or otherwise, that advera#fcts Antero’s production, drilling and compteti
schedule, financial condition, leverage, markettaon, liquidity, results of operations or cakiwis may
adversely affect our revenues
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and cash available for distribution. Accordinglye are indirectly subject to the business risks tefo,
including, among others:

« areduction in or slowing of Antero’s developmendgram, which would directly and adversely
impact demand for our gathering and compressiorices;
« the volatility of natural gas, NGLs and oil priceghich could have a negative effect on the value of

Anterc’'s properties, its drilling programs or its abilityfinance its operation

- the availability of capital on an economic basi$uied Antero’s exploration and development
activities;

« Antero’s ability to replace reserves;

» Antero’s drilling and operating risks, includingtpatial environmental liabilities;

» transportation capacity constraints and interruygjo

» adverse effects of governmental and environmeatallation; and

» losses from pending or future litigation.

Recently, global energy prices have declined piteeiply as a result of several factors, including
increased worldwide supplies, a stronger U.S. dalidatively mild weather in the U.S., and stramgnpetition
among oil producing countries for market share c8jgally, prices for West Texas Intermediate lighteet
crude oil declined from approximately $106.00 pét B June 2014 to less than $50.00 per Bbl in danu
2015 and Henry Hub natural gas has traded arourd $&r MMBtu in January 2015 compared to prices a
year ago in January 2014 of around $4.40 per MMBtu.

Changes in commodity prices can significantly affaar capital resources, liquidity and expected
operating results. Please see “—Because of theatakecline in production from existing wells, @uccess
depends, in part, on Antero’s ability to replaceliténg production and our ability to secure newrses of
natural gas from Antero or third parties. Any dasein volumes of natural gas that Antero prodocesy
decrease in the number of wells that Antero corepletould adversely affect our business and operati
results.”

Further, we are subject to the risk of nggayment or nor-performance by Antero, including with
respect to our gathering and compression agreeMéntannot predict the extent to which Antero’sibesss
would be impacted if conditions in the energy indusontinue to deteriorate, nor can we estimageitpact
such conditions would have on Antero’s ability teeute its drilling and development program or perf
under our gathering and compression agreementmfaigrial non-payment or nor-performance by Antero
could reduce our ability to make distributions to anitholders.

Also, due to our relationship with Antero, our élito access the capital markets, or the pricing o
other terms of any capital markets transactiony, n@sadversely affected by any impairment to Aritero
financial condition or adverse changes in its dreatings.

Any material limitation on our ability to accesgdal as a result of such adverse changes at Antero
could limit our ability to obtain future financingnder favorable terms, or at all, or could resuincreased
financing costs in the future. Similarly, mate@gaverse changes at Antero could negatively impactinit
price, limiting our ability to raise capital throug@quity issuances or debt financing, or could tiegly affect
our ability to engage in, expand or pursue ourress activities, and could also prevent us fromagimy in
certain transactions that might otherwise be careid beneficial to us.
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We may not generate sufficient cash from operation®llowing the establishment of cash reserves and
payment of fees and expenses, including cost reimise@ments to our general partner, to enable us to pa
the minimum quarterly distribution to our unitholde rs.

In order to make our minimum quarterly distributioin$0.17 per common unit and subordinated unit
per quarter, or $0.68 per unit per year, w e veitjuire avail able cash of approximately $26 millpe r
quarter, or approximately $105 million per yeardshen the common units and subordinated unitsandsig
at December 31, 2014, as well as grants made tineéntero Midstream Partners LP Long-term Incentiv
Plan. We may not generate sufficient cash flow epdrter to support the payment of the minimum tgulgr
distribution or to increase our quarterly distribas in the future.

The amount of cash we can distribute on our umitecjpally depends upon the amount of cash we
generate from our operations, which will fluctufitam quarter to quarter based on, among other shing

« the volume of natural gas we gather and compress;

« the volume of condensate we gather;

« the rates we charge third parties, if any, forgathering and compression services;

« market prices of natural gas, NGLs and oil andrteffect on Antercs drilling schedule as well .
produced volumes

« Antero’s ability to fund its drilling program;

- adverse weather conditions;

« the level of our operating, maintenance and gerardladministrative costs;

» regulatory action affecting the supply of, or dech&or, natural gas, the rates we can charge for
our services, how we contract for services, oustexg contract, our operating costs or our
operating flexibility; anc

« prevailing economic conditions.

In addition, the actual amount of cash we will havailable for distribution will depend on other
factors, including:

« the level and timing of maintenance and expansamital expenditures we make;
« our debt service requirements and other liabilities

« our ability to borrow under our debt agreementgayp distributions;

« fluctuations in our working capital needs;

« restrictions on distributions contained in any of debt agreements;

« the cost of acquisitions, if any;

- fees and expenses of our general partner andiltatat (including Antero) we are required to
reimburse
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« the amount of cash reserves established by ourajgreetner; and

« other business risks affecting our cash levels.
Because of the natural decline in production from xsting wells, our success depends, in part, on
Antero’s ability to replace declining production and our ability to secure new sources of natural gasom
Antero or third parties. Any decrease in volumes ohatural gas that Antero produces or any decreasai
the number of wells that Antero completes, could acersely affect our business and operating results.

The natural gas volumes that support our gathérirsiness depend on the level of production from
natural gas wells connected to our systems, whig Ioe less than expected and will naturally dediver
time. To the extent Antero reduces its activitytrerwise ceases to drill and complete wells, reesrfor our
gathering and compression services will be direstigt adversely affected. In addition, natural galames
from completed wells will naturally decline and aash flows associated with these wells will aleolithe
over time. In order to maintain or increase thrqugHevels on our gathering systems, we must olvtein
sources of natural gas from Antero or third parfigee primary factors affecting our ability to ointadditional
sources of natural gas include (i) the successntéild’s drilling activity in our areas of operatjdi) Antero’s
acquisition of additional acreage and (iii) ourli#pto obtain dedications of acreage from thirdtjes.

We have no control over Antero’s or other produdessels of development and completion activity in
our areas of operation, the amount of reservesided with wells connected to our systems or #te at
which production from a well declines. We have pateol over Antero or other producers or their depment
plan decisions, which are affected by, among dthegs:

» the availability and cost of capital,

« prevailing and projected natural gas, NGLs anghades;

« demand for natural gas, NGLs and oll;

« levels of reserves;

« geologic considerations;

« environmental or other governmental regulationsluiting the availability of drilling permits and

the regulation of hydraulic fracturing; a

« the costs of producing the gas and the availalality costs of drilling rigs and other equipment.

Fluctuations in energy prices can also greatlycaftee development of reserves. Recently, global
energy prices have declined precipitously as dtre§geveral factors, including increased worldevglipplies,
a stronger U.S. dollar, relatively mild weathethe U.S., and strong competition among oil prodgcin
countries for market share. Specifically, pricas\iéest Texas Intermediate light sweet crude oilided from
approximately $106.00 per Bbl in June 2014 to thas $50.00 per Bbl in January 2015 and Henry Hathnal
gas has traded around $3.00 per MMBtu in Januat$ 20mpared to prices a year ago in January 2014 of
around $4.40 per MMBtu. These lower prices havepmllad most natural gas and oil producers, inclgdin
Antero, to reduce the level of exploration, drijiand production activity. This will have a signdnt effect on
our capital resources, liquidity and expected oegaesults. Any sustained reductions in natues gnd oil
prices will directly affect Antero’s production, wahm would reduce our revenues and ability to pay
distributions. Sustained reductions in developnegmroduction activity in our areas of operatiomicblead to
reduced utilization of our services.

Due to these and other factors, even if resen@g&mown to exist in areas served by our assets,

producers haven chosen, and may choose in thefutat to develop those reserves. If reductions in
development activity result in
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our inability to maintain the current levels ofdlighput on our systems, those reductions couldceedur
revenue and cash flow and adversely affect ouitybd make cash distributions to our unitholders.

The gathering and compression agreement only incli$ minimum volume commitments under certain
circumstances.

The gathering and compression agreement includeisnmim volume commitments only on new high
pressure pipelines and compressor stations thabn&ruct at Antero’s request. Our existing comgoes
stations and gathering pipelines are not suppdayadinimum volume commitments from Antero. Any
decrease in the current levels of throughput ongetinering and compression systems could reduceeganue
and cash flow and adversely affect our ability takencash distributions to our unitholders.

We may not be able to attract third—party gathering and compression volumes, which codllimit our
ability to grow and increase our dependence on Ante.

Part of our long-term growth strategy includes diversifying our cmsér base by identifying

opportunities to offer services to third-parties. date, substantially all of our revenues were e&hfrom

Antero. Our ability to increase throughput on oathgring and compression systems and any relatedue
from third parties is subject to numerous factagdnd our control, including competition from thpdrties
and the extent to which we have available capaditgn requested by third parties. To the extentulealack

available capacity on our systems for thigghrty volumes, we may not be able to compete éfiegtwith
third —party systems for additional oil and natural gasdpction in our areas of operation. In additionmeaof

our natural gas and NGLs marketing competitorgHod —party volumes have greater financial resources and

access to larger supplies of natural gas than thesiéable to us, which could allow those competito price
their services more aggressively than we do.

Our efforts to attract new unaffiliated customemyrbe adversely affected by (i) our relationshithwi
Antero and the fact that a substantial majorityhef capacity of our gathering and compression systgill be
necessary to service Antero’s production and dgweémt and completion schedule and (ii) our desire t

provide services pursuant to fekased contracts. As a result, we may not haveapadity to provide services

to third parties and/or potential thirgharty customers may prefer to obtain services @msto other forms of
contractual arrangements under which we would geired to assume direct commodity exposure.

We will be required to make substantial capital expnditures to increase our asset base. If we are usla
to obtain needed capital or financing on satisfacty terms, our ability to make cash distributions may be
diminished or our financial leverage could increase

In order to increase our asset base, we will neenake expansion capital expenditures. If we do not
make sufficient or effective expansion capital exgitures, we will be unable to expand our busirggssations
and, as a result, we will be unable to raise thellef our future cash distributions. To fund oMpansion
capital expenditures and investment capital experel, we will be required to use cash from ouratens or
incur borrowings. Alternatively, we may sell addital common units or other securities to fund @pital
expenditures. Such uses of cash from our operatwiheeduce cash available for distribution to our
unitholders. Our ability to obtain bank financingawr ability to access the capital markets foufatequity or
debt offerings may be limited by our or Antero'sdncial condition at the time of any such finanaimg
offering and the covenants in our existing debeagrents, as well as by general economic conditions,
contingencies and uncertainties that are beyondanirol. Even if we are successful in obtaining tlecessary
funds, the terms of such financings could limit ability to pay distributions to our unitholders. addition,
incurring additional debt may significantly increasur interest expense and financial leveragejssuing
additional limited partner interests may resulsignificant unitholder dilution and would increabe aggregate

amount of cash required to maintain the thearrent distribution rate, which could materiallgadease our

ability to pay distributions at the prevailing dibution rate. Neither Antero, our general partoeany of their
respective affiliates is committed to providing atisect or indirect support to fund our growth.
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Our option to purchase Antero’s fresh water distribution systems, our right-of -first —offer agreement

with Antero for gas processing services and our rigf to participate in the Regional Gathering Systenare
subject to risks and uncertainty, and thus may noenhance our ability to grow our business.

Antero has granted us an option to purchase ih fneater distribution systems at fair market valoe.
addition, pursuant to our righof —first —offer agreement, Antero has agreed, subject taiceeceptions, not
to procure any gas processing or NGLs fractionati@msportation or marketing services with respedts
production (other than production subject to a-risting dedication) without first offering us thght to
provide such services. The development of gas psirg infrastructure in connection with the exex@$ our
right —of —first —offer will depend upon, among other things, outighio obtain financing on acceptable terms

for the construction of such facilities and ourliépto provide such services on the same or bétens than
third parties. We can offer no assurance that wiebeiable to successfully develop processing stftecture
pursuant to these rights. Additionally, Antero islar no obligation to accept any offer made by us.

Furthermore, for a variety of reasons, we may denit to exercise these rights when they becomitabla

We have a right to participate for up to a 15% roperating equity interest in the Regional Gathering

System that will expire six months following thetelan which the Regional Gathering System is plactd
service, which is currently scheduled to occurmigithe fourth quarter of 2015. We have not deteechito
what extent, if any, we would exercise this optidfe can offer no assurance that our participaticiie
Regional Gathering System, if we exercise the optigll enhance our cash flows or ability to pay
distributions.

Our gathering and compression systems are concented in the Appalachian Basin, making us
vulnerable to risks associated with operating in o@ major geographic area.

We rely primarily on revenues generated from gaitigeaind compression systems that we own, which
are located in the Marcellus and Utica Shales. fesalt of this concentration, we may be disprdpaostely
exposed to the impact of regional supply and denfactdrs, delays or interruptions of productiomfravells
in this area caused by governmental regulationketdimitations or interruption of the processing o
transportation of natural gas, NGLs or oil.

The amount of cash we have available for distributin to our unitholders depends primarily on our cash
flow and not solely on profitability, which may prevent us from making distributions, even during
periods in which we record net income.

You should be aware that the amount of cash we aaaiable for distribution depends primarily
upon our cash flow and not solely on profitabilityhich will be affected by noacash items. As a result, we

may make cash distributions during periods whemegerd a net loss for financial accounting purppaed
conversely, we might fail to make cash distribusialuring periods when we record net income formfaial
accounting purposes.

Our construction or purchase of new gathering and empression, processing or other assets may not
result in revenue increases and may be subject tegulatory, environmental, political, legal and ecoomic
risks, which could adversely affect our cash flowsgesults of operations and financial condition andas a
result, our ability to distribute cash to our unitholders.

The construction of additions or modifications ta existing systems and the construction or purehas
of new assets involves numerous regulatory, enmiental, political and legal uncertainties beyond aantrol
and may require the expenditure of significant ami®wf capital. Financing may not be available on
economically acceptable terms or at all. If we utadee these projects, we may not be able to compihetm on
schedule, at the budgeted cost or at all. Moreawgrrevenues may not increase immediately upon the
expenditure of funds on a particular project. Fstance, if we build a processing facility, the stomction may
occur over an extended period of time, and we nudyateive any material increases in revenues tnatil
project is completed. Moreover, we may construcilifees to capture anticipated future productigowgth in
an area in which such growth does not materiahzea result, new gathering and compression, praupss
other assets may not be able to attract enoughdghput to achieve our expected investment retuhmgtw
could adversely affect our results of operationd famancial condition. In addition,
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the construction of additions to our existing as$eay require us to obtain new rightsf —~way prior to

constructing new pipelines or facilities. We mayup@ble to timely obtain such rightsf -way to connect
new natural gas supplies to our existing gathepipglines or capitalize on other attractive expansi
opportunities. Additionally, it may become more erpive for us to obtain new rightsf ~way or to expand

or renew existing rightsof ~way. If the cost of renewing or obtaining new righof —way increases, our cash
flows could be adversely affected.

A shortage of equipment and skilled labor in the Apalachian Basin could reduce equipment availability
and labor productivity and increase labor and equipnent costs, which could have a material adverse
effect on our business and results of operations.

Gathering and compression services require spegiapment and laborers skilled in multiple
disciplines, such as equipment operators, mechand®ngineers, among others. If we experiencdades of
necessary equipment or skilled labor in the futaue,labor and equipment costs and overall proditgttould
be materially and adversely affected. If our equeptror labor prices increase or if we experienctenally
increased health and benefit costs for employaesesults of operations could be materially andeaskly
affected.

If third -party pipelines or other midstream facilities interconnected to our gathering and compression

systems become partially or fully unavailable, oubperating margin, cash flow and ability to make cas
distributions to our unitholders could be adverselyaffected.

Our gathering and compression assets connect ¢o pitpelines or facilities owned and operated by
unaffiliated third parties. The continuing operatiaf third —party pipelines, compressor stations and other
midstream facilities is not within our control. ®eepipelines, plants and other midstream facilitiey become
unavailable because of testing, turnarounds, Bpair, maintenance, reduced operating pressutepfac
operating capacity, regulatory requirements anthdarents of receipt or deliveries due to insuffiti capacity
or because of damage from severe weather condiioother operational issues. In addition, if thets to us

to access and transport on these thpdrty pipelines significantly increase, our prdjitiy could be reduced.

If any such increase in costs occurs or if anyhese pipelines or other midstream facilities becamsble to
receive or transport natural gas, our operatinggmacash flow and ability to make cash distribntido our
unitholders could be adversely affected.

Our exposure to commodity price risk may change ovdime.

We currently generate all of our revenues purst@afée-based contracts under which we are paid
based on the volumes that we gather and compedbgythan the underlying value of the commodity.
Consequently, our existing operations and cashsfloawve little direct exposure to commodity prickri
Although we intend to enter into similar febased contracts with new customers in the futwregéforts to
negotiate such contractual terms may not be sutdebsaddition, we may acquire or develop additib
midstream assets in a manner that increases oas@sgpto commaodity price risk. Future exposuréo t
volatility of natural gas, NGL and oil prices, esiadly in light of the recent declines, could havenaterial
adverse effect on our business, results of ope&imaod financial condition and, as a result, oulitalbo make
cash distributions to our unitholders.

Restrictions in our revolving credit facility could adversely affect our business, financial condition
results of operations and ability to make quarterlycash distributions to our unitholders.

Our revolving credit facility limits our ability tcamong other things:

« incur or guarantee additional debt;

« redeem or repurchase units or make distributiogieuoertain circumstances;
« make certain investments and acquisitions;

« incur certain liens or permit them to exist;
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« enterinto certain types of transactions with &ffds;

« merge or consolidate with another company; and

» transfer, sell or otherwise dispose of assets.

Our revolving credit facility also contains covetmrequiring us to maintain certain financial ratio
Our ability to meet those financial ratios andgtestn be affected by events beyond our controlywandannot
assure you that we will meet any such ratios asis tédditionally, we may not be able to borrow thi¢
amount of commitments under our revolving crediility if doing so would cause us to not meet afinial
covenant.

The provisions of our revolving credit facility majfect our ability to obtain future financing and
pursue attractive business opportunities and ewitfllity in planning for, and reacting to, change$usiness
conditions. In addition, a failure to comply wittet provisions of our revolving credit facility caulesult in a
default or an event of default that could enablelenders to declare the outstanding principahat tlebt,
together with accrued and unpaid interest, to beadiately due and payable. If the payment of obt de
accelerated, our assets may be insufficient toyrepeh debt in full, and our unitholders could eigrece a
partial or total loss of their investment. Pleasad “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fir@nc
Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity arapffal Resources.”

If our assets become subject to FERC regulation dederal, state or local regulations or policies chage ,
or if we fail to comply with market behavior rules, our financial condition, results of operations andcash
flows could be materially and adversely affected.

Our gathering and transportation operations arenpkérom regulation by the FERC, under the NGA.
Section 1(b) of the NGA, exempts natural gas gaigdacilities from regulation by the FERC undee tHGA.
Although the FERC has not made any formal detertizing with respect to any of our facilities, weibeé
that the natural gas pipelines in our gatheringesys meet the traditional tests the FERC has usesdtablish
whether a pipeline is a gathering pipeline notsabjo FERC jurisdiction. The distinction between

FERC-regulated transmission services and federally ulaégd gathering services, however, has been the
subject of substantial litigation, and the FERCed®mines whether facilities are gathering facilitiesa
case-by -case basis, so the classification and regulatimuofjathering facilities may be subject to change

based on future determinations by the FERC, thetgoor Congress. If the FERC were to consideisthaus of
an individual facility and determine that the fégilr services provided by it are not exempt frBERC
regulation under the NGA, the rates for, and teams conditions of, services provided by such fgciliould
be subject to regulation by the FERC under the NiGthe NGPA. Such regulation could decrease revenue
increase operating costs, and, depending uporatiléyf in question, could adversely affect ouruiés of
operations and cash flows.

State regulation of natural gas gathering facfitiad intrastate transportation pipelines generally
includes various safety, environmental and, in soireamstances, nondiscriminatory take and common

purchaser requirements, as well as compldiaised rate regulation. Other state regulationsmoagirectly

apply to our business, but may nonetheless affiecavailability of natural gas for purchase, corapi@n and
sale.

Moreover, FERC regulations indirectly impact ousimesses and the markets for products derived
from these businesses. The FERC's policies andipeacacross the range of its natural gas regylator
activities, including, for example, its policies open access transportation, market manipulataianraking,
gas quality, capacity release and market centengtion, indirectly affect the intrastate naturas gaarket.
Should we fail to comply with any applicable FER@ranistered statutes, rules, regulations and ordezs
could be subject to substantial penalties and fiwbgh could have a material adverse effect onresults of
operations and cash flows. The FERC has civil fggraithority under the NGA and NGPA to impose pgesl
for current violations of up to $1,000,000 per flalyeach violation and disgorgement of profits assted with
any violation.

For more information regarding federal and statgilaion of our operations, please read “Business—
Regulation of Operations.”
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Increased regulation of hydraulic fracturing could result in reductions or delays in natural gas, NGLs
and oil production by our customers, which could reluce the throughput on our gathering and
compression systems, which could adversely impaatiiorevenues.

All of Antero’s natural gas, NGLs and oil productits being developed from unconventional sources,
such as shale formations. These reservoirs refudraulic fracturing completion processes to redghe
liquids and natural gas from the rock so it camvftrough casing to the surface. Hydraulic fractgris a well
stimulation process that utilizes large volumesvafer and sand (or other proppant) combined wibtéring
chemical additives that are pumped at high pregsuceack open previously impenetrable rock toasée
hydrocarbons. Hydraulic fracturing is typically tegted by state oil and gas commissions and simgancies.
Some states, including those in which we operatee ladopted, and other states are consideringiadppt
regulations that could impose more stringent dsale and/or well construction requirements on hyiglra
fracturing operations. In addition, various studies currently underway by the U.S. Environmentatéttion
Agency, or the EPA, and other federal agenciesamitg the potential environmental impacts of hutlca
fracturing activities. At the same time, certaivieonmental groups have suggested that additiaves Imay be
needed to more closely and uniformly regulate §drdwlic fracturing process, and legislation hasrbe
proposed by some members of Congress to provideufdr regulation. We cannot predict whether anfj suc
legislation will ever be enacted and if so, whatgitovisions would be. If additional levels of région and
permits were required through the adoption of reamsland regulations at the federal or state I¢vat,could
lead to delays, increased operating costs and ggqehibitions that could reduce the volumesafitis and
natural gas that move through our gathering systarieh in turn could materially adversely affectro
revenues and results of operations.

Antero or any third —party customers may incur significant liability under, or costs and expenditures to

comply with, environmental and worker health and sé&ety regulations, which are complex and subject to
frequent change.

As an owner, lessee or operator of gathering pipsland compressor stations, we are subject to
various stringent federal, state, provincial anchldaws and regulations relating to the dischafgmaterials
into, and protection of, the environment. Numergagernmental authorities, such as the EPA and goak
state agencies, have the power to enforce compliaith these laws and regulations and the persstsed
under them, oftentimes requiring difficult and dpsesponse actions. These laws and regulationsimpgse
various obligations that are applicable to our andcustomer’s operations, including the acquisitid permits
to conduct regulated activities, the incurrenceagdital or operating expenditures to limit or pretvesleases of
materials from our or our customers’ operations,ithposition of specific standards addressing worke
protection, and the imposition of substantial lidieis and remedial obligations for pollution omtamination
resulting from our and our customer’s operatiorglufe to comply with these laws, regulations ardhits
may result in joint and several, strict liabilitpchthe assessment of administrative, civil and icrnpenalties,
the imposition of remedial obligations, and thei&sce of injunctions limiting or preventing someatirof our
operations. Private parties, including the ownéith@ properties through which our gathering systgass and
facilities where wastes resulting from our openagiare taken for reclamation or disposal, may laéa@ the

right to pursue legal actions to enforce compliamsewell as to seek damages for reompliance, with

environmental laws and regulations or for persamjaty or property damage. We may not be able tover
all or any of these costs from insurance. In addjtive may experience a delay in obtaining or keblento
obtain required permits, which may cause it to lostential and current customers, interrupt itsrapens and
limit its growth and revenues, which in turn coalfiect our profitability. There is no assurance ttfzanges in
or additions to public policy regarding the protectof the environment will not have a significamipact on
our operations and profitability.

Our operations also pose risks of environmentallitg due to leakage, migration, releases or spill
from our operations to surface or subsurface smilface water or groundwater. Certain environniéates
impose strict as well as joint and several liapildr costs required to remediate and restore sitesre
hazardous substances, hydrocarbons, or solid wiaatesbeen stored or released. We may be required t
remediate contaminated properties currently or éstynoperated by us or facilities of third partteat received
waste generated by our operations regardless ahehsuch contamination resulted from the condtiotlwers
or from consequences of our own actions that wemmmpliance with all applicable laws at the tirede
actions were taken. In addition, claims for damaggsersons or property, including natural resosiroeay
result from the environmental, health and safetydnts of our operations. Moreover, public inteneshe
protection of the environment has increased draralitiin recent years. The trend of
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more expansive and stringent environmental legisisind regulations applied to the crude oil antin gas
industry could continue, resulting in increasedsas$ doing business and consequently affectindjtplmlity.
Please read “Business—Regulation of Environmemtdl@ccupational Safety and Health Matters” for more
information.

Climate change laws and regulations restricting enssions of “greenhouse gases” could result in incrsed
operating costs and reduced demand for the naturajas that we gather while potential physical effectsf
climate change could disrupt our production and cage us to incur significant costs in preparing for o
responding to those effects.

In response to findings that emissions of carboride, methane and other greenhouse gases, or
GHGs, present an endangerment to public healtitendnvironment, the EPA has adopted regulatiodsmun
existing provisions of the federal Clean Air Acathamong other things, establish Prevention ofiSgnt
Deterioration, or PSD, construction and Title V @i?ng permit reviews for certain large stationaoyrces
that are already potential sources of conventipoflitants. Facilities required to obtain PSD pésrfor their
GHG emissions also will be required to meet “bestilable control technology” standards that will be

established by the states or, in some cases, yRAeon a caseby -case basis. These EPA rulemakings

could adversely affect our operations and restrictelay our ability to obtain air permits for newmodified
sources. In addition, the EPA has adopted rulegiriag the monitoring and reporting of GHG emissidrom
specified onshore and offshore oil and gas prodoaources in the U.S. on an annual basis. We anianing
GHG emissions from our operations in accordanck thie GHG emissions reporting rule. While Congless
from time to time considered legislation to redeogissions of GHGs, there has not been significetitity in
the form of adopted legislation to reduce GHG einissat the federal level in recent years. In theeace of
such federal climate legislation, a number of st regional efforts have emerged that are airh&deking
and/or reducing GHG emissions by means of capragle fprograms that typically require major sounfes
GHG emissions, such as electric power plants, qoiee and surrender emission allowances in retorn f
emitting those GHGs. If Congress undertakes congm&lie tax reform in the coming year, it is possiblat
such reform may include a carbon tax, which comldase additional direct costs on operations andced
demand for refined products. In any event, the Gbadministration announced its Climate Action Rtan
2013, which, among other things, directs federahages to develop a strategy for the reduction ethane
emissions, including emissions from the oil andigdsistry. As part of the Climate Action Plan, thbama
Administration also announced that it intends togicadditional regulations to reduce emissions efhrane
and other GHGs and also rules to encourage gresgeof low carbon technologies sometime in 2015.
Although it is not possible at this time to predicw legislation or new regulations that may bepa€d to
address GHG emissions would impact our businegssach future laws and regulations imposing repgrti
obligations on, or limiting emissions of GHGs froour equipment and operations could require usduori
costs to reduce emissions of GHGs associated witloerations. Substantial limitations on GHG einiss
could also adversely affect demand for the naymalwe gather. Finally, it should be noted thatessnientists
have concluded that increasing concentrations 06&Hh the Earth’s atmosphere may produce climaaeghs
that have significant physical effects, such asdased frequency and severity of storms, floodscdinelr
climatic events; if any such effects were to octiuey could have an adverse effect on our expmmaind
production operations.

We may incur significant costs and liabilities as aesult of pipeline integrity management program
testing and any related pipeline repair or preventtive or remedial measures.

The United States Department of Transportatiol@f, has adopted regulations requiring pipeline
operators to develop integrity management progfamsansportation pipelines located where a leafupture
could do the most harm in “high consequence ard®"regulations require operators to:

« perform ongoing assessments of pipeline integrity;

» identify and characterize applicable threats t@juig segments that could impact a high
consequence are

« improve data collection, integration and analysis;

» repair and remediate the pipeline as necessary; and

« implement preventive and mitigating actions.
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The Pipeline Safety, Regulatory Certainty and Joga@ion Act of 2011, or the 2011 Pipeline Safety
Act, among other things, increased the maximum pamalty for pipeline safety violations and diexdtthe
Secretary of Transportation to promulgate rulestandards relating to expanded integrity management

requirements, automatic or remeteontrolled valve use, excess flow valve use, legtkction system

installation and testing to confirm the materiaésgth of pipe operating above 30% of specifiedimim

yield strength in high consequence areas. Consigiiinthe 2011 Pipeline Safety Act,, the Pipeliaas!
Hazardous Materials Safety Administration, or PHM$8Aalized rules consistent with the signed aet th
increased the maximum administrative civil penalf@r violations of the pipeline safety laws andukations
to $200,000 per violation per day, with a maximuin$®,000,000 for a related series of violationso®d our
operations fail to comply with DOT or comparablatstregulations, we could be subject to substapéiahlties
and fines. Additionally, in May 2011, PHMSA publetha final rule adding reporting obligations antgmuity

management standards to certain rurald@ivess hazardous liquid pipelines that were natipusly regulated
in such manner.

PHMSA has also published advanced notices of pexpagemaking to solicit comments on the need
for changes to its safety regulations, includingthler to extend the integrity management requirésnen
additional types of facilities pipelines, such ashgring pipelines and related facilities. Addiadiy, in 2012,
PHMSA issued an advisory bulletin providing guidamn the verification of records related to pipelin
maximum allowable operating pressure, which coekllt in additional requirements for the pressastitig of
pipelines or the reduction of maximum operatingspuges. The adoption of these and other laws otatgns
that apply more comprehensive or stringent safetydards could require us to install new or modiBafety
controls, pursue new capital projects, or conduaintenance programs on an accelerated basis, ahioh
could require us to incur increased operationaiscibst could be significant. While we cannot pcettie
outcome of legislative or regulatory initiativesch legislative and regulatory changes could haveterial
effect on our cash flow. Please read “Business—pip&afety Regulation” for more information.

Our business involves many hazards and operationaiksks, some of which may not be fully covered by
insurance. The occurrence of a significant acciderdr other event that is not fully insured could cutail
our operations and have a material adverse effechoour ability to distribute cash and, accordingly,the
market price for our common units.

Our operations are subject to all of the hazartsrient in the gathering and compression of natural
gas, including:

» unintended breach of impoundment and downstreandiihg, release of invasive species or
aquatic pathogens, hazardous spills near intakeqdrucking collision, vandalism, excessive
road damage or bridge collapse and unauthorizessacwr use of automation contre

« damage to pipelines, compressor stations, pumipissaimpoundments, related equipment and
surrounding properties caused by natural disasdets,of terrorism and acts of third parti

« damage from construction, farm and utility equiptresnwell as other subsurface activity (for
example, mine subsidenc:

« leaks of natural gas, NGLs or oil or losses of radtgas, NGLs or oil as a result of the
malfunction of equipment or facilitie

» fires, ruptures and explosions;

« other hazards that could also result in personathirand loss of life, pollution and suspension of
operations; an

» hazards experienced by other operators that magtadtir operations by instigating increased
regulations and oversigt
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Any of these risks could adversely affect our &pild conduct operations or result in substantas|
to us as a result of claims for:

« injury or loss of life;

- damage to and destruction of property, naturaless and equipment;

« pollution and other environmental damage;

« regulatory investigations and penalties;

« suspension of our operations; and

« repair and remediation costs.

We may elect not to obtain insurance for any oofithese risks if we believe that the cost of klde
insurance is excessive relative to the risks ptesetn addition, pollution and environmental riglenerally
are not fully insurable under policies we are cedaunder, and neither we nor Antero Investmentwrbehalf
have obtained pollution insurance. The occurreri@e@vent that is not fully covered by insuranoald have
a material adverse effect on our business, findooiadition and results of operations.

We do not own all of the land on which our pipeline and facilities are located, which could result in
disruptions to our operations.

We do not own all of the land on which our pipetirend facilities have been constructed, and we are,
therefore, subject to the possibility of more ommsrterms or increased costs to retain necessatyusaif we

do not have valid rightsof —way or if such rights-of -way lapse or terminate. We obtain the rights to
construct and operate our pipelines on land ownyethibd parties and governmental agencies for aifipe
period of time. Our loss of these rights, through inability to renew right-of -way contracts or otherwise,

could have a material adverse effect on our busjmesults of operations, financial condition abdity to
make cash distributions to you.

The loss of key personnel could adversely affect oability to operate.

We depend on the services of a relatively smaligraf our general partner’'s senior management and
technical personnel. We do not maintain, nor dplae to obtain, any insurance against the losspfad these
individuals. The loss of the services of our gehpaatner’'s senior management or technical perdpnne
including Paul M. Rady, Chairman and Chief Exeai®fficer, and Glen C. Warren, Jr., President ahi@iC
Financial Officer, could have a material advergeatfon our business, financial condition and rssod
operations.

We do not have any officers or employees and relplely on officers of our general partner and
employees of Antero.

We are managed and operated by the board of diseat@ur general partner. Affiliates of Antero
conduct businesses and activities of their ownhictvwe have no economic interest. As a resultetbeuld
be material competition for the time and efforttud officers and employees who provide servicesito
general partner and Antero. If our general paramgt the officers and employees of Antero do nobtiev
sufficient attention to the management and operaifamur business, our financial results may sufied our
ability to make distributions to our unitholdersyrze reduced.
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Debt we incur in the future may limit our flexibili ty to obtain financing and to pursue other business
opportunities.

Our future level of debt could have important capances to us, including the following:

« our ability to obtain additional financing, if nexsary, for working capital, capital expenditures
(including required drilling pad connections andlwennections pursuant to our gathering and
compression agreements as well as acquisitionsther purposes may be impaired or such
financing may not be available on favorable ter

« our funds available for operations, future busirggsortunities and distributions to unitholders
will be reduced by that portion of our cash flowgue&ed to make interest payments on our d

« we may be more vulnerable to competitive pressor@sdownturn in our business or the
economy generally; ar

« our flexibility in responding to changing businessl economic conditions may be limited.

Our ability to service our debt will depend upomamg other things, our future financial and opeigati
performance, which will be affected by prevailingpaomic conditions and financial, business, reguaand
other factors, some of which are beyond our contf@ur operating results are not sufficient toviee any
future indebtedness, we will be forced to takeamgtisuch as reducing distributions, reducing caydey our
business activities, investments or capital expenes, selling assets or issuing equity. We maybeaible to
effect any of these actions on satisfactory termet all.

Terrorist attacks or cyber —attacks could have a material adverse effect on olousiness, financial
condition or results of operations.

Terrorist attacks or cyberattacks may significantly affect the energy indysincluding our
operations and those of our customers, as welkéasrgl economic conditions, consumer confidence and
spending and market liquidity. Strategic targeatshsas energyrelated assets, may be at greater risk of future

attacks than other targets in the United Statesif@urance may not protect us against such oaucese
Consequently, it is possible that any of these wetwges, or a combination of them, could have &nst
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

Risks Inherent in an Investment in Us

Antero, our general partner and their respective dfliates, including Antero Investment, which owns ar
general partner, have conflicts of interest with usand limited duties to us and our unitholders, andhey
may favor their own interests to the detriment of & and our other common unitholders.

Antero Investment indirectly owns and controls ganeral partner and appoints all of the officerd an
directors of our general partner. All of the offisand a majority of the directors of our geneseatmer are
officers or directors of Antero Investment. Simijarll of the officers and a majority of the ditecs of our
general partner are also officers or directors ofefo. Although our general partner has a duty amage us in
a manner that is beneficial to us and our unithsldie directors and officers of our general partrave a
fiduciary duty to manage our general partner inaaner that is beneficial to its owner, Antero Iragsnt.
Further, our general partner’s directors and offiagho are also directors and officers of Antereeha
fiduciary duty to manage Antero in a manner thdtaeeficial to Antero. Conflicts of interest willise between
Antero, Antero Investment and our general partoeithe one hand, and us and our common unitholderdhe
other hand. In resolving these conflicts of intgrear general partner may favor its own
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interests and the interests of Antero Investmem{riero over our interests and the interests ofumitholders.
These conflicts include the following situationsy@ng others:

» actions taken by our general partner may affecatheunt of cash available to pay distributior
unitholders or accelerate the right to convert sdinated units

« the directors and officers of Antero Investmentéavfiduciary duty to make decisions in the best
interests of the owners of Antero Investment, whiwhy be contrary to our interes

« the directors and officers of Antero have a fidogiduty to make decisions in the best interests of
the owners of Antero, which may be contrary to ioterests

« our general partner is allowed to take into accob@tnterests of parties other than us, such as
Antero Investment, in exercising certain rights endur partnership agreeme

« exceptin limited circumstances, our general patias the power and authority to conduct our
business without unitholder approv

« our general partner may cause us to borrow fundsdar to permit the payment of cash
distributions,

« our general partner determines the amount and gimfirasset purchases and sales, borrowings,
issuances of additional partnership securitiesthadevel of reserves, each of which can affec
amount of cash that is distributed to our unithdg

« our general partner determines the amount and giwfirany capital expenditure and whether a
capital expenditure is classified as a maintenaapital expenditure, which reduces operating
surplus, or an expansion capital expenditure, wHimds not reduce operating surplus, and this
determination can affect the amount of cash froerajing surplus that is distributed to our
unitholders which, in turn, may affect the abilidfthe subordinated units owned by Antero to
convert;

« our partnership agreement limits the liability afid replaces the duties owed by, our general
partner and also restricts the remedies availabbeit unitholders for actions that, without the
limitations, might constitute breaches of fiduciauty;

« common unitholders have no right to enforce obiaget of our general partner and its affiliates
under agreements with L

« contracts between us, on the one hand, and ourajgreatner and its affiliates, on the other, are

not and will not be the result of arm*ength negotiations;

o exceptin limited circumstances, our general partias the power and authority to conduct our
business without unitholder approv

« our partnership agreement permits us to distribptéo $75.0 million as operating surplus, even if
it is generated from asset sales, r@rorking capital borrowings or other sources thatiigo

otherwise constitute capital surplus, which maysed to fund distributions on our subordinated
units or the incentive distribution right

« our general partner determines which costs incuryed and its affiliates (including Antero) are
reimbursable by u
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» our partnership agreement does not restrict ouergépartner from causing us to pay it or its
affiliates for any services rendered to us or éndgeinto additional contractual arrangements with
its affiliates on our behal
« our general partner intends to limit its liabiliggarding our contractual and other obligations;
« our general partner may exercise its right toaatl purchase common units if it and its affiliates
(including Antero) own more than 80% of the comnumiits;
« our general partner controls the enforcement afabibns that it and its affiliates (including
Antero) owe to us
« We may not choose to retain separate counsel fsetues or for the holders of common units;
- our general partner’s affiliates may compete wihand neither our general partner nor its
affiliates have any obligation to present busirmgortunities to us; ar
« the holder or holders of our incentive distributiaghts may elect to cause us to issue common
units to it in connection with a resetting of intiea distribution levels without the approval ofri
unitholders, which may result in lower distributsoto our common unitholders in certain
situations.
Ongoing cost reimbursements due to our general parer and its affiliates for services provided, which
are determined by our general partner, will be subntial and will reduce our cash available for
distribution to our unitholders.

Prior to making distributions on our common unitg, reimburse our general partner and its affiliates
for all expenses they incur on our behalf. Thegmeases include all costs incurred by our generdhepaand
its affiliates in managing and operating us, inéhgdcosts for rendering administrative staff andpmart
services to us and reimbursements paid by our gepartner to Antero for customary management am gl
administrative services. There is no limit on theoant of expenses for which our general partneritsnd
affiliates may be reimbursed under the servicesagent. Our partnership agreement provides thagengral
partner determines the expenses that are allot@blkein good faith. In addition, under Delawaretparship
law, our general partner has unlimited liability fur obligations, such as our debts and envirorahen
liabilities, except for our contractual obligatictiat are expressly made without recourse to onemge partner.
To the extent our general partner incurs obligation our behalf, we are obligated to reimbursedeinnify it.
If we are unable or unwilling to reimburse or indefy our general partner, our general partner nadg t
actions to cause us to make payments of theseatiblig and liabilities. Any such payments coulduaathe
amount of cash otherwise available for distributiour unitholders.

We expect to distribute a significant portion of ou cash available for distribution to our partners, which
could limit our ability to grow and make acquisitions.

We plan to distribute most of our cash availabledistribution, which may cause our growth to
proceed at a slower pace than that of businesaéseinvest their cash to expand ongoing operatiboshe
extent we issue additional units in connection \aitly acquisitions or expansion capital expenditutes
payment of distributions on those additional unitsy increase the risk that we will be unable tontzan or
increase our per unit distribution level. There modimitations in our partnership agreement onathility to
issue additional units, including units rankingiseto the common units. In addition, the incurremé
commercial borrowings or other debt to finance gnawth strategy would result in increased inteexgtense,
which, in turn, may reduce the cash that we haedale to distribute to our unitholders.
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Our partnership agreement replaces our general parter’s fiduciary duties to holders of our units with
contractual standards governing its duties.

Our partnership agreement contains provisionsdtiainate and replace the fiduciary standards to
which our general partner would otherwise be hegldtate fiduciary duty law. For example, our parshé
agreement permits our general partner to make deauof decisions, in its individual capacity, apoged to
in its capacity as our general partner, or otheewiee of fiduciary duties to us and our unithotdether than
the implied contractual covenant of good faith &iddealing, which means that a court will enfotce
reasonable expectations of the parties where tiggibge in our partnership agreement does not prdeida
clear course of action. This entitles our geneaatner to consider only the interests and factoasit desires,
and it has no duty or obligation to give any coasidion to any interest of, or factors affecting, our affiliates
or our limited partners. Examples of decisions thatgeneral partner may make in its individualazty
include:

« how to allocate business opportunities among ustarather affiliates;

» whether to exercise its limited call right;

« how to exercise its voting rights with respectte tinits it owns;

« whether to exercise its registration rights;

« whether to elect to reset target distribution leyahd

« whether or not to consent to any merger or conatitid of the partnership or amendment to the

partnership agreemei

Unitholders are treated as having consented tprilvsions in the partnership agreement, including

the provisions discussed above.

Our partnership agreement designates the Court of Bancery of the State of Delaware as the exclusive
forum for certain types of actions and proceedingthat may be initiated by our unitholders, which limits
our unitholders’ ability to choose the judicial forum for disputes with us or our general partner’s
directors, officers or other employees. Our partneship agreement also provides that any unitholder
bringing an unsuccessful action will be obligateda reimburse us for any costs we have incurred in
connection with such unsuccessful action.

Our partnership agreement provides that, with oefiaited exceptions, the Court of Chancery of the
State of Delaware will be the exclusive forum fay &laims, suits, actions or proceedings (1) agisiat of or
relating in any way to our partnership agreemantl(iding any claims, suits or actions to interpagiply or
enforce the provisions of our partnership agreeroettie duties, obligations or liabilities amongited
partners or of limited partners to us, or the right powers of, or restrictions on, the limitedtpars or us),
(2) brought in a derivative manner on our beh8lf,asserting a claim of breach of a duty owed hydirector,
officer or other employee of us or our generalmantor owed by our general partner, to us orithédd
partners, (4) asserting a claim arising pursuaangoprovision of the Delaware Revised Uniform Lt
Partnership Act (the “Delaware Act”) or (5) assagta claim against us governed by the internalraffa
doctrine. In addition, if any unitholder brings amfythe aforementioned claims, suits, actions ocpedings
and such person does not obtain a judgment on ¢nisnthat substantially achieves, in substancesamount,
the full remedy sought, then such person shalldligated to reimburse us and our affiliates forfedls, costs
and expenses of every kind and description, inolyi@iut not limited to all reasonable attorneyssfaad other
litigation expenses, that the parties may incurannection with such claim, suit, action or prodegdLimited
partners who own common units irrevocably conseriiése limitations, provisions and potential
reimbursement obligations regarding claims, saitsions or proceedings and submitting to the eiaus
jurisdiction of the Court of Chancery of the Stafdelaware (or such other court) in connectiorhveihy such
claims, suits, actions or proceedings. These piamgsmay have the effect of discouraging lawsugtsiast us
and our general partner’s directors and officers.
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Holders of our common units have limited voting ridnts and are not entitled to elect our general parter
or its directors, which could reduce the price at vaich our common units will trade.

Compared to the holders of common stock in a catpmr, unitholders have limited voting rights and,
therefore, limited ability to influence managemerdecisions regarding our business. Unitholdershaite no
right on an annual or ongoing basis to elect omega partner or its board of directors. The badrdirectors
of our general partner, including the independéngtctors, is chosen entirely by Antero Investmesta result
of it owning our general partner, and not by outhoiders. Please read “ltem 10. Directors, Exe®uti
Officers, and Corporate Governance—Management térarMidstream Partners LP” and “Certain

Relationships and Related Transactions.” Unlikeliplyb-traded corporations, we do not conduct annual

meetings of our unitholders to elect directorsamduct other matters routinely conducted at anmesdtings of
stockholders of corporations. As a result of tHes#ations, the price at which the common unitdl wade
could be diminished because of the absence or tieduaf a takeover premium in the trading price.

Our general partner intends to limit its liability regarding our obligations.

Our general partner intends to limit its liabililpder contractual arrangements between us and third
parties so that the counterparties to such arraagenihave recourse only against our assets, aragawtst our
general partner or its assets. Our general pamagrtherefore cause us to incur indebtedness er oth
obligations that are nonrecourse to our generahparOur partnership agreement provides that atigra
taken by our general partner to limit its liabilis/not a breach of our general partner’s dutiesnef we could
have obtained more favorable terms without thetéitin on liability. In addition, we are obligateml
reimburse or indemnify our general partner to tkiemt that it incurs obligations on our behalf. Asych
reimbursement or indemnification payments wouldicedthe amount of cash otherwise available for
distribution to our unitholders.

Our general partner may elect to cause us to issw®mmon units to it in connection with a resetting bthe
target distribution levels related to its incentivedistribution rights, without the approval of the conflicts
committee of our general partner’s board of directas or the holders of our common units. This could
result in lower distributions to holders of our cormmon units.

Our general partner has the right, as the initiddiér of our incentive distribution rights, at atiiype
when there are no subordinated units outstandidgtdras received incentive distributions at thghleist level
to which it is entitled (50%) for the prior four meecutive fiscal quarters, to reset the initiagj¢gadistribution
levels at higher levels based on our distributianthe time of the exercise of the reset elecmiowing a
reset election by our general partner, the miningquarterly distribution will be adjusted to equat tteset
minimum quarterly distribution, and the target dizsition levels will be reset to correspondinglglér levels
based on percentage increases above the resetuminjuarterly distribution.

If our general partner elects to reset the targgtildution levels, it will be entitled to receigenumber
of common units. The number of common units tosseed to our general partner will equal the nurober
common units that would have entitled our geneaairer to an aggregate quarterly cash distributiche
quarter prior to the reset election equal to ttstrihiution to our general partner on the incentlistribution
rights in the quarter prior to the reset electfe anticipate that our general partner would exerthis reset
right in order to facilitate acquisitions or intafrgrowth projects that would not be sufficientlyceetive to cash
distributions per common unit without such convenmsilt is possible, however, that our general gartould
exercise this reset election at a time when ikgeéencing, or expects to experience, declinghércash
distributions it receives related to its incentilistribution rights and may, therefore, desire éddsued
common units rather than retain the right to reed@icentive distributions based on the initial &rdistribution
levels. This risk could be elevated if our inceatdistribution rights have been transferred toira tharty. As a
result, a reset election may cause our commonaldiths to experience a reduction in the amounashc
distributions that our common unitholders would datherwise received had we not issued new commiis u
to our general partner in connection with resettivegtarget distribution levels. Our general partmay
transfer all or a portion of the incentive disttilbn rights in the future. After any such transfie holder or
holders of a majority of our incentive distributidghts will be entitled to exercise the right eset the target
distribution levels.
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The incentive distribution rights held by our geneal partner may be transferred to a third party with out
unitholder consent.

Our general partner may transfer its incentiverilistion rights to a third party at any time withidbe
consent of our unitholders. If our general partn@nsfers its incentive distribution rights to adiparty but
retains its general partner interest, our geneagthgr (and its owner, Antero Investment) may rastenthe
same incentive to grow our partnership and increaseterly distributions to unitholders over tingeitwould
if it had retained ownership of its incentive distition rights.

Increases in interest rates could adversely impacur unit price and our ability to issue additional equity,
to incur debt to capture growth opportunities or for other purposes, or to make cash distributions abur
intended levels.

If interest rates rise, the interest rates on euolving credit facility, future credit facilitiesnd debt
offerings could be higher than current levels, caysur financing costs to increase accordinglywith other

yield — oriented securities, our unit price is impactedhsylevel of our cash distributions and implied
distribution yield. The distribution yield is oftarsed by investors to compare and rank related yi@liented

securities for investment decisiemaking purposes. Therefore, changes in interess rafther positive or

negative, may affect the yield requirements of gtges who invest in our units, and a rising interate
environment could have an adverse impact on ourpuitie and our ability to issue additional equityjncur
debt to expand or for other purposes, or to makh déstributions at our intended levels.

Our partnership agreement restricts the voting righs of unitholders owning 20% or more of our
common units.

Unitholders’ voting rights are further restricteg the partnership agreement provision providing tha
any units held by a person or group that owns 20%are of any class of units then outstanding, wotihan our
general partner, its affiliates (including Anterthjeir transferees and persons who acquired suthwith the
prior approval of the board of directors of our geai partner, cannot vote on any matter.

Control of our general partner may be transferred b a third party without unitholder consent.

Our general partner may transfer its general panerest to a third party in a merger or in a&g#i
all or substantially all of its assets without ttensent of our unitholders. Furthermore, our pastme
agreement does not restrict the ability of the awioé our general partner from transferring albhgrortion of
their respective ownership interest in our genpaainer to a third party. The new owners of ouregahpartner
would then be in a position to replace the boardictors and officers of our general partner \itgrown
choices and thereby exert significant control dherdecisions made by the board of directors aficeo$. This
effectively permits a “change of control” withotiet vote or consent of the unitholders.

We may issue additional units, including units thatare senior to the common units, without unitholder
approval, which would dilute our unitholders’ existing ownership interests.

Our partnership agreement does not limit the nurobadditional limited partner interests that we
may issue at any time without the approval of autholders. The issuance by us of additional comumuits
or other equity securities of equal or senior rasiikhave the following effects:

« each unitholder’s proportionate ownership inteiests will decrease;

« the amount of cash available for distribution ooheanit may decrease;

« because a lower percentage of total outstandintg will be subordinated units, the risk that a
shortfall in the payment of the minimum quarterigtdbution will be borne by our common
unitholders will increase

« the ratio of taxable income to distributions magrease;
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- the relative voting strength of each previouslystartding unit may be diminished; and

» the market price of the common units may decline.
There are no limitations in our partnership agreemat on our ability to issue units ranking senior tothe
common units.

In accordance with Delaware law and the provisiinsur partnership agreement, we may issue
additional partnership interests that are senidhéoccommon units in right of distribution, liquigan and
voting. The issuance by us of units of senior naray, among other adverse effects: (i) reduce onietite the
amount of cash available for distribution to oumenon unitholders; (ii) diminish the relative votisttength of
the total common units outstanding as a classgijipsiibordinate the claims of the common unithod® our
assets in the event of our liquidation.

Future sales of common units in the public marketsr otherwise, which sales could have an adverse
impact on the trading price of the common units.

As of February 19, 2015, Antero holds 29,940,95Mmmon units and all 75,940,957 subordinated
units. All of the subordinated units will convemté common units at the end of the subordinatiatodeand
may convert earlier. Additionally, we have agreegtovide Antero with certain registration righpsirsuant to
which we may be required to register the commotsuthey hold under the Securities Act and appliesihte
securities laws. Pursuant to the registration sglgreement and our partnership agreement, we enesgoired
to undertake a future public or private offeringcommon units and use the net proceeds from sdehirgg to
redeem an equal number of common units held byrAnte

In November 2014, we filed a registration statentenEForm S-8 under the Securities Act to register
common units issuable under the Midstream LTIP j&atlio applicable vesting requirements, Rule 144
limitations applicable to affiliates and the exgima of lock-up agreements, common units registered under the

registration statement on Form-8 will be available for resale immediately in thebfic market without
restriction.

Future sales of common units in public or privatrkets could have an adverse impact on the price of
the common units or on any trading market that deyelop.

Our general partner has a limited call right that may require unitholders to sell their common units &an
undesirable time or price.

If at any time our general partner and its affd@fincluding Antero) own more than 80% of the
common units, our general partner will have thatigut not the obligation, which it may assigratty of its
affiliates or to us, to acquire all, but not lelsart all, of the common units held by unaffiliateztgpns at a price
equal to the greater of (i) the average of theydddsing price of the common units over the 2@itrg days
preceding the date three days before notice oteseeof the call right is first mailed and (i) thaghest

per-unit price paid by our general partner or any efiffiliates for common units during the 96ay period

preceding the date such notice is first mailedaAssult, unitholders may be required to sell themmon
units at an undesirable time or price and may ecgire any return or a negative return on theiestment.
Unitholders may also incur a tax liability uponadesof their units. Our general partner is not géniéd to
obtain a fairness opinion regarding the value efdbmmon units to be repurchased by it upon exedfithe
limited call right. There is no restriction in opartnership agreement that prevents our generadgrefrom
issuing additional common units and exercisingiti right. If our general partner exercised itaited call
right, the effect would be to take us private ahthe units were subsequently deregistered, weldvoa longer
be subject to the reporting requirements of thaiBges Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Suair
general partner and its affiliates (including Ajeown an aggregate of 19.7% of our common andfalur
subordinated units. At the end of the subordinapieriod, assuming no additional issuances of fottger than
upon the conversion of the subordinated units) gawmeral partner and its affiliates will own 69.8%our
common units.
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Your liability may not be limited if a court finds that unitholder action constitutes control of our
business.

A general partner of a partnership generally hdisnited liability for the obligations of the
partnership, except for those contractual obligetiof the partnership that are expressly made witfecourse
to the general partner. Our partnership is orgahizeler Delaware law, and we own assets and conduct
business in Pennsylvania, West Virginia and Ohiou ¥ould be liable for any and all of our obligatoas if
you were a general partner if:

« acourt or government agency determined that we wenducting business in a state but had not
complied with that particular st s partnership statute;

« your right to act with other unitholders to remaxrereplace the general partner, to approve <
amendments to our partnership agreement or todtdlez actions under our partnership agree
constitute“contro” of our business

Unitholders may have liability to repay distributions that were wrongfully distributed to them.

Under certain circumstances, unitholders may havegay amounts wrongfully returned or
distributed to them. Under Section 4807 of the Delaware Act, we may not make a distidwuto our
unitholders if the distribution would cause oublidies to exceed the fair value of our assetdalyare law
provides that for a period of three years fromdhe of the impermissible distribution, limited treers who
received the distribution and who knew at the tohthe distribution that it violated Delaware lavillee liable
to the limited partnership for the distribution amt Substituted limited partners are liable fa tibligations
of the assignor to make contributions to the pastmg that are known to the substituted limitediper at the
time it became a limited partner and for unknowhgattions if the liabilities could be determinediin the
partnership agreement. Liabilities to partners aroant of their partnership interest and liabititteat are
non-recourse to the partnership are not counted fquqaas of determining whether a distribution is

permitted.

The price of our common units may fluctuate signiftantly, which could cause you to lose all or partfo
your investment.

The market price of our common units is influenbgdmany factors, some of which are beyond our
control, including:

« our quarterly distributions;

« our quarterly or annual earnings or those of otloenpanies in our industry;

« events affecting Antero;

« announcements by us or our competitors of sigmficantracts or acquisitions;

« changes in accounting standards, policies, guidantpretations or principles;

« general economic conditions;

» the failure of securities analysts to cover our gwn units or changes in financial estimates by
analysts

« future sales of our common units; and

« other factors described in these “Risk Factors.”
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If we fail to develop or maintain an effective sysm of internal controls, we may not be able to accately
report our financial results or prevent fraud. As aresult, current and potential unitholders could Ise
confidence in our financial reporting, which wouldharm our business and the trading price of our unis.

Effective internal controls are necessary for ugrtivide reliable financial reports, prevent fraard
operate successfully as a public company. If waatprovide reliable financial reports or prevematud, our
reputation and operating results would be harmeel cehnot be certain that our efforts to developraathtain
our internal controls will be successful, that wil tae able to maintain adequate controls overfmancial
processes and reporting in the future or that wieb@iable to comply with our obligations under Gt 404 of
the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002. Any failure to depeor maintain effective internal controls, orfatifilties
encountered in implementing or improving our ingrcontrols, could harm our operating results arseaus to
fail to meet our reporting obligations. Ineffectiveernal controls could also cause investors $e lconfidence
in our reported financial information, which woliklely have a negative effect on the trading poteur
units.

For as long as we are an “emerging growth companyyve will not be required to comply with certain
disclosure requirements that apply to other publiccompanies.

We are classified as an “emerging growth compamgen the JOBS Act. For as long as we are an
“emerging growth company,” which may be up to fiu## fiscal years, unlike other public companieg will
not be required to, among other things, (1) proadeuditor’s attestation report on managemenssssnent
of the effectiveness of our system of internal oatver financial reporting pursuant to Sectiod @) of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act, (2) comply with any new requirements pidal by the PCAOB requiring mandatory

audit firm rotation or a supplement to the audi&agport in which the auditor would be requireghtovide
additional information about the audit and the ficial statements of the issuer, (3) provide cenigolosure
regarding executive compensation required of lapgdtic companies or (4) hold nhonbinding advisooyes on
executive compensation. We will remain an “emergjrgvth company” for up to five years, although wié
lose that status sooner if we have more than $illi@nbof revenues in a fiscal year, become a laageelerated

filer or issue more than $1.0 billion of nesonvertible debt over a thregear period.

To the extent that we rely on any of the exemptiwvelable to “emerging growth companies”, you
will receive less information about our executivenpensation and internal control over financiabréipg
than issuers that are not “emerging growth comgahiesome investors find our common units to éssl|
attractive as a result, there may be a less artiding market for our common units and our traginge may
be more volatile.

The New York Stock Exchange does not require a puisly -traded partnership like us to comply with
certain of its corporate governance requirements.

Our common units are listed on the NYSE under ymet®l “AM.” Because we are a publichtraded

partnership, the NYSE does not require us to hawajarity of independent directors on our geneeatier’s
board of directors or to establish a compensationrittee or a nominating and corporate governance
committee. Accordingly, unitholders do not have shene protections afforded to certain corporatthasare
subject to all of the NYSE corporate governanceiregqnents. Please read “Iltem 10. Directors, Exgeuti
Officers, and Corporate Governance—Management ¢érarMidstream Partners LP.”

We incur increased costs as a result of being a plitly -traded partnership.

We had no history operating as a publietyaded partnership prior to our IPO. As a publiefyaded
partnership, we incur significant legal, accountamgl other expenses that we did not incur pri@utolPO. In
addition, the Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, as well as rules implementedh®y SEC and the NYSE, require
publicly —traded entities to adopt various corporate govaragamactices that will further increase our costs.
Before we are able to make distributions to outhaiders, we must first pay or reserve cash foreoqenses,
including the costs of being a publiclraded partnership. As a result, the amount of eashave available

for distribution to our unitholders is affected thye costs associated with being a publigisaded partnership.
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As a result of our IPO, we became subject to tHdipueporting requirements of the Exchange Act.
We expect these rules and regulations to increa$aic of our legal and financial compliance castd to

make activities more timeconsuming and costly. For example, as a resuleocbining a publicly-traded

partnership, we are required to have at least thoependent directors, create an audit committeleaalopt
policies regarding internal controls and disclostoetrols and procedures, including the preparaifmeports
on internal controls over financial reporting. kid&ion, we incur additional costs associated witin SEC
reporting requirements.

We also incur significant expense in order to namtlirector and officer liability insurance. Besau
of the limitations in coverage for directors, ityriae more difficult for us to attract and retairaified persons
to serve on our board or as executive officers.

Tax Risks to Common Unitholders

Our tax treatment depends on our status as a partnship for federal income tax purposes, as well assu
not being subject to a material amount of entity-level taxation. If the IRS were to treat us as a

corporation for federal income tax purposes, or ifve become subject to entity-level taxation for state tax
purposes, our cash available for distribution to ya would be substantially reduced.

The anticipated aftertax economic benefit of an investment in our commnoits depends largely on
our being treated as a partnership for federalnmetax purposes.

Despite the fact that we are organized as a lingtthership under Delaware law, we would be
treated as a corporation for U.S. federal incomeptaposes unless we satisfy a “qualifying income”
requirement. Based upon our current operationdelieve we satisfy the qualifying income requiremnen
While we have requested a ruling from the IRS asgttether income from fresh water distribution seegiis
qualifying income for federal income tax purposes,have not requested, and do not plan to reqaesting
from the IRS on any other matter affecting us.iRgito meet the qualifying income requirement ahange in
current law could cause us to be treated as a @tipo for U.S. federal income tax purposes or otfee
subject us to taxation as an entity.

If we were treated as a corporation for federabime tax purposes, we would pay U.S. federal income
tax on our taxable income at the corporate tax veltéch is currently a maximum of 35%. Distributgoto you
would generally be taxed again as corporate digichs, and no income, gains, losses or deductiansd
flow through to you. Because a tax would be impageoh us as a corporation, our cash available for
distribution to you would be substantially reduc€terefore, treatment of us as a corporation woesdlt in a

material reduction in the anticipated cash flow afidr-tax return to the unitholders, likely causing a
substantial reduction in the value of our commoitsun

Our partnership agreement provides that if a laenicted or existing law is modified or interpreied
a manner that subjects us to taxation as a cofporat otherwise subjects us to entigvel taxation for U.S.

federal, state or local income tax purposes, themim quarterly distribution amount and the target
distribution amounts may be adjusted to reflectitigact of that law on us. We own assets and cdnduc
business in West Virginia, Ohio and Pennsylvanéesal states have been evaluating ways to subject

partnerships to entitylevel taxation through the imposition of state imeg franchise or other forms of

taxation. For example, Ohio imposes a commerci@tiictax of 0.26% on taxable gross receipts véth
“substantial nexus” with Ohio. Imposition of a slaritax on us in other jurisdictions that we mapanxd to
could substantially reduce our cash available fstrithution to you.

The tax treatment of publicly traded partnerships @ an investment in our units could be subject to
potential legislative, judicial or administrative changes and differing interpretations, possibly om
retroactive basis.

The present U.S. federal income tax treatment bfigly traded partnerships, including us, or an
investment in our common units may be modified #mmistrative, legislative or judicial changes dfeting
interpretations at any time. For example, the Obadministration’s budget proposal for fiscal ye@i@
recommends that certain publicly traded partnessegrning income from activities related to foas#ls be
taxed as corporations beginning in 2021. From tiontime, members of Congress propose and considér s
substantive changes to the existing federal incaxéaws that affect publicly traded partnerships.
successful, the Obama administration’s proposatiwer similar proposals could
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eliminate the qualifying income exception to theatment of all publicly-traded partnerships as omafons
upon which we rely for our treatment as a partripridr U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Any modification to the U.S. federal income tax tamay be applied retroactively and could make it
more difficult or impossible for us to meet the egtion for certain publicly traded partnership®éotreated as
partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purpogésare unable to predict whether any of these awng
other proposals will ultimately be enacted. Anylsahanges could negatively impact the value of an
investment in our common units.

If the IRS were to contest the federal income taxgsitions we take, it may adversely impact the marke
for our common units, and the costs of any such ctest would reduce cash available for distribution ®
our unitholders.

The IRS may adopt positions that differ from theaasions of our counsel expressed in this
prospectus or from the positions we take. It mapdeessary to resort to administrative or court@edings to
sustain some or all of our counsel’s conclusiontherositions we take. A court may not agree wittne or
all of our counsel’s conclusions or positions wketaAny contest with the IRS may materially andexdely
impact the market for our common units and theepaicwhich they trade. Moreover, the costs of amtest
between us and the IRS will result in a reductionash available for distribution to our unitholkland thus
will be borne indirectly by our unitholders.

Even if you do not receive any cash distributionsrém us, you will be required to pay taxes on yourtsare
of our taxable income.

You are required to pay federal income taxes andpme cases, state and local income taxes on your
share of our taxable income, whether or not yoeiueccash distributions from us. You may not reeeigsh
distributions from us equal to your share of ouatde income or even equal to the actual tax dom fyou
with respect to that income.

Tax gain or loss on disposition of our common unitsould be more or less than expected.

If you sell your common units, you will recognizgain or loss equal to the difference between the
amount realized and your tax basis in those comumits. Because distributions in excess of yourcallbe
share of our net taxable income decrease yourdsis ln your common units, the amount, if any,wdtsprior
excess distributions with respect to the units sellwill, in effect, become taxable income to ybwou sell
such units at a price greater than your tax badisdse units, even if the price you receive is tegn your
original cost. Furthermore, a substantial portibthe amount realized, whether or not represergaig, may
be taxed as ordinary income due to potential rexaptems, including depreciation recapture. Inithoid,
because the amount realized includes a unitholdbdse of our nonrecourse liabilities, if you selur
common units, you may incur a tax liability in egsef the amount of cash you receive from the sale.

Tax —exempt entities and non-U.S. persons face unique tax issues from owning oaommon units that
may result in adverse tax consequences to them.

Investment in common units by taexempt entities, such as employee benefit plansrafiddual

retirement accounts (known as IRAs), and RbhS. persons raises issues unique to them. Formgam

virtually all of our income allocated to organizats that are exempt from federal income tax, inolgdRAs
and other retirement plans, will be unrelated bessrtaxable income and will be taxable to thenoastions

and/or distributions to nonU.S. persons will be subject to withholding taxeposed at the highest effective
tax rate applicable to such neb.S. persons, and each ned.S. person will be required to file United States
federal tax returns and pay tax on their shareuotaxable income. If you are a tagxempt entity or a

non- U.S. person, you should consult your tax advigfoile investing in our common units.
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We treat each purchaser of common units as havindgé same tax benefits without regard to the common
units actually purchased. The IRS may challenge tkitreatment, which could adversely affect the valuef
the common units.

Because we cannot match transferors and transfefees common units and because of other
reasons, we have adopted depreciation and amastizaasitions that may not conform to all aspeéts o
existing Treasury regulations. Our counsel is umadlopine as to the validity of this approach.uacessful
IRS challenge to those positions could adversdgcathe amount of tax benefits available to yoaldo could
affect the timing of these tax benefits or the antaf gain from your sale of common units and cchdde a
negative impact on the value of our common unitgesult in audit adjustments to your tax returns.

We prorate our items of income, gain, loss and dedtion between transferors and transferees of our
common units each month based upon the ownership ofir common units on the first day of each
month, instead of on the basis of the date a partitar unit is transferred. The IRS may challenge ths
treatment, which could change the allocation of ites of income, gain, loss and deduction among our
unitholders.

We prorate our items of income, gain, loss and diolu between transferors and transferees of our
units each month based upon the ownership of dits an the first day of each month, instead oftemhasis
of the date a particular unit is transferred. The of this proration method may not be permittedienrexisting
Treasury regulations, and, accordingly, our courssaghable to opine as to the validity of this noethThe U.S.
Treasury Department has issued proposed Treasyuat®ns that provide a safe harbor pursuant tichva

publicly —traded partnership may use a similar monthly sifyiplj convention to allocate tax items among

transferor and transferee unitholders. Nonetheteesproposed regulations do not specifically atdecthe use
of the proration method we have adopted. If the WeEe to challenge our proration method or new Juea
regulations were issued, we may be required togddme allocation of items of income, gain, losd an
deduction among our unitholders.

A unitholder whose units are the subject of a secitres loan (e.g., a loan to a “short seller” to cear a
short sale of units) may be considered to have digped of those units. If so, the unitholder would no
longer be treated for tax purposes as a partner wit respect to those units during the period of theolan
and could recognize gain or loss from the dispositn.

Because there are no specific rules governing tlSe fdderal income tax consequence of loaning a
partnership interest, a unitholder whose unitdtaeesubject of a securities loan may be considerédve
disposed of the loaned units. In that case, thinaltier may no longer be treated for tax purposes partner
with respect to those units during the period efltdan to the short seller and the unitholder negpgnize gain
or loss from such disposition. Moreover, during plegiod of the loan, any of our income, gain, loss
deduction with respect to those units may not pentable by the unitholder and any cash distrimstio
received by the unitholder as to those units cbeldully taxable as ordinary income. Unitholdersideg to
assure their status as partners and avoid thefigéin recognition from a securities loan are drgemodify
any applicable brokerage account agreements tahkitrtiineir brokers from borrowing their units.

We have adopted certain valuation methodologies idetermining unitholder’s allocations of income,
gain, loss and deduction. The IRS may challenge tbe methods or the resulting allocations, and such a
challenge could adversely affect the value of ouoomon units.

In determining the items of income, gain, loss daduction allocable to our unitholders, we must
routinely determine the fair market value of owsprective assets. Although we may from time to timesult
with professional appraisers regarding valuatiotens, we make many fair market value estimatesgusi
methodology based on the market value of our comamitis as a means to measure the fair market vdlaar
respective assets. The IRS may challenge thesati@umethods and the resulting allocations of imepgain,
loss and deduction.

A successful IRS challenge to these methods ocatilons could adversely affect the amount, characte
and timing of taxable income or loss being alloddteour unitholders. It also could affect the amioaf gain
from our unitholders’ sale of common units and dduve a negative impact on the value of the comumits
or result in audit adjustments to our unithold¢ax returns without the benefit of additional detituras.

40



Table of Content
The sale or exchange of 50% or more of our capitand profits interests during any twelve-month
period will result in the termination of our partnership for federal income tax purposes.

We will be considered to have terminated for felier@me tax purposes if there is a sale or exchang
of 50% or more of the total interests in our cdmtad profits within a twelvemonth period. As of December

31, 2014, Antero owned 69.7% of the total inter@stsur capital and profits. Therefore, a trangfgrAntero of
all or a portion of its interests in us could, on@unction with the trading of common units heldtbg public,
result in a termination of our partnership for feddéncome tax purposes. For purposes of determiwninether
the 50% threshold has been met, multiple saleseo$ame interest will be counted only once.

Our termination would, among other things, resulthie closing of our taxable year for all unithakle
which would result in us filing two tax returns fone calendar year and could result in a signifidafierral of
depreciation deductions allowable in computingtanable income. In the case of a unitholder repgrtin a
taxable year other than a calendar year, the gasfiour taxable year may also result in more thagive
months of our taxable income or loss being incllelabtaxable income for the unitholder’s taxabéaythat
includes our termination. Our termination would affect our classification as a partnership forefadlincome
tax purposes, but it would result in our beingtiedeas a new partnership for U.S. federal incometaposes
following the termination. If we were treated aseav partnership, we would be required to make rsew t
elections and could be subject to penalties if vveawunable to determine that a termination occuitbd IRS

recently announced a relief procedure wherebypiilalicly -traded partnership that has technically terminated
requests and the IRS grants special relief, amtmgy things, the partnership may be permitted twigle only

a single Schedule K1 to unitholders for the two short tax periods ureld in the year in which the termination
occurs.

You will likely be subject to state and local taxeand income tax return filing requirements in
jurisdictions where you do not live as a result oinvesting in our common units.

In addition to U.S. federal income taxes, you maystbbject to other taxes, including foreign, state
local taxes, unincorporated business taxes anteestaeritance or intangible taxes that are imgdsethe
various jurisdictions in which we conduct businesewn property now or in the future, even if yournbt live
in any of those jurisdictions. You will likely bequired to file foreign, state and local incometurns and
pay state and local income taxes in some or dhede various jurisdictions. Further, you may Hgext to
penalties for failure to comply with those requiestts.

We own assets and conduct business in West Virghtigo and Pennsylvania, each of which imposes
a personal income tax on individuals. As we malguesitions or expand our business, we may own sigset
conduct business in additional states that impgsersonal income tax. It is your responsibilityfite all
United States federal, foreign, state and localégxrns. Our counsel has not rendered an opiniathe state
or local tax consequences of an investment in ommgon units.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings

Our operations are subject to a variety of risks disputes normally incident to our business. As a
result, we may, at any given time, be a defendamarious legal proceedings and litigation arisimthe
ordinary course of business. However, we are naently subject to any material litigation.

We maintain insurance policies with insurers in ants and with coverage and deductibles that we,
with the advice of our insurance advisors and isleelieve are reasonable and prudent. We canowogver,
assure you that this insurance will be adequapedtect us from all material expenses related temal future
claims for personal and property damage or thaetevels of insurance will be available in theufatat
economical prices.
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Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure s

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Iltem 5. Marke t for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Rdated Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Common Units

Our common units are listed on the New York StogkHange and traded under the symbol “AM”. On
February 19, 2015, our common units were held hgl8ers of record. The number of holders does not
include the holders for whom units are held in arfiinee” or “street” name. In addition, as of Feloyuls,

2015, Antero and its affiliates owned 29,940,958wf common units and 75,940,957 of our subordihate
units, which together represent a 69.7% limitedrgarinterest in us.

The table below reflects the high and low intradales prices per share of our common units on the
New York Stock Exchange for each period presented:

Common Unit

High Low
2014:
For the period from November 5, 2014 through Deaan®d, 201« $30.77 $22.80

No distributions were made to unitholders during year ended December 31, 2014. On February 2,
2015, we announced the board of directors of oneg# partner had declared a cash distributiorDcdd$ 3
per common unit for the partial quarter ended Ddmmm31, 2014. The distribution is payable on Fetyr@a,
2015, to unitholders of record on February 13, 20ths amount represents the prorated minimum gtlgrt
distribution of $0.17 per unit, or $0.68 per unitan annualized basis.

Use of Proceeds

On November 10, 2014, we completed our IPO of 45@ID common units representing limited
partnership interests at a price of $25.00 per comonit.

The public currently owns 30.3% of the 151,881,8litstanding common and subordinated units, and
Antero and its affiliates currently own the remamni69.7% of the limited partner interests in thetfaship.

Net proceeds received by us from the offering vegmgroximately $1.1 billion, after deducting
underwriting discounts, structuring fees and expendVe used $843 million to repay indebtedneasaesd
from Antero, to reimburse Antero for certain cap&apenditures incurred, and to redeem 6,000,00@ncon
units held by Antero. We retained $250 million loé thet proceeds for general partnership purposes.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
None .
Sales of Unregistered Units

On November 10, 2014, pursuant to the Amended astiafed Contribution Agreement (the “A&R
Contribution Agreement”) between us and Antero,ekatcontributed to us 100% of the membership istdare
an entity that owned Antero’s gathering and congioesassets. Under the terms of the A&R Contrdiuti
Agreement, Antero granted us an option for two geampurchase Antero’s fresh water distributiorteys at
fair market value, with a right of first offer tresfter. In addition, Antero assigned to us (ipi¢ion to
participate for up to a 20% non-operating equitgiest in the 800-mile Energy Transfer LLC Roveydine
Project and (ii) its right to participate for updad.5% non-operating equity interest in an unnatedile
regional gathering pipeline extension. We electetttm exercise the option to participate in the &dipeline
project. As consideration for the contributed asset issued
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35,940,957 common units and 75,940,957 subordinaiés to Antero.

The foregoing transactions were undertaken inmeéaupon the exemption from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act pursuant toiSeet(a)(2) thereof.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

In connection with the completion of our IPO, oengral partner adopted the Midstream LTIP, which
permits the issuance of up to 10,000,000 commats.uihantom unit grants have been made to eatie of
independent directors of our general partner uttteMidstream LTIP. Please read the informatiodeun
“ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Benefidiavners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters” of this report.

Our Minimum Quarterly Distribution

Our partnership agreement provide s for a minimuiarggrly distribution of $0.17 per unit for each
whole quarter, or $0.68 per unit on an annualizsish

Within 60 days after the end of each quarter, weeekto make a minimum quarterly distribution of
$0.17 per common unit and subordinated unit ($Go&8ommon unit and subordinated unit on an atredl
basis) to unitholders of record on the applicabtord dateOn February 2, 2015, we announced the board of
directors of our general partner had declared h distribution of $0.0943 per common unit for thetfal
quarter ended December 31, 2014. This amoungésepts the prorated minimum quarterly distribution
of $0.17 per unit, or $0.68 per unit on an annealibasis.

The board of directors of our general partner ligpted a policy pursuant to which distributions for
each quarter will be paid to the extent we havéaent cash after establishment of cash resermdsgpayment
of fees and expenses, including payments to owgrgépartner and its affiliates. Our ability to pag
minimum quarterly distribution is subject to varsorestrictions and other factors.

Our partnership agreement generally provides tleadlistribute cash each quarter during the
subordination period in the following manner:

» first, to the holders of common units, until eadmenon unit has received the minimum quarterly
distribution of $0.1700 plus any arrearages frororgjuarters
« second, to the holders of subordinated units, eatth subordinated unit has received the minimum
quarterly distribution of $0.1700; al
« third, to the holders of common units and subortdidaunits pro rata until each has received a
distribution of $0.195&
If cash distributions to our unitholders exceedl$85 per common unit and subordinated unit in any
quarter, our unitholders and our general partreetha holder of our incentive distribution rightfRs”), will
receive distributions according to the followinggentage allocations:

Marginal Percentage
Interest in
Distributions

General Partnet

Total Quarterly Distribution (as holder of
Target Amount Unitholders IDRs)
above $0.1955 up to $0.21 85% 15%
above $0.2125 up to $0.25 75% 25%
above $0.255! 50% 50%
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There is no guarantee that we will make cash digtions to our unitholders. We do not have a legal
or contractual obligation to pay distributions gedy or on any other basis or at our minimum cerdyt
distribution rate or at any other rate. Our caskritbution policy may be changed at any time andubject to
certain restrictions, including our partnershipesgnent, our credit facility and applicable parthgrdaw.

Subordinated Units

Antero owns all of our subordinated units. The gipal difference between our common units and
subordinated units is that, for any quarter dutheysubordination period, holders of the subordidanits are
not entitled to receive any distribution from ogarg surplus until the common units have receives t
minimum quarterly distribution from operating surplfor such quarter plus any arrearages in the payof
the minimum quarterly distribution from prior quers. Subordinated units will not accrue arrearagésen the
subordination period ends, all of the subordinateits will convert into an equal number of commanits.

To the extent we do not pay the minimum quarteidyritbution on our common units, our common
unitholders will not be entitled to receive suchearage payments in the future except during thersiination
period. To the extent we have cash available fetribution from operating surplus in any future deaduring
the subordination period in excess of the amouc¢sgary to pay the minimum quarterly distributiomolders
of our common units, we will use this excess cagbay any distribution arrearages on common ualtged to
prior quarters before any cash distribution is miadeolders of subordinated units.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents our selected histdficancial data , for the periods and as of theesla
indicated, for Antero Midstream Partners LP (thartRership”) and our Predecessor. Our Predecessor f
accounting purposes consisted of Antero Resourogsotation’s (“Antero”) gathering and compressiasets
and related operations on a carve-out basis. Thadrghip was originally formed as Antero Resources
Midstream LLC and converted into a limited parthgosn connection with the completion of the Parsép’s
initial public offering (the “IPO”) of common unitepresenting limited partner interests in the riaghip on
November 10, 2014.

The selected statement of operations and statevhieash flow data for the years ended December 31
2012, 2013, and 2014 and the balance sheet dafeDessember 31, 2013 and 2014 are derived from our
audited consolidated financial statements includdtem 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Tledested
statement of operations and statement of cashdbta for the year ended December 31 2011, andathade
sheet data as of December 31, 2012 are deriveddwraudited financial statements not includedéml 8 of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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The selected financial data presented below arkfigdan their entirety by reference to, and stul
be read in conjunction with, “Item 7. Managememndiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” and our consolidated finahstatements and related notes included elsewhehis
report.

Year ended December 31

(in thousands except per unit amounts 2011 2012 2013 2014
Statement of operations data
Revenue
Gathering and compress—affiliate $ 441 $ 647 $ 22,363 $95,746
Operating expense
Direct operating 802 652 2,079 15,470
General and administrative (including $15,931 a8@% %9 of
equity-based compensation in 2013 and 2014, respecti 397 2,894 23,124 22,035
Depreciatior 997 1,679 11,346 36,789
Total operating expens 2,196 5,225 36,549 74,294
Operating income (los! (1,755 (4,578 (14,186 21,452
Interest expens 2 8 146 4,620
Net income (loss $(1,757 $(4,586 $(14,332 $16,832
Net income attributable to Antero Midstream Parrig?
subsequent to IP 7,422

Net income attributable to Antero Midstream Parsrig?

subsequent to IPO per limited partner unit (basit @iluted)
1)

Common units $ 0.05
Subordinated unit $ 0.05

Year ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2011 2012 2013 2014
Balance sheet data (at period end):
Cash and cash equivalel $ —  $ — $ 230,192
Property and equipment, r 173,351 566,476 1,129,597
Total asset 173,510 578,089 1,395,121
Long-term indebtednes 320 4,864 —
Total capital 142,862 532,520 1,342,45¢
Cash flow data:
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ (618 $ (3,152 $ 10,613 $ 48,887
Net cash used in investing activiti (15,795 (115,267 (397,921 (597,389
Net cash provided by financing activiti 16,413 118,419 387,308 778,694
Other financial data:
Adjusted EBITDA® $ (758 $ (2,899 $ 13,091 $ 66,860
Adjusted EBITDA attributable to Antero Midstream

Partners LP Predeces: — — — 50,181
Adjusted EBITDA attributable to Antero Midstream

Partners LP subsequent to the | — — — 16,679

(1) Earnings per unit is not provided for histafiperiods prior to the contribution of Midstrearpé®ating to us because
the nature of our Predecessor makes the presentdt@arnings per unit not relevant, or comparable prospective
basis, for investor:

(2) For a discussion of the netGAAP financial measure Adjusted EBITDA, includingeonciliation of Adjusted
EBITDA to its most directly comparable financial aserres calculated and presented in accordance&3mlP, pleas:
read “—Non-GAAP Financial Measure” below.
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Non -GAAP Financial Measure

We use Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash Flmperformance measure s to assess the ability
of our assets to generate cash sufficient to piyest costs, support indebtedness and make cstsibwlions.
Adjusted EBITDA is a financial measure reportedtw lenders and used as a gauge for compliancesaitte
of the financial covenants included in our revotyredit facility. We define Adjusted EBITDA as ristome
(loss) before equity-based compensation expentszest expense , interest income , income taxes and
depreciation and amortization expense. We defirs¢riDutable Cash Flow as Adjusted EBITDA less cash
interest paid and ongoing maintenance capital edipges paid. Distributable cash flow should not/eved
as indicative of the actual amount of cash thafthenership has available for distributions fropemting
surplus or that the Partnership plans to distribute

We use Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash Ftovassess:

« the financial performance of our assets, withogard to financing methods in the case of
adjusted EDITDA, capital structure or historical cost ba:

« the ability of our assets to generate cash suffidie support our indebtedness and make cash
distributions;

« our operating performance and return on capitabaspared to other publicly traded partnerships
in the midstream energy sector, without regardrtarfcing or capital structure; a

- the viability of acquisitions and other capital ergiture projects.

Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash Flow are rR@@AAP financial measure s . The GAAP
measures most directly comparable to Adjusted ERBIED Distributable Cash Flow are net income artd ne
cash provided by (used in) operating activitiese Tibn-GAAP financial measure s of Adjusted EBITDA and

Distributable Cash Flow should not be consideredreslternative to the GAAP measure of net income.
Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash Flow are pagsentation s made in accordance with GAAP and h
ave important limitations as an analytical tooldugse they includes some, but not all, items tHatahet
income. You should not consider Adjusted EBITDA d@idtributable Cash Flow in isolation or as a sitbt
for analysis of results as reported under GAAP. @afinition of Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable €la
Flow may not be comparable to similarly titted m@as of other companies.
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The following table represents a reconciliatioroof Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash Flow
to the most directly comparable GAAP financial mgas for the periods presented:

Year Ended
December 31

(in thousands) 2011 2012 2013 2014
Reconciliation of Net Income (loss) to Adjusted EBIDA

and Distributable Cash Flow attributable to Antero

Midstream Partners LP:
Net income (loss $(1,757 $(4,586 $(14,332 $ 16,832
Add:

Interest expens 2 8 146 4,620

Depreciation expens 997 1,679 11,346 36,789

Equity-based compensation expel — — 15,931 8,619
Adjusted EBITDA $ (758 $(2,899 ¢ 13,091 $ 66,860
Adjusted EBITDA attributable to Antero MidstreamriPers

LP subsequent to IP 16,679
Less:

Cash interest pai (331

Maintenance capital expenditur ][] 1,157
Distributable cash flow attributable to Antero Miasam

Partners LF $ 15,191
Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to Cash Providedby

(Used in) Operating Activities:
Adjusted EBITDA $ (758 $(2,899 ¢ 13,091 $ 66,860
Less:

Interest expens @) (8) (146, (4,620

Changes in operating assets and liabilities whiclvigded

(used) casl 142 (245, (2,332 (13,488

Plus:

Amortization of deferred financing cos — — — 135
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ (618 $(3,152 § 10,613 § 48,887

(1) Maintenance capital expenditures represenibidion of our estimated capital expenditureoeisged with the
connection of new wells to our gathering and corsginn systems that we believe will be necessaojfset the
natural production declines Antero will experiemeeall of its wells over tim.
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Iltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations should be
read in conjunction with our condensed consoliddirdncial statements and related notes includedwhere
in this report. The information provided below slgpents, but does not form part of, our financtatements.

This discussion contains forwardooking statements that are based on the viewsbatidfs of our
management, as well as assumptions and estimai@s nyaour management. Actual results could differ
materially from such forwardlooking statements as a result of various riskdestincluding those that may

not be in the control of management. For furthdoimation on items that could impact our future KGEg
performance or financial condition, please read d&=m 1A. Risk Factors.” and the section entitled
“Cautionary Statement Regarding Forwardlooking Statements.” We do not undertake any obtigao
publicly update any forward-looking statements exes otherwise required by applicable law.

References in this report to “Predecessor,” “we,btir,” “us” or like terms, when referring to
periods prior to November 10, 2014, refer to Anteigathering and compression assets, our predecésso
accounting purposes. References to “the Partnershive,” “our,” “us” or like terms, when referring to
periods after November 10, 2014, refer to Anterdsiteam Partners LP.

Overview

We are a growthkoriented limited partnership formed by Antero tompwperate and develop
midstream energy assets to service Antero’s rajidiseasing production. Our assets consist of gaitpe
pipelines and compressor stations, through whiclpregide midstream services to Antero under a letegm,

fixed —fee contract. Our assets are located in the raplieNyeloping liquids-rich southwestern core of the

Marcellus Shale in northwest West Virginia and liaids -rich core of the Utica Shale in southern Ohio, two

of the premier North American shale plays. We belithat our strategically located assets and datieaship
with Antero position us to become a leading midstieenergy company serving the Marcellus and Utica
Shales.

Initial Public Offering

On November 10, 2014, we completed our IPO of 45@ID common units representing limited
partnership interests at a price of $25.00 per comunit. At the closing of the IPO, Antero contitied its
gathering and compression assets to Antero MidsttdaC (“Midstream Operating”), and the ownership of
Midstream Operating was contributed to us.

The public currently owns 46,000,000 common umépresenting a 30.3% limited partner interest in
the Partnership. Antero and its affiliates curngotivn the remaining 29,940,957 common units and all
75,940,957 subordinated units, representing areagtg 69.7% of the limited partner interest in the
Partnership.

Net proceeds received by us from the IPO were appaiely $1.1 billion, after deducting
underwriting discounts, structuring fees and expendVe used $843 million to repay indebtedneasnaesd
from Antero, to reimburse Antero for certain cap#&gpenditures incurred, and to redeem 6,000,00@ncon
units held by Antero. We retained $ 250 milliontloé net proceeds for general partnership purposes.

Revolving Credit Facility

On November 10, 2014, in connection with the IP®@,antered into a revolving credit facility that il
mature on November 10, 2019 (“revolving credit liach). Our revolving credit facility provides folender
commitments $1.0 billion, subject to maintenancthefrequired financial ratios. See “—Capital Reses and
Liquidity.”
Recent Trends and Uncertainties

The gathering and compression agreement with Amtereides for fixed fee structures, and we intend

to continue to pursue additional fixed fee oppoaittas with Antero and third parties in order to aldirect
commodity
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price exposure. However, to the extent that owrreutontractual arrangements with Antero or thadips do
not provide for fixed fee structures, we may becaugect to commodity price risk. We are subject to
commodity price risks to the extent that they impatero’s development plan and therefore our gatige
volumes. Recently, global energy commaodity pricagehdeclined precipitously as a result of sevexetidrs
including increased worldwide supplies, a stroriges. d ollar, relatively mild weather in the U.8nd str ong
competition among oil producing countries for marsteare. Specifically, prices for WTI have decdtirfeom
approximately $106.00 per Bbl in June 2014 to thas $50.00 per Bbl in January 2015. Henry Hulbingét
gas has traded around $3.00 per MMBtu in Janual$ 20mpared to prices a year ago in January 2014 of
around $4.40 per MMBtu. In response to these marediitions and concerns about access to capitddatsa
U.S. exploration and development companies havefgigntly reduced capital spending plans. Antero’s
capital budget for 2015 is projected to be $1.Bdni) a 41% reduction from 2014. Antero plans pei@te an
average of 14 drilling rigs in 2015 down from 21Dscember 31, 2014 and to complete 130 horizontal
Marcellus and Utica wells in 2015 , down from 17@72D14. A further or extended decline in commogitizes
could cause some of the development and produptimjects of Antero or third parties to be unecormori
less profitable, which could reduce gathering vaarin our current and future potential areas ofafpn.
Those reductions in gathering volumes could reduraevenue and cash flow and adversely affectbility
to make cash distributions to our unitholders.

Sources of Our Revenues

Our revenues are driven by the volumes of natuaalapd condensate we gather and compress.
Pursuant to our longterm contracts with Antero, we have secured-g€ar dedications covering a significant
portion of Antero’s current and future acreagedathering and compression services. All of Anteexsting
acreage is dedicated to us for gathering and casjme services except for the existing thighrty
commitments, which includes 131,000 Marcellus S8t leasehold acres characterized by dry gas and
liquids —rich production that have been previously dedicabetthird —party gatherers.

Our gathering and compression operations are sulsta dependent upon natural gas and oil and
condensate production from Antero’s upstream dgtiviits areas of operation. In addition, thera isatural
decline in production from existing wells that @amnected to our gathering systems. Although weebghat
Antero will continue to devote substantial resosrttethe development of oil and gas reserves, we ha
control over this activity and Antero has the apito reduce or curtail such development at itsrdison.

How We Evaluate Our Operations

We use a variety of financial and operational nastto evaluate our performance. These metrics help
us identify factors and trends that impact our apeg results, profitability and financial conditioThe key
metrics we use to evaluate our business are provideow.

Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash Flow

We use Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash Flmperformance measure s to assess the ability
of our assets to generate cash sufficient to piyest costs, support indebtedness and make cstsibwlions.
Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash flow are I@AAP financial measures. See “ltem 6. Selected
Financial Data—Non-GAAP Financial Measure,” for mdnformation regarding these financial measures,
including a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA anddiributable Cash Flow to the most directly compéga
GAAP measures.

Natural Gas and Oil and Condensate Throughput

We must continually obtain additional supplies afural gas and oil and condensate to maintain or
increase throughput on our systems. Our abilitpéintain existing supplies of natural gas and od a
condensate and obtain additional supplies is pifynianpacted by our acreage dedication and thellefe
successful drilling activity by Antero and, to ader extent in the future, the potential for aceededications
with and successful drilling by third party prodt&eAny increase in our throughput volumes ovemntbar
term will likely be driven by Antero continuing itebust drilling and development activities inlitarcellus
and Utica Shale acreage. In the short term, weatxpereases
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in high pressure gathering and compression thrautgdgdumes to be less than that for low pressutbayang
revenues, in part because a percentage of Anteigiispressure gathering and compression needbavithet

by existing third-party providers.

Principal Components of Our Cost Structure

The primary components of our operating expensatsik evaluate include direct operating expense,
general and administrative expenses, depreciakiparse and interest expense.

Direct Operating Expense

We seek to maximize the profitability of our op@as in part by minimizing, to the extent
appropriate, expenses directly tied to operatirdjyranintaining our assets. Direct labor costs, piggiuel,
monitoring costs, repair and necapitalized maintenance costs, utilities and caehsarvices comprise the
most significant portion of our direct operatingperse. We schedule maintenance over time to avoid

significant variability in our direct operating expse and minimize the impact on our cash flow. gifraary
drivers of our direct operating expense include:

« gathering and compression throughput in the Mausedhd Utica Shales;
« maintenance and contract service costs;
« regulatory and compliance costs; and
» operating costs associated with our internal grqwtjects, including:
« increases in miles of pipeline ; and
» additional compressor stations.
General and Administrative Expenses

Our general and administrative expenses includeetgharges for operations of our assets and costs
allocated by Antero. These costs relate to: (ijoter business services, including payroll procegsaccounts
payable processing and facilities managementydiijpous corporate services, including legal, actiogn
treasury, information technology and human resauacel (iii) compensation , including equity-based
compensation costs. These costs are charged @sad bn the nature of the expenses and are alidcased
on a combination of our proportionate share of Asitegross property and equipment, capital expeneltand
direct labor costs as applicable. Management bedigivese allocation methodologies are reasonable.

Our general and administrative expenses includéyehased compensation costs allocated by Antero
to us for: (i) grants made pursuant to Antero’s ¢ efierm Incentive Plan (the “Antero LTIP"), (ii) prasi

interests awards valued in connection with the Anteorganization pursuant to its initial publiéesfng of
common stock, which closed on October 16, 2013,(géihdrants made to Antero employees under oun ow
plan.

In connection with the IPO, our general partneraeld the Antero Midstream Partners Long-Term
Incentive Plan (“Midstream LTIP”), and on Novemidex, 2014, the Partnership granted 20,000 restriohétd
and 2,361,440 phantom units under the plan. Faruating purposes, these units are treated asyifate
distributed from us to Antero. During the year eshd=cember 31, 2014, Antero recognized approxim&a!
million in equity-based compensation related testhawards, $0.4 million of which was allocated $and
included in our general and administrative experndéswill be allocated a portion of approximatety & 7
million of unrecognized equity-based compensatiguease related to the Midstream LTIP over the ramgi
service period of the awards.
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Depreciation Expense

Depreciation expense consists of our estimateetiftrease in value of the assets capitalized in
property and equipment as a result of using thetasgisroughout the applicable year. Depreciatiaomputed

over the asset’s estimated useful life using thegitt-line basis. Gathering pipelines and compressoiosst
are depreciated over a 20 year useful life.

Interest Expense

Interest expense in 2014 represents interest defatdi ) borrowings under a credit facility
agreement between Antero Midstream LLC (“Midstreéaperating”), then a wholly owned subsidiary of
Antero and now a wholly owned subsidiary of thetRanship, and the lenders under Antero’s creditifa¢hat
were incurred for the acquisition of our gatherdmgl compression assets (the “midstream crediitiggil (ii)
capital leases and (iii) commitment fees and aatitn of deferred financing costs incurred unolar
revolving credit facility that we entered into inrmection with the closing of the IPO. In 2013¢ehefst expense
related to capital leases.

Items Affecting Comparability of Our Financial Results

The historical financial results of our Predecesiscussed below may not be comparable to our
future financial results primarily as a result loé tsignificant increase in the scope of our openatover the
last several years. Our gathering and compresg&terss are relatively new, having been substantalilt
within the last two years. Accordingly, our reves@ad expenses over that time reflect the sigmificamp up
in our operations. Similarly, Antero has experiehsignificant growth in its production and drillirmgnd
completion schedule over that same period. Accgigjriit may be difficult to project trends from ohistorical
financial data going forward.
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Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to Year Efdieckmber 31 , 2014

The following table sets forth selected operatiatador the year ended December 31, 2013 compared
to the year ended December 31, 2014 ;

Year ended December 31 Amount of  Percentags
2013 2014 Increase Change

(% in thousands, except average realized fee

Revenue

Gathering and compress—affiliate $ 22,363 $ 95,746 $ 73,383 328%
Operating expense

Direct operating 2,079 15,470 13,391 644%

General and administrative (including $15,931 and
$8,619 of equity-based compensation in 2013 anc

2014, respectively 23,124 22,035 (1,089 (5)%
Depreciatior 11,346 36,789 25,443  224%
Total operating expens 36,549 74,294 37,745 103%

Operating income (los! (14,186 21,452 35,638 *%
Interest expens 146 4,620 4,474 3,064%

Net income (loss $ (14332 $ 16,832 $ 31,164 *0f

Adjusted EBITDA® $ 13,091 $ 66,860 $ 53,769 411%

Operating Data
Gatherin—Ilow pressure (MMcf 61,406 181,727 120,321 196%
Gatherin—high pressure (MMcf 11,736 167,935 156,199 1,331%
Compression (MMcf 9,900 38,104 28,204 285%
Condensate gathering (MBI — 621 621 *
Gatherin—Ilow pressure (MMcf/d 168 498 330 196 %
Gatherin—high pressure (MMcf/d 32 460 428 1,338%
Compression (MMcf/d 27 104 77 285%
Condensate gathering (MBbl/ — 2 2 *

Average realized fee

Average gatherir—low pressure fee ($/Mc $ 030 $ 031 $ 0.01 3%
Average gatherir—high pressure fee ($/Mc $ 018 $ 0.18 % — — %
Average compression fee ($/M $ 018 $ 0.18 $ — — %
Average gatherir—condensate fee ($/Bk $ — $ 408 £ &

*  Not meaningful or applicable.

(1) For a discussion of the netGAAP financial measure Adjusted EBITDA, includingexonciliation of Adjusted
EBITDA to its most directly comparable financial aseires calculated and presented in accordanceé3AlP, pleas:
“Item 6. Selected Financial Data Non -GAAP Financial Measure”.

Gathering and compression revenue—affiliaRevenues from gathering of natural gas and
condensate and compression of natural gas incréaseds22.3 million for the year ended DecemberZ1,3
to $95.7 million for the year ended December 31,22@&n increase of $73.4 million. Specifically:

« low pressure gathering revenue increased $37.@mitleriod over period primarily due to
increase of throughput volumes of 120 Bcf, or 33@df#d, which was primarily due to
126 new wells added in 2014, the expansion of @urgressure gathering system by 56 n
in 2014, and an increase in the average realizside$0.01 per Mcf resulting from a
consumer price indexbased rate adjustment;

« high pressure gathering revenue increased $28li@miue to an increase of throughput
volumes of 156 Bcf, or 428 MMcf/d, primarily asesult of the addition of twelve new high
pressure gathering lines placed in service in 201dithe expansion of our high pressure
gathering system by 35 miles in 20
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« compressor revenue increased $5.3 million peried period due to an increase of
throughput volumes of 28 Bcf, or 77 MMcf/d, primaras a result of the addition of three
new compressor stations that were placed in sedudag 2014; ani
« condensate gathering revenue increased $2.5 millierto an increase of throughput
volumes of 621 MBblI, or 2 MBbl/d, primarily as astdt of the addition of condensate
gathering lines that were placed in servic2014.

Direct operating expensed.otal direct operating expenses increased frorh 8&lion for the year
ended December 31, 2013 to $15.5 million for therymded December 31, 2014, an increase of $18idmi
The increase was primarily due to an increaseemtimber of gathering pipelines and compressdpattas
well as an increase in ad valorem tax expenseecktatthe gathering and compression assets in Vitgghia.

General and administrative expenséaeneral and administrative expenses (before etpaisgd
compensation expense) increased from $7.2 milbonife year ended December 31, 2013 to $13.4 mifto
the year ended December 31, 2014, an increase 2dfdilion. The increase was primarily as a resiilt
increased staffing levels and related salary amefits expenses and increases in legal and otimergle
corporate expenses and the related allocationre€diind indirect costs to us by Antero. The inseeaas also
attributable to an increase in staff required fopsut our additional capital projects.

Equity-based compensation expense decreasedpftér@ million for the year ended December 31,
2013 to $8.6 million for the year ended December2®14, a decrease of $7.3 million. This decresskié to a
decrease in the allocation of Antero’s equity-basmuipensation expense to us related to Anterofitpro
interests awards. This decrease is offset by arase in equity-based compensation expense altbtates by
Antero related to (i) awards made under the Antdri® and (ii) awards made to Antero employees utider
Midstream LTIP.

Depreciation expenseTotal depreciation expense increased from $11liBomfor the year ended
December 31, 2013 to $36.8 million for the yearezhBecember 31, 2014, an increase of $25.5 millibwe.
increase was primarily due to gathering and congiwasassets placed in service and depreciatedlis 28
well as a full period of depreciation for the asgglices in service during 2013.

Interest expenselnterest expense increased from $0.1 million lieryear ended December 31, 2013
to $4.6 million for the year ended December 31,£2@h increase of $4.5 million. The increase imprily due
to interest incurred on $510 million in borrowingsder the midstream credit facility, as well as aoitment
fees incurred on our revolving credit facility. dpcompletion of the IPO, on November 10, 2014 egaid
$510 million of the facility related to gatheringdacompression expenditures and the remaindereof th
midstream credit facility was assumed by Antero. Nsld no outstanding balance under our revolvinditre
facility at December 31, 2014.

Adjusted EBITDA.Adjusted EBITDA increased from $13.1 million fdretyear ended December 31,
2013 to $66.9 million for the year ended Decemiler2®14, an increase of $53.8 million. The increaaes
primarily due to an increase in gathering and casgion throughput volumes in 2014. For a discussidhe
non-GAAP financial measure Adjusted EBITDA, inclagdia reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to its most
directly comparable financial measures calculateti@resented in accordance with GAAP, please rkach*
6. Selected Financial Data—Non-GAAP Financial Meas
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Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Year Efdleckmber 31, 2013

The following table sets forth selected operatiatador the year ended December 31, 2012 compared
to the year ended December 31, 2013:

Year ended December 31 Amount of  Percentagr
2012 2013 Increase Change
($ in thousands, except average realized fee
Revenue
Gathering and compress—affiliate $ 647 $ 22,363 $ 21,716 3,356%
Operating expense
Direct operating 652 2,079 1,427  219%
General and administrative (including $15,931 of
equity-based compensation in 201 2,894 23,124 20,230 699%
Depreciatior 1,679 11,346 9,667 576%
Total operating expens 5,225 36,549 31,324 600%
Operating los! (4,578 (14,186 (9,608 *%
Interest expens 8 146 138 1,725%
Net loss (4,586 $ (14,332 $ (9,746 *0sp

L2 (R

Adjusted EBITDA® (2,899 $ 13,091 $ 15990 (552%

Operating Data

Gatherin—Ilow pressure (MMcf 2,320 61,406 59,086 2,547%
Gatherin—high pressure (MMcf — 11,736 11,736 *%
Compression (MMcf — 9,900 9,900 *%
Gatherin—Ilow pressure (MMcf/d 6 168 162 2,700%
Gatherin—high pressure (MMcf/d — 32 32 *%
Compression (MMcf/d — 27 27 *0%

Average realized fee

Average gatherir—low pressure fee ($/Mc $ 028 $ 030 $ 0.02 7%
Average gatherir—high pressure fee ($/Mc $ *$ 018 $ * — %
Average compression fee ($/M $ *$ 018 $ * — %

*  Not meaningful or applicable.

(1) For a discussion of the netGAAP financial measure Adjusted EBITDA, includingeonciliation of Adjusted
EBITDA to its most directly comparable financial aseires calculated and presented in accordanceé3AlP, pleas:
read “ ltem 6. Selected Financial DataNon ~-GAAP Financial Measure”.

Gathering and compression revenue—affiliaRevenues from gathering and compression of natural
gas increased from $0.6 million for the year enDedember 31, 2012 to $22.3 million for the yearezhd

December 31, 2013, an increase of $21.7 milliorc8ically:

« low pressure gathering revenue increased $17.8&mjtleriod over period primarily due to an
increase of throughput volumes of 59 Bcf, or 162 &lfd, which was primarily due to the
addition of low pressure gathering volumes fronmé# wells in 2013 and an increase in the
average realized fees of $0.02 per M

« high pressure gathering revenue increased $2.bbmdue to an increase of throughput volumes
of 12 Bcf, or 32 MMcf/d, primarily as a result d¢fet addition of compressor discharge volumes
from two new compressor stations placed in sewi@9)13; anc

« compressor revenue increased $1.8 million periad period due to an increase of throughput
volumes of 10 Bcf, or 27 MMcf/d, primarily as a uétsof the addition of compressor volumes
from two new compressor stations placed in sewi@9013.
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Direct operating expensed.otal direct operating expenses increased from B0llion for the year
ended December 31, 2012 to $2.1 million for the yemled December 31, 2013, an increase of $1./bmill
The increase was primarily due to an increaseemtimber of gathering pipelines and compressdpatat

General and administrative expenséaeneral and administrative expenses (before etpaisgd
compensation expense) increased from $2.9 milbonhfe year ended December 31, 2012 to $7.2 mifbon
the year ended December 31, 2013, an increase ®hdilion. The increase was primarily as a resiilt
increased staffing levels and related salary amefits expenses and increases in legal and otimergle
corporate expenses and the related allocationre€tdiind indirect costs to our Predecessor. Thease was
also attributable to an increase in staff requicesupport our increase in capital expenditurevigti

Equity-based compensation expense increased fromfaethe year ended December 31, 2012 to
$15.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2@h3ncrease of $15.9 million. The increase wastdwn
allocation of Antero’s equity-based compensatiopesise to us related to profits interests awardsedhin
connection with the Antero reorganization pursuarits initial public offering of common stock, widti closed
on October 16, 2013.

Depreciation expenseTotal depreciation expense increased from $1.liomifor the year ended
December 31, 2012 to $11.3 million for the yearezhBecember 31, 2013, an increase of $9.6 millidve.
increase was primarily due to approximately $29lfioniin gathering and compression assets placegivice
and depreciated in 2013 and a full period of daptiem for the assets places in service during 2012

Interest expenselnterest expense increased from less than $0libmfbr the year ended
December 31, 2012 to $0.1 million for the year eéhDecember 31, 2013, primarily due to the additbn
$6.1 million in borrowings related to additionapdal leases in 2013.

Adjusted EBITDA.Adjusted EBITDA increased from $(2.9) million fthre year ended December 31,
2012 to $13.1 million for the year ended Decemiler2®13, an increase of $16.0 million. The increaae
primarily due to an increase in gathering and casgion throughput volumes in 2018or a discussion of the
non-GAAP financial measure Adjusted EBITDA, incladia reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to its most
directly comparable financial measures calculateti@esented in accordance with GAAP, please rkach
6. Selected Financial Data—Non-GAAP Financial Meas

Capital Resources and Liquidity
Sources and Uses of Cash

Historically, our sources of liquidity included ¢agenerated from operations and funding from
Antero. We historically participated in Antero’sntealized cash management program for all periods
presented, whereby excess cash from most of idialbies was swept into a centralized accounessand

purchases related to our Predecessor tipatty transactions were received or paid in casArdgro within

the centralized cash management system. Subsequbetclosing of the IPO, we began maintainingamun
bank accoun ts and sources of liquidity, but cargito utilize Antero’s cash management system apdrése.

Capital and liquidity is provided by operating cdlktw, cash on our balance sheet, and borrowings
under our revolving credit facility, discussed heldWe expect cash flow from operations to contitue
contribute to our liquidity in the fu ture. Souragfdiquidity include borrowing capacity under auew $1.0
billion revolving credit facility. We expect the eination of these capital resources will be adegitmameet
our working capital requirements, capital expern@aiguprogram and expected quarterly cash distribsitior at
least the next 12 months.

The board of directors of our general partner likgpted a cash distribution policy pursuant to which
we intend to distribute at least the minimum qudytdistribution of $0.17 per unit ($0.68 per uait an
annualized basis) on all of our units to the extemthave sufficient cash after the establishmertsh
reserves and the payment of our expenses, inclydipments to our general partner and its affiliafas
February 2, 2015, we announced the board of directioour general partner had declared a proratedeyly
cash distribution of $0.0943 per common unit fa tjuarter ended December 31, 2014. The distribigion
payable on February 27, 2015, to unit holders oéme on February 13, 2015.
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This amount represents the prorated minimum qugrdéstribution of $0.17 per unit, or $ 0 .68 parituon an
annual basis.

We expect our future cash requirements relatingdiking capital, maintenance capital expenditures
and quarterly cash distributions to our partnetshe funded from cash flows internally generateahf our
operations. Our expansion capital expendituresheilfunded by borrowings under our revolving créaliility
or from potential capital market transactions.

The following table and discussion presents a sumimfour combined net cash provided by or used
in operating activities, investing activities armaaihcing activities for the periods indicated.

Year ended December 31

2012 2013 2014
(in thousands)
Operating activitie! $ (3,152 $ 10,613 $ 48,887
Investing activities (115,267 (397,921 (597,389
Financing activitie: 118,419 387,308 778,694
Net increase in cash and cash equival $ — $ — $ 230,192

Cash Flo w Provided by Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $4@iflion for the year ended December 31, 2014
and net cash provided by operating activities wiakémillion for the year ended December 31, 201®
increase in cash flow from operations for the yaated December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2013 was primarily the result of iasezl throughput volumes and revenues attributaktest
addition of new gathering and compression systdatse in service in 2014.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $18il6on for the year ended December 31, 2013 and
net cash used in operating activities was $3.4aniflor the year ended December 31, 2012. The aserén
cash flow from operations for the year ended Deearth, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31,
2012 was primarily the result of increased throughylumes and revenues attributable to the addafnew
high pressure gathering and compression capaci@is3.

Cash Flow Used in Investing Activities
Our Predecessor’s historical capital expenditureseviunded by Antero.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, we ussdft@ws in investing activities totaling $597.4
million for expenditures and deposits for gathersggtems and compressor stations.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we ussadftaws in investing activities totaling
$397.9 million for expenditur es and deposits fathgring systems and compressor stations.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we ussdftaws in investing activities totaling
$115.3 million for expenditures for gathering sysseand compressor stations.

Our board of directors has approved a capital buoigieom $425 million to $450 million for 2015 to
expand our existing gathering and compression syste accommodate Antero Resources’ developmenspla
Our capital budget may be adjusted as businesstmorsdwarrant. The amount, timing and allocatidn
capital expenditures is largely discretionary arnithiww our control. If natural gas, NGLs, and oilqas decline
to levels below acceptable levels or costs increéasevels above acceptable levels, Antero coblubse to
defer a significant portion of its budgeted capégbenditures until later periods. As a result,maay also defer
a significant portion of our budgeted capital exgiaures to achieve the desired balance betweerasand
uses of liquidity and prioritize capital projecksat we believe have the highest expected returiipatential to

generate neafterm cash flow. We routinely monitor and adjust
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our capital expenditures in response to chang@siero’s development plans, changes in prices |avidity of
financing, acquisition costs, industry conditiotheg timing of regulatory approvals, success or lafckuccess
in Antero’s drilling activities, contractual obliians, internally generated cash flow and othetdiecboth
within and outside our control.

Cash Flow Provided by Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities for theay ended December 31, 2014 of $7 78.7 million is
the result of $1.1 billion in net proceeds from &©, $510 .0 million in borrowings under the ntidam
credit facility, and $29.8 million parent contrilns offset by $510 .0 million in repayments on thielstream
credit facility, $332.5 million distributions to Aero, $4.9 million payment s of deferred financoasts, and
$0.9 million principal payments on capital leases.

Net cash provided by financing activities for treay ended December 31, 2013 of $387.3 million is
the result of $388.1 million in parent contributipffset by $0.8 million for principal payments capital
leases.

Net cash provided by financing activities for theay ended December 31, 2012 of $118.4 million is
the result of $118.4 million in parent contributimffset by less than $0.1 million for principalyments on
capital leases.

Debt Agreements

Revolving Credit Facility

On November 10, 2014, in connection with the clgsifthe IPO, the Partnership entered into a
revolving credit facility with a syndicate of lende The revolving credit facility provides for lesd
commitments of $1.0 billion and for a letter ofditesublimit of $150 million. At December 31, 2Q2e had
no borrowings and no letters of credit outstandingder the revolving credit facility. The revolviegedit
facility will mature on November 10, 2019.

Principal amounts borrowed are payable on the ntatate with such borrowings bearing interest
that is payable quarterly. The Partnership hasoécetof borrowing in Eurodollars or at the baserat
Eurodollar loans bear interest at a rate per aneguial to the LIBOR Rate administered by the ICEd@mark
Administration for one, two, three, six or twelvenths plus an applicable margin ranging from 15026
basis points, depending on the leverage ratio itheffect. Base rate loans bear interest at apat@annum
equal to the greatest of (i) the agent bank’s egfee rate, (ii) the federal funds effective ratesf80 basis
points and (iii) the rate for one month Eurodoltzans plus 100 basis points, plus an applicablggmaanging
from 50 to 125 basis points, depending on the Byeratio then in effect.

The revolving credit facility is secured by mortgagn substantiall y all of our and our restricted
subsidiaries’ properties and guarantees from airicted subsidiaries . The revolving credit fagiiontains
restrictive covenants that may limit our ability tamong other things:

?  incur additional indebtedness;

?  sell assets;

?  make loans to others;

?  make investments;

?  enter into mergers;

?  make certain restricted payments;

? incur liens; and
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?  engage in certain other transactions without thar gonsent of the lenders.

Borrowings under the revolving credit facility alsequire the Partnership to maintain the following
financial ratios:

?  aninterest coverage ratio, which is the ratichef Partnership’s consolidated EBITDA to its
consolidated current interest charges of at le&sta?1.0 at the end of each fiscal quarter; predithat upon
obtaining an investment grade rating, the borraway elect not to be subject to such ratio;

? aconsolidated total leverage ratio, which is titéorof consolidated debt to consolidated
EBITDA, of not more than 5.0 to 1.0; provided th#ter electing to issue unsecured high
yield notes, the consolidated total leverage ratlbnot be more than 5.25 to 1.0, or,
following the election of the borrower for two fEauarters after a material acquisition, 5.50
to 1.0; and

?  if the Partnership elects to issue unsecured higld potes, a consolidated senior secured
leverage ratio, which is the ratio of consolidasedior secured debt to consolidated EBITDA,
of not more than 3.75 to 1.0.

Contractual Obligations

At December 31, 2014, we had no borrowings ancktterk of credit outstanding under the revolving
credit facility. Under the terms of our revolvingedit facility, we are required to pay a commitmfad of
0.250% on any unused portion of the credit facility

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The following discussion relates to the criticat@enting policies and estimates for both the
Partnership and our Predecessor. The discussioaraigsis of our financial condition and resultopérations
are based upon our financial statements, which bheee prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The
preparation of our consolidated financial statemeatjuires us to make estimates and assumptionafteet
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, reesrand expenses and related disclosure of contiagsats and
liabilities. Certain accounting policies involvedgments and uncertainties to such an extent teat ik
reasonable likelihood that materially different amts could have been reported under different ¢mmdi, or
if different assumptions had been used. We evalatestimates and assumptions on a regular Misidase
our estimates on historical experience and varthier assumptions that are believed to be reasenailer
the circumstances, the results of which form th&sor making judgments about the carrying vabiegssets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent frother sources. Actual results may differ from thesémates
and assumptions used in preparation of our finasta@ements. We provide expanded discussion ofraue
significant accounting policies, estimates and jundgts below. We believe these accounting poli@éeat our
more significant estimates and assumptions usptkiparation of our financial statements. See Nete 2
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to tiveahcial statements for a discussion of additional
accounting policies and estimates made by managemen

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment primarily consists of gattgepipelines and compressor stations and are
stated at the lower of historical cost less accaedl depreciation, or fair value, if impaired. Vapitalize

construction-related direct labor and material costs. Mainteeaartd repair costs are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation is computed over the asset’s estimadetll life using the straightine method, based

on estimated useful lives and salvage values @tasSathering pipelines and compressor statians ar
depreciated over a 20 year useful life. The deptigri of fixed assets recorded under capital legseements
is included in depreciation expense. Uncertairtties may impact these estimates include, amongsthe
changes in laws and regulations relating to enwiremtal matters, including air and water qualitgtoeation
and abandonment requirements, economic
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conditions and supply and demand in the area. Vdleets are placed into service, management makes
estimates with respect to useful lives and salvadges that management believes are reasonables\éow
subsequent events could cause a change in estjitraiesby impacting future depreciation amounts.

General and Administrative Costs

General and administrative costs are charged acatid to us based on the nature of the expendes an
are allocated based on our proportionate sharentdrd’s gross property and equipment, capital edjperes
and direct labor costs, as applicable. These ditntaare based on estimates and assumptions #rmsgement
believes are reasonable.

Equity-based compensation grants are measurediagtiant date fair value and related compensation
cost is recognized over the vesting period of ttaeg Compensation cost for awards with gradedngst
provisions is recognized on a straight-line baser dhe requisite service period of each separatdjing
portion of the award. Estimating the fair valdeach award, the number of awards that will ultehavest,
and the forfeiture rate requires management toygpdgment to estimate the tenure of our employee s

Equity-based compensation expenses are allocaiesiliased on our proportionate share of Antero’s
direct labor costs. These allocations are basesstimates and assumptions that management betieves
reasonable.

New Accounting Pronouncements

On May 28, 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Statslaipdate (“ASU”) No. 201409, Revenue

from Contracts with Customeysvhich requires an entity to recognize the amadimévenue to which it
expects to be entitled for the transfer of promigedds or services to customers. The ASU will replaost
existing revenue recognition guidance in GAAP whérecomes effective. The new standard is effedtive
the Partnership on January 1, 2017. Early apptinds not permitted. The standard permits the @igdtler the

retrospective or cumulative effect transition methév/e are evaluating the effect that ASU 2609 will have

on our financial statements and related disclosWkshave not yet selected a transition methochawe we
determined the effect of the standard on our orggbimancial reporting.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2014, we did not have any-bHilance sheet arrangements other than immaterial
operating leases.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosuresAbout Market Risk

The primary objective of the following informatiamto provide forward-looking quantitative and

qualitative information about our potential expasto market risk. The term “market risk” referghe risk of
loss arising from adverse changes in commodityeprand interest rates. The disclosures are nottrtehr
precise indicators of expected future losses, dthier indicators of reasonably possible losses Thi

forward -looking information provides indicators of how wiew and manage our ongoing market risk
exposures.

Commaodity Price Risk

The gathering and compression agreement with Amtereides for fixed-fee structures, and we
intend to continue to pursue additional fixefde opportunities with Antero and third partieonder to avoid
direct commaodity price exposure. However, to theeeithat our future contractual arrangements wittero
or third parties do not provide for fixedee structures, we may become subject to commedite risk. We

are subject to commaodity price risks to the extbat they impact Antero’s development program and
production and therefore our gathering volumes.
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Interest Rate Risk

Our primary exposure to interest rate risk redudts outstanding borrowings under our revolving
credit facility, which has a floating interest rat#e do not currently, but may in the future, hetlgeinterest

on portions of our borrowings under our revolvimgdit facility from time-to —time in order to manage risks

associated with floating interest rates. At DebenB1, 2014, we had no borrowings and no lettecsealit
outstanding under the revolving credit facility.

Prior to our IPO, we incurred interest on indebtsinunder the midstream credit facility. The averag
annual interest rate incurred on our indebtednedenthe midstream credit facility for the year etid
December 31, 2014 was approximately 2.08%. A 1.@8ense in each of the average LIBOR rate anddéder
funds rate for the year ended December 31, 2014diwve resulted in an estimated $6.9 million iasein
interest expense for that period.

Credit Risk

We are dependent on Antero as our only customdrnanexpect to derive a substantial majority of
our revenues from Antero for the foreseeable futdeea result, any event, whether in our area efatons or
otherwise, that adversely affects Antero’s produrtdrilling schedule, financial condition, leveeagnarket
reputation, liquidity, results of operations or fedl®ws may adversely affect our revenues and easfiable
for distribution.

Further, we are subject to the risk of nggayment or nor-performance by Antero, including with

respect to our gathering and compression agreeMéntannot predict the extent to which Antero’sibesss
would be impacted if conditions in the energy irtdpsvere to deteriorate further , nor can we estinthe
impact such conditions would have on Antero’s &pilb execute its drilling and development progmmbo

perform under our agreement. Any material rpayment or nor-performance by Antero could reduce our
ability to make distributions to our unitholders.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

The Report of Independent Registered Public Acdogritirm, Consolidated Financial Statements and
supplementary financial data required for this l@m set forth beginning on page -F of this report and are
incorporated herein by reference.

Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountés on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by Rule 13a15(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded (the
“Exchange Act”), we have evaluated, under the sugi@n and with the participation of our management
including our principal executive officer and prippal financial officer, the effectiveness of thesidm and
operation of our disclosure controls and proced(assiefined in Rules 13dl5(e) and 15d15(e) under the
Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covesethis annual report. Our disclosure controls aratedures
are designed to ensure that information requirdgktdisclosed in the reports that we file or sunmier the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegudted, within the time periods specified in 8C's
rules and forms. Based upon that evaluation, dacimal executive officer and principal financidfioer
concluded that our disclosure controls and proasiutere effective as of December 31, 2014.
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

This annual report is not required to include arepf management’s assessment regarding internal
control over financial reporting or an attestatieport of our independent registered public acdagrfirm due
to a transition period established by rules of SB€ for newly public companies.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportm

There has been no change in our internal contred firancial reporting (as defined in Rules 3%

() and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the fourthrtgraof 2014 that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our interoantrol over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

Pursuant to Section 13(r) of the Securities Exchahet of 1934, we, Antero Midstream Partner s LP
may be required to disclo se in our annual andtgugmreports to the Securities and Exchange Comsionis
(the “SEC"), whether we or any of our “affiliatekhowingly engaged in certain activities, transatsior
dealings relating to Iran or with certain individsiar entities targeted by US economic sanctiddisclosure is
generally required even where the activities, taatisns or dealings were conducted in compliantk wi
applicable law. Because the SEC defines the taffiliate” broadly, it includes any entity underramon
“control” with us (and the term “control” is alsorstrued broadly by the SEC).

The description of the activities below has beeawvijged to us by Warburg Pincus LLC (“WP”),
affiliates of which: (i) beneficially own more thd®©% of our outstanding common units and/or are begmof
our general partner’s board of directors and fiepeficially own more than 10% of the equity inttseof, and
have the right to designate members of the boadireftors of Endurance International Group (“El@rd
Santander Asset Management Investment Holdingsted{i'SAMIH"). EIG and SAMIH may therefore be
deemed to be under common “control” with Antero Midam Partner LP; however, this statement is meatr
to be an admission that common control exists.

The disclosure below relates solely to activitieaducted by EIG and SAMIH and its non-U.S.
affiliates that may be deemed to be under commonttol” with Antero Midstream Partner LP . The
disclosure does not relate to any activities cotetliby us or by WP and does not involve our or WP’s
management. Neither we nor WP has had any invaweim or control over the disclosed activities of
SAMIH, and neither we nor WP has independentlyfieatior participated in the preparation of the
disclosure. Neither we nor WP is representingpahe accuracy or completeness of the disclosuremave or
WP undertake any obligation to correct or update it

As to EIG:

We understand that EIG’s affiliates intend to disel in their next annual or quarterly SEC repaat:th
“On July 2, 2013, the billing information for a sdriber account, or the Subscriber Account was teidia
include Seyed Mahmoud Mohaddes, or Mohaddes. Otefder 16, 2013, the Office of Foreign Assets
Control, or OFAC, designated Mohaddes as a Spgdikignated National, or SDN, pursuant to 31 C.F.R
Part 560.304. On or around September 26, 2014nglarroutine compliance scan of new and existing
subscriber accounts, EIG discovered that Mohadd8&N, was named as an account contact for the
Subscriber Account. EIG promptly suspended the &ilier Account, locked the domain name
IOCUKLTD.COM, which was registered to the SubscriBecount, and reported the domain name to OFAC as
potentially the property of a SDN subject to blackpursuant to Executive Order 13599. Since Septeri,
2013, when Mohaddes was added to the SDN listgelsan the total amount of $120.35 were made to the
Subscriber Account for web hosting and domain mvservices. EIG has ceased billing for the Subscri
Account. To date, EIG has not received any cornegeonce from OFAC regarding this matter.”

“On July 10, 2014, OFAC designated each of Stami@Holding, or Stars, and Teleserve Plus SAL,
or Teleserve, as SDNs under Executive Order 13224 their property became subject to blocking pamsto
the Global Terrorism Sanctions Regulations, 31R.Part 594. On July 15, 2014, as part of EIG’s jgiiance
review processes, EIG discovered that the domairesassociated with each of Stars, STARSCOM.NEd, an
Teleserve, TELESERVEPLUS.COM, or collectively, Biars/Teleserve Domain Names, were registered
through EIG’s platform. EIG immediately took stepsuspend and lock the Stars/Teleserve Domain Same
prevent them from being
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transferred or resolving to a website, and EIG gribyreported the Domain Names as potentially béotck
property to OFAC. EIG did not generate any reveinomm the Stars/Teleserve Domain Names between when
they were added to the SDN list on July 10, 20J@dhahen EIG discovered that they were registerealiin
EIG’s platform on July 15, 2014. To date, EIG hasmeceived any correspondence from OFAC regarifiag
matter.”

“On July 15, 2014 during a compliance scan of athdin names on one of our platforms, EIG
identified the domain name KAHANETZADAK.COM, or tlizomain Name, which was listed as an ‘also
known as,’ or AKA, of the entity Kahane Chai whiaperates as the American Friends of the United i¥ash
Kahane Chai was designated as a SDN on Novem{2€02, pursuant to Executive Order 13224. Because the
Domain Name was transferred into a customer acanfusne of EIG’s resellers, there was no direcaricial
transaction between EIG and the registered owntiteoDomain Name. The Domain Name was suspended
upon EIG’s discovering it on EIG’s platform, and@E&iteported the Domain Name to OFAC as potentiakiy t
property of a SDN. To date, EIG have not receiveg@rrespondence from OFAC regarding the matter.”

As to SAMIH:

We understand that SAMIH’s affiliates intend todliise in their next annual or quarterly SEC report
that “Santander UK holds frozen savings and curmenbunts for three customers resident in the Wha are
currently designated by the U.S. for terrorism. @beounts held by each customer were blocked thféer
customer’s designation and remained blocked anchalotr throughout 2014. No revenue has been gendrgted
Santander UK on these accounts. The bank accelohfdr one of these customers was closed in theto
quarter of 2014.”

“An Iranian national, resident in the U.K., whaocisrrently designated by the U.S. under the Iranian
Financial Sanctions Regulations and the Weapohass Destruction Proliferators Sanctions Regulation
(“NPWMD sanctions program”), holds a mortgage wBédntander UK that was issued prior to any such
designation. No further drawdown has been made¢oild be permitted) under this mortgage although
Santander UK continues to receive repayment imséadts. In 2014, total revenue in connection with t
mortgage was approximately £2,580 and net profésewmegligible relative to the overall profits afrfander
UK. The same Iranian national also holds two investt accounts with Santander Asset Management UK
Limited. The accounts have remained frozen duridtyg2 The investment returns are being automayicall
reinvested, and no disbursements have been mdke ¢ostomer. Total revenue for the Santander (iirou
connection with the investment accounts was £250n&t profits in 2014 were negligible relative e overall
profits of Banco Santander, S.A.”

“In addition, during the third quarter 2014, SamtanUK identified two additional customers: a UK
national designated by the U.S. under the NPWMDRtsams program held a business account. No trdiosac
were made and the account was closed in the foudhter of 2014. No revenue or profit has been
generated. A second UK national designated byJtidor reasons of terrorism held a personal cumenbunt
and a personal credit card account, both of whielevelosed in the third quarter of 2014. Although
transactions took place on the current accounnduhe third quarter of 2014, revenue and profisegated
were negligible. No transactions took place ondteglit card.”
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PART IlI

Item 10. Director s, Executive Officers, and Corpmte Governance
Management of Antero Midstream Partners LP

We are managed and operated by the board of diseatal executive officers of our general partner,
Antero Midstream Management LLC (“Midstream Managett). Our general partner is controlled by Antero
Investment. All of the officers and certain of ttieectors of our general partner ar e also offieard directors
of Antero. Neither our general partner nor its loloair directors is elected by our unitholders. Aatervestment
is the sole member of our general partner andheasgdht to appoint our general partner’s entirardoof
directors, including at least three independergalars meeting the independence standards estdblighthe
NYSE. Our unitholders are not entitled to diregibrticipate in our management or operations. Onegg
partner owes certain contractual duties to ourhaiters as well as a fiduciary duty to its owners.

Our general partner has 7 directors. The NYSE doesequire a listed publicly traded partnership,
such as ours, to have a majority of independeettiirs on the board of directors of our generaigaror to
establish a compensation committee or a nominatimgmittee. However, our general partner is requioed
have an audit committee of at least three membearsall its members are required to meet the inudgece
and experience standards established by the NY8EharExchange Act, subject to certain transitioahéf
during the year following this offering.

All of the executive officers of our general parttisted below allocate their time between managing
our business and affairs and the business andsaffbAntero. The amount of time that our genegatiger’s
executive officers devote to our business and tisniess of Antero will vary in any given year basada
variety of factors. Our general partner’s executffecers intend, however, to devote as much timthe
management of our business and affairs as is regefes the proper conduct of our business andraffa

Antero provides customary management and genengihégtrative services to us pursuant to a
services agreement. Our general partner reimbéseso at cost for its direct expenses incurredehalf of
us and a proportionate amount of its indirect espsrincurred on behalf of us, including, but nwiitéd to,
compensation expenses. Neither our general pararekntero receives any management fee or other
compensation. Under a services agreement, Antengek us a general and administrative fee for ces\t
provides us. Our partnership agreement does netlgeit on the amount of expenses for which ouregal
partner and its affiliates may be reimbursed. Thegenses include salary, bonus, incentive compiensand
other amounts paid to persons who perform serfarass or on our behalf and expenses allocatedito o
general partner by its affiliates. Please readnlfe3. Certain Relationships and Related Transaztowl
Director Independence.”

Board Leadership Structure

The Board does not have a formal policy addressimether or not the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate or combinde directors serving on the Board possess considera
professional and industry experience, significaqtegience as directors of both public and privateganies
and a unique knowledge of the challenges and opipitigs that the Partnership faces. As such, the®o
believes that it is in the best position to evaduae needs of the Partnership and to determinebegivto
organize Midstream Management’s leadership stredtumeet those needs.

At present, Midstream Management’s Board has chtisseambine the positions of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer. While the Board believessiimportant to retain the flexibility to detema whether
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Offideodd be separated or combined in one individia, t
Board believes that the current Chief Executivadeffis the individual with the necessary experénc
commitment and support of the other members oBtherd to effectively carry out the role of Chairman

The Board believes this structure promotes belignment of strategic development and execution,

more effective implementation of strategic initi@s$ and clearer accountability for the Partnerstaptcess or
failure.
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Moreover, the Board believes that combining thei@ian and Chief Executive Officer positions does no
impede independent oversight of the Partnershige &f the seven members of the Board are indepénden
under NYSE rules.

Board’s Role in Risk Oversight

In the normal course of its business, the Partieislexposed to a variety of risks, including nerk
risks relating to changes in commodity prices,regérates, technical risks affecting the Partripisifacilities,
political risks and credit and investment risk. Baard oversees the strategic direction of therneeship, and
in doing so considers the potential rewards arid rig the Partnership’s business opportunitiescdradlenges,
and monitors the development and management o ek impact the Partnership 's strategic goals.

Executive Sessions

To facilit ate candid discussion among our diresttine non-management directors meet in regularly
scheduled executive sessions.

Interested Party Communications

Unitholders and other interested parties may comcats by writing to: Antero Midstream Partners
LP, 1615 Wynkoop Street, Denver, Colorado 80204tHdiders may submit their communications to the
Board, any committee of the Board or individuakdiors on a confidential or anonymous basis byisgritie
communication in a sealed envelope marked "Unigro@ommunication with Directors" and clearly idénti
the intended recipient(s) of the communication.

Our Chief Administrative Officer will review eactommunication and other interested parties and will
forward the communication, as expeditiously asaeably practicable, to the addressees if: (1) the
communication complies with the requirements of apglicable policy adopted by the Board relatinghi
subject matter of the communication; and (2) th@mainication falls within the scope of matters gefier
considered by the Board. To the extent the sulbjatter of a communication relates to matters thaetbeen
delegated by the Board to a committee or to anwdikexofficer of the general partner, then the gahe
partner’'s Chief Administrative Officer may forwatite communication to the executive officer or chrain of
the committee to which the matter has been deldgdtee acceptance and forwarding of communications
the members of the Board or an executive officersdwot imply or create any fiduciary duty of theaBb
members or executive officer to the person submgitthe communications.

Information may be submitted confidentially and myrmously, although the Partnership may be
obligated by law to disclose the information orritiey of the person providing the information inncction
with government or private legal actions and ineottircumstances. The Partnership’s policy is adake any
adverse action, and not to tolerate any retaliaigainst any person for asking questions or magowyl faith
reports of possible violations of law, the Parth@'s policies or its Corporate Code of Businessiiat and
Ethics.

Available Governance Materials
The following materials are available on the Paghg’s website alvww.anteromidstream.com

o Charter of the Audit Committee of the Board,;
« Corporate Code of Business Conduct and Ethics;
- Financial Code of Ethics; and
» Corporate Governance Guidelines.
Unitholders may obtain a copy, free of charge,aafteof these documents by sending a written request
to Antero Midstream Partners LP, 1615 Wynkoop $ti@enver, Colorado, 80202.
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Directors and Executive Officers

The following table shows information for our gealgrartner’'s executive officers and directors.
Directors hold office until their successors haeemelected or qualified or until the earlier dfittdeath,
resignation, removal or disqualification. Executoféicers serve at the discretion of the board.rélee no
famil y relationships among any of the directorexecutive officers. Some of the di rectors anaathe
executive officers also serve as executive offioérantero.

Name Age Position With Our General Partner

Paul M. Rady 61 Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

Glen C. Warren, J 58 Director, President, Chief Financial Officer anccf&ary
Kevin J. Kilstrom 60 Vice Presider—Production

Alvyn A. Schopp 56 Chief Administrative Officer and Regional Vice Picent
Ward D. McNeilly 64 Vice Preside—Reserves, Planning and Midstre
Richard W. Conno 65 Director

Peter R. Kaga 46 Director

W. Howard Keenan, J 64 Director

Christopher R. Mannin 47 Director

David A. Peter: 56 Director

Paul M. Radyhas served as Chief Executive Officer and Chairofahe Board of Directors of
Midstream Management since February 2014. Mr. Ragly served as Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
of the Board of Directors of Antero since May 2@ of its predecessor company from its founding062
to its ultimate sale to XTO Energy, Inc. in AprD@5. Prior to Antero, Mr. Rady served as PresideBiQ and
Chairman of Pennaco Energy from 1998 until its salelarathon in early 2001. Prior to Pennaco, MadiR
was with Barrett Resources from 1990 until 1998 rehree initially was recruited as Chief GeologisiBoo0,
then served as Exploration Manager, EVP Explorarasident, COO and Director and ultimately CEO.

Mr. Rady began his career with Amoco where he seiveyears as a geologist focused on the Rockigs an

Mid -Continent. Mr. Rady holds a B.A. in Geology from $t&rn State College of Colorado and M.Sc. in
Geology from Western Washington University.

Mr. Rady ' s significant experience as a chief exi@e of oil and gas companies, together with his
training as a geologist and broad industry knowéedmable Mr. Rady to provide the board with exeeut
counsel on a full range of business, strategicpantessional matters.

Glen C. Warren, Jrhas served as President, Chief Financial Officdr@acretary and as a director of
Midstream Management since February 2014. Mr. Wiaatso served as President, Chief Financial Officet
Secretary and as a director of Antero since Mayt20@ of its predecessor company from its foundirgp02
to its ultimate sale to XTO Energy, Inc. in AprD@5. Prior to Antero, Mr. Warren served as EVP, Gifd
Director of Pennaco Energy from 1998 until its dal®larathon in early 2001. Mr. Warren spent 10ryes a
natural resources investment banker focused oryegil debt financing and M&A advisory with Lehman
Brothers, Dillons Read & Co. Inc. and Kidder, Pep& Co. Mr. Warren began his career as a landmahe
Gulf Coast region with Amoco, where he spent siargeMr. Warren holds a B.A. from the University of
Mississippi, a J.D. from the University of Missiggi School of Law and an M.B.A. from the Andersarh&ol
of Management at U.C.L.A.

Mr. Warren ' s significant experience as a chieficial officer of oil and gas companies, together
with his experience as an investment banker anadbircdustry knowledge, enable Mr. Warren to provfde
board with executive counsel on a full range ofibesss, strategic, financial and professional msitter

Kevin J. Kilstromhas served as Vice President of Production of vedsh Management since
February 2014. Mr. Kilstrom also has served as Wesident of Production of Antero since June 2007.
Mr. Kilstrom was a Manager of Petroleum Engineesith AGL Energy of Sydney, Australia from 2006 to
2007. Prior to AGL, Mr. Kilstrom was with Marath@il as an Engineering Consultant and Asset Manager
from 2003 to 2006 and as a Business Unit Managevifoathon ’ s Powder River coal bed methane assets
from 2001 to 2003. Mr. Kilstrom also served as anber of the board of directors of three Marathon
subsidiaries from October 2003 through May 2005. Kistrom was an Operations
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Manager and reserve engineer at Pennaco Energyl®8to 2001. Mr. Kilstrom was at Amoco for maneart
22 years prior to 1999. Mr. Kilstrom holds a B.$Engineering from lowa State University and an M\.B
from DePaul University.

Alvyn A. Schoppas served a s Chief Administrative Officer, Regidvice President , and Treasurer
of Midstream Management since February 2014. MnoBp has also served as Chief Administrative Gifi ¢
Regional Vice President, and Treasurer of AntemoesiSeptember 2013, as Vice President of Accousating
Administration and Treasurer from January 2005dpt&mber 2013, as Controller and Treasurer fron3 200
2005 and as Vice President of Accounting and Adstriafion and Treasurer of Antero ' s predecessor
company, Antero Resources Corporation, from Jan2@®p until its ultimate sale to XTO Energy, Inc.April

2005. From 1993 to 2000, Mr. Schopp was CFO, Direghd ultimately CEO of FNetix. From 1980 to 1993

Mr. Schopp was with KPMG LLP, most recently as ai8eManager. Mr. Schopp holds a B.B.A. from Drake
University.

Ward D. McNeillyhas served as Vice President of Reserves, Plaanihd/idstream of Midstream
Management since February 2014. Mr. McNeilly alas berved as Vice President of Reserves, Planning &
Midstream of Antero since October 2010. Mr. McNehlas 34 years of experience in oil and gas asset
management, operations, and reservoir managenrent. 2007 to October 2010, Mr. McNeilly was BHP
Billiton ’ s Gulf of Mexico Operations Manager. Fnol996 through 2007, Mr. McNeilly served in various
North Sea and Gulf of Mexico Deepwater operatiars @aset management positions with Amoco and ttien B
Mr. McNeilly served in a number of different domiesdnd international positions with Amoco from 1969
1996. Mr. McNeilly holds a B.S. in Geological Engering from the Mackay School of Mines at the Ursitg
of Nevada.

Richard W. Connor joined the board of Midstream Management in catiae with our listing on the
NYSE , and serves as the Chairman of the audit ddeenMr. Connor has served as a director andr@itzai
of the audit committee of Antero since Septemb&013. Prior to his retirement in September 2009,
Mr. Connor was an audit partner with KPMG LLP, d?MG, where he principally served publicly traded
clients in the energy, mining, telecommunicaticargj media industries for 38 years. Mr. Connor wasted to
the partnership in 1980 and was appointed to KPMGEC Reviewing Partners Committee in 1987 where h
served until his retirement. From 1996 to Septen2088, he served as the Managing Partner of KPMG ’
Denver office. Mr. Connor earned his B.S. degreacicounting from the University of Colorado. Mr.r®ar is
a member of the board of directors of Zayo Groujdigs, Inc. (NYSE: ZAYO), a provider of bandwidth
infrastructure and colocation services, and thérctaa of its audit committee. Mr. Connor is alsdigector of

Centerra Gold, Inc. (TSX: CG.T), a Torontbased gold mining company listed on the TorontalSto
Exchange.

Mr. Connor has experience in technical accountimfyauditing matters, knowledge of SEC filing
requirements and experience with a variety of enelignts. We believe his background and skillreake

Mr. Connor well-suited to serve as a member of our board of direeond as Chairman of the audit
committee.

Peter R. Kagarmnas served as a director of Midstream Managemeoe stebruary 2014. Mr. Kagan
also has served as a director of Antero since 2004Kagan has been with Warburg Pincus since 1@8&re
he leads the firm ’ s investment activities in gyeaind natural resources. He is a Partner of Wgrbur
Pincus & Co. and a Managing Director of WarburgcBsILLC. He is also a member of Warburg Pincus LLC
s Executive Management Group. Mr. Kagan receivBdda degree cum laude from Harvard College and J.D.
and M.B.A. degrees with honors from the UniversityChicago. Prior to joining Warburg Pincus, he ket in
investment banking at Salomon Brothers in both Nenk and Hong Kong. Mr. Kagan currently also serves
on the boards of directors of the following puld@mpanies: Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc., MEGrgye
Corp. and Targa Resources Corp., as well as thelboh several private companies. In addition,she i
director of Resources for the Future and a trustédilton Academy.

Mr. Kagan has significant experience with energmpanies and investments and broad knowledge of
the oil and gas industry. We believe his backgroamd skill set make Mr. Kagan welsuited to serve as a
member of our board of directors.

W. Howard Keenan, Jhas served as a director of Midstream Managemeog $tebruary 2014.

Mr. Keenan also has served as a director of Arggrce 2004. Mr. Keenan has over thirty -five yesfrs
experience in the financial
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and energy businesses. Since 1997, he has beembdvief Yorktown Partners LLC, a private investment
manager focused on the energy industry. From 187997, he was in the Corporate Finance Departofent
Dillon, Read & Co. Inc. and active in the privatpugy and energy areas, including the foundingheffirst
Yorktown Partners fund in 1991. He is serving os barved as a director of multiple Yorktown Pargner
portfolio companies. Mr. Keenan holds an B.A. degrtem laude from Harvard College and an M.B.A. degr
from Harvard University.

Mr. Keenan has significant experience with enemyganies and investments and broad knowledge
of the oil and gas industry. We believe his backgband skill set make Mr. Keenan wedluited to serve as a
member of our board of directors.

Christopher R. Mannindas served as a director of Midstream Managemece stebruary 2014,
Mr. Manning also has served as a director of Angémoe 2005. Mr. Manning has been a Partner witlaritic
Capital Partners since its formation and spin oarnfLehman Brothers Merchant Banking in April 2088d is
currently a member of its Executive Committee ahdi@nan of Trilantic Energy Partners . His priméogus
is on investments in the energy sector. Mr. Manmiiiged Lehman Brothers Merchant Banking in 20060 an
was concurrently the Head of Lehman Brothers ’ $tmeent Management Division, including both the Asse

Management and Private Equity businesses, in ABaific from 2006 to 2008. He was also a membé¢hef

Global Investment Management Division Executive @Guttee and the Private Equity Division Operating
Committee. Prior to Lehman Brothers, Mr. Manningsulze chief financial officer of The Wing Group, a
developer of international power projects. Priolte Wing Group, he was in the investment banking
department of Kidder, Peabody & Co., where he wibide M&A and corporate finance transactions in the
energy sector. Mr. Manning currently serves onttbards of The Cross Group, Enduring Resources, LLC,
Fluid Delivery Systems, Templar Energy LLC, andilliRadge Energy Partners Il LLC, Velvet Energy, Ltd
and Ward Energy Partners. Mr. Manning was previoGlairman of the Board of LB Pacific and TLP Energ
and a director of Mediterranean Resources and Zame&aPartners. Mr. Manning holds an M.B.A. fromeTh
Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvanid arB.B.A. from the University of Texas at Austin.

Mr. Manning has significant experience with enecgynpanies and investments and broad knowledge
of the oil and gas industry. We believe his backgmband skill set make Mr. Manning weluited to serve as
a member of our board of directors.

David A. Peters joined the board of Midstream Management in catiae with our listing on the
NYSE , and serves as a member of the audit conmamite. Peters served as a director of TransMonéa{gR
L.L.C., the general partner of TransMontaigne Radrn..P. (NYSE: TLP), from May 2005 to August 20a4d
served as a member of the audit and compensatiomittees and as the chair of the conflicts committe
Since 1999, Mr. Peters has been a business comswith a primary client focus in the energy sector
addition, Mr. Peters also served as a member didhed of directors of QDOBA Restaurant Corporafiom
1998 to 2003. From 1997 to 1999, Mr. Peters wasuaaging director of a private investment fund, &nch
1995 to 1997 he served as an executive vice prasid®uke Energy Field Services/PanEnergy FieldiSes
Inc., responsible for natural gas gathering, preiogsand storage operations. Prior to joining DEkergy
Field Services/PanEnergy Field Services Inc., MteBs held various positions with Associated NatGas
Corporation, and from 1980 to 1984, he worked sdhdit department of Peat Marwick Mitchell & Co.
Mr. Peters holds a B.B.A. from the University ofdigan.

Mr. Peters has extensive knowledge of the enerdysimy as a business consultant and a former
director of the general partner of a master limpadnership and significant financial and accaumti

knowledge. We believe his background and skilhsgke Mr. Peters weltsuited to serve as a member of our
board of directors and of the audit committee.

Committees of the Board of Directors
The board of directors of our general partner magualit committee. We do not have a compensa tion
committee, but rather the board of directors wfgeneral partner approve s equity grants to ttireand

Antero employees. The board of directors of ouregainpartner may establish a conflicts committeeetdew
specific matters that the board believes may inv@lenflicts of interest.
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Audit Committee

Our general partner established an audit commiptiee to the completion of our IPO. Rules
implemented by the NYSE and SEC require us to aavaudit committee comprised of at least threectbire
who meet the independence and experience stanestatsdished by the NYSE and the Exchange Act, stibje
to transitional relief during the year followingmllPO. Messrs. Connor and Peters serve on ouitaud
committee, and Mr. Connor serves as the Chairmaimeofommittee. As required by the rules of the SBEE
listing standards of the NYSE, the audit commitiéléconsist solely of independent directors, sabj®
transitional relief. SEC rules also require thaualic company disclose whether or not its audihouttee has
an “audit committee financial expert” as a member.“audit committee financial expert” is definedas
person who, based on his or her experience, passtss attributes outlined in such rules. Our boérd
directors believes that Mr. Connor possesses suatéinancial experience based on his extensigesence
in technical accounting and auditing matters am@ér audit partner of KPMG, LLP. As a result oésk
qualifications, we believe Mr. Connor satisfies tiedinition of “audit committee financial expert.”

This committee oversees, reviews, acts on and teparvarious auditing and accounting matters to
our board of directors, including: the selectioroaf independent accountants, the scope of ourshmudlits,
fees to be paid to the independent accountantgetiermance of our independent accountants and our
accounting practices. In addition, the audit coreribversees our compliance programs relatingg knd
regulatory requirements. We adopted an audit coteenitharter defining the committee’s primary duiea
manner consistent with the rules of the SEC and BlYS

Conflicts Committee

Our general partner may, from time to time, haeerflicts committee to which the board will appoint
at least two independent directors and which magdied to review specific matters that the boatiéwes
may involve conflicts of interest and determinesubmit to the conflicts committee for review. Teenflicts
committee will determine if the resolution of thendlict of interest is adverse to the interesthaf partnership.
The members of the conflicts committee may notflieass or employees of our general partner oraiaes,
officers or employees of its affiliates, includidgtero Investment and Antero, and must meet thepeddence
standards established by the NYSE and the Exchacig® serve on an audit committee of a board of
directors, along with other requirements in outparship agreement. Any matters approved by thélictn
committee will be conclusively deemed to be appdoye us and all of our partners and not a breachuoy
general partner of any duties it may owe us orumitholders.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of41@fjuires executive officers and managing board
members of our general partner and persons whdibiatlg own more than 10% of a registered clasowf
equity securities to file reports of ownership @hdnges in ownership with the Securities and Exgban
Commission and to furnish us with copies of alllsteports.

Based solely upon our review of reports receivedifyor representations from certain reporting
persons that no filings were required, we beliéa &ll of the officers and managing board membémur
general partner and persons who beneficially ownetk than 10% of our common units complied with all
applicable filing requirements during fiscal ye@ia.

Iltem 11. Executive Compensation

Neither we nor our general partner have any emplayall of the executive officers of our general
partner and other personnel who provide servicesitdusiness are employed by Antero. The namecisixe
officers of our
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general partner (which we refer to below as ourrfidd Executive Officers”) are listed below alonghiteir
respective principal positions with our generaltipar and Antero:

Name Principal Position
Paul M. Rady Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief ExaeuOfficer
Glen C. Warren, J Director, President, Chief Financial Officer andcf®tary
Alvyn A. Schopp Chief Administrative Officer and Regional Vice Pident

Aside from certain equity awards granted to our Ndrxecutive Officers under the Antero
Midstream Partners LP Long-Term Incentive Plan {Maistream LTIP”), our Named Executive Officers
currently receive all of their compensation anddfgs for services provided to our business fronteho.
Although we bear an allocated portion of Anteraists of providing such compensation and benefitado
employees who serve as our Named Executive Offiverhave no control over such costs and do nabbst
or direct the compensation policies or practiceAmtero. Pursuant to the services agreement tadtave
entered into with Antero and our general partner ane required to reimburse Antero for a propoéten
amount of compensation expenses incurred on owalbeh

Summary Compensation Table

Option
Stock All Other
Salary Bonus Awards Awards  Compensatior Total

Name and Principal Position Year ($) (%) (1) (%) (2 ($) ($) (4) ($)
Paul M. Rady 201£$800,000$% 960,00C $25,567,99:t$ —((3)$ 6,677 $27,334,67:
(Chairman of the Board and 201z $650,000 $1,200,00C $ —$ — 8 —$ 1,850,00C

Chief Executive Officel
Glen C. Warren, J 201<$600,000%$ 600,00C $17,051,96¢$ —(3)$ 10,400 %18,262,36¢
(Director, President and Chief201: $525,000$% 950,00C $ —$ — 8 —$ 1,475,00C

Financial

Officer and Secretary
Alvyn A. Schopp 2012%$400,000$ 340,00C$ 9,392,024 —(3)$ 10,400%$10,142,42¢
(Chief Administrative Officer 2012 $350,000$ 500,00C $ —$ — 3 —$ 850,000

and Regional Vice Presider

(1) Represents the aggregate amount of the annuattiswry cash bonuses paid to each Named ExedDffieer.

(2) The amounts reflected in this column represengthat date fair value of (i) restricted stock watards granted to tt
Named Executive Officers pursuant to the AR LTIP dafined below) and (ii) phantom units (which ut# tanden
distribution equivalent rights) granted to the Nankxecutive Officers pursuant to the Midstream L Td&mputed in
accordance with Financial Accounting Standards 8¢d&fASB”) Accounting Standard Codification (“ASCTjopic
718. See Note 5 to our consolidated financial states for additional detail regarding assumptiamdeulying the
value of these equity awarc

(3) In May 2013, Messrs. Rady, Warren, and Schogge each granted additional units in Employee Hglsl(as defined
below). As indicated below under the heading “—Idtive Disclosure to the Summary Compensation Table—
Employee Holdings Unit Awards,” the units in Empé&yHoldings are intended to constitute “profiteiasts” for
federal tax purposes. Accordingly, if Employee Hiofgs had been liquidated as of the date these weits granted,
Messrs. Rady, Warren, and Schopp would not have éetitled to receive a distribution with respexstich units

(4) The amounts reflected in this column reprefemamount of Antero’s 401(k) match for fiscal 2Gar each
participating Named Executive Office

Narrative Disclosure to the Summary Compensation Thle

The following is a discussion of material factoesessary to an understanding of the information
disclosed in the Summary Compensation Table

Phantom Unit Awards
On November 12, 2014, the board of directors ofgameral partner granted phantom units under the

Midstream LTIP to each of our Named Executive @fficin connection with our IPO. 25% of the phantom
units
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granted to each of our Named Executive Officer$lveitome vested on each of the first four anniversaf
the grant date so long as the applicable NamedufixecOfficer remains continuously employed by Ante
from the grant date through the applicable vedtiaig. All of the phantom units granted to each Bldm
Executive Officer will also become fully vested iradiately if such Named Executive Officer's employrne
terminates due to his death or disability. Vegkdntom units (less any phantom units withhelsktiisfy
applicable tax withholding obligations) will be #etl through the issuance of common units withird89s
following the applicable vesting date. While a Nahfiexecutive Officer holds unvested phantom unigsish
entitled to receive distribution equivalent righedits (the “Midstream DERS”) equal to cash disitibns paid
in respect of a common unit. The Midstream DERSElve paid in cash within 30 days following the treg of
the associated phantom units (and will be forfeitethe same time the associated phantom unifedegted).
The potential acceleration and forfeiture eventatirgg to these phantom units are described intgreketail
under the heading “Potential Payments Upon Ternginair a Change in Control” below.

Antero Restricted Stock Unit Awards

On April 1, 2014, the board of directors of our gaai partner granted restricted stock unit awards
under Antero’s Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “ARIET) to each of our Named Executive Officers in
connection with a retention program adopted bybtberd of directors of our general partner in fis2@l4. The
retention program was intended to provide our NaBegtutive Officers with a direct link to the perftance
of Antero’s common stock while encouraging theintboued service to Antero and us. With respect as#is.
Rady and Warren, 50% of the restricted stock umérds granted pursuant to the retention programvesit on
October 22 of each of 2016 and 2017, so long aRddy or Warren, as applicable, remains continyousl
employed by Antero from the grant date throughapplicable vesting date. With respect to Mr. Sgh&5%
of the restricted stock unit awards granted purstaathe retention program will vest on April 1 edich of
2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018, so long as Mr. Schapgires continuously employed by Antero from the gran
date through the applicable vesting date. All &f tbstricted stock units granted to each Named iEixec
Officer will also become fully vested immediatefysuch Named Executive Officer's employment ternéisa
due to his death or disability. Vested restrictiatls units (less any restricted stock units witkhtel satisfy
applicable tax withholding obligations) will be 8etl through the issuance of Antero common sto¢hkiwi30
days following the applicable vesting date. Whildamed Executive Officer holds unvested restrictedk
units, he is entitled to receive distribution egu@nt right credits (the “AR DERSs”) equal to casstributions
paid in respect of a share of Antero common stdble. AR DERs will be paid in cash within 30 dayddaling
the vesting of the associated restricted stocksyaitd will be forfeited at the same time the aisded
restricted stock units are forfeited). The poterdiaeleration and forfeiture events relating tes¢heestricted
stock units are described in greater detail unideheading “Potential Payments Upon Terminatioa Ghange
in Control” below. As of December 31, 2014, no rietdd stock unit awards granted pursuant to thentsn
program had vested.

Employee Holdings Unit Awards

Historically, Antero’s long-term equity-based intige awards have consisted of profits interests in
Antero Resources Employee Holdings LLC (“Employea®dihgs”), which holds as a portion of the
membership interests in Antero Resources Investide@t(“*ARI”), which in turn, owns approximately 79%f
the outstanding shares of Antero’s common stocks&hawards entitle Antero’s employees, including ou
Named Executive Officers, to receive, subject otdrms and provisions of the limited liability cpamy
agreement of Employee Holdings (the “Employee HaidiLLC Agreement”) and the restricted unit
agreements pursuant to which the awards were graafgortion of any future profits of Employee Halgs
that result from any distributions on the ARI urihiat are held by Employee Holdings once certairne
thresholds have been achieved. This structure edabitero to provide its employees with long-tempigy
incentive compensation in an affiliated entity thaty directly profit from any success Antero ack&vlhe
numbers and classes of units in Employee Holdihgswere granted to each Named Executive Officeewe
determined based on each executive’s contributiadhe growth of Antero.

Other than the Employee Holdings units granted &sdfs. Rady, Warren, and Schopp in May 2013,
all of the Employee Holdings units held by our Nankxecutive Officers were fully vested as of Decemil,
2014. The unvested portion of the Employee Holdungjts held by Messrs. Rady, Warren, and Schopip wil
become vested in accordance with the schedulesasiled in footnote 4 to the Outstanding Equity Adgaat
2014 Fiscal Year-End table below.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at 2014 Fiscal Yea-End

The following table provides information concernieguity awards that have not vested for our

Named Executive Officers as of December 31, 2014.

Option Awards(1) Stock Awards(6)
Number of Number of
Securities Securities Market
Underlying Underlying Number of Value of
Unexercised Unexercised Option Option Units That  Units That
Options Options Exercise Expiration  Have Not Have Not
Unexercisable Exercisable Price Date Vested Vested
Name ® (2) @3 QIO QIO @ (M % ®
Paul M. Rady
Class £-2 Units — 113,670 N/A N/A N/A
Class E-2 Units — 500,000 N/A N/A N/A
Class E-4 Units(4) 1,875,00C 625,000 N/A N/A N/A
Restricted Stock Unit 307,314 $ 12,470,802
Phantom Unit: 192,00C $ 5,280,00C
Glen C. Warren, J
Class £-2 Units — 75,780 N/A N/A N/A
Class E-2 Units — 333,333 N/A N/A N/A
Class E-4 Units(4) 1,250,00C 416,667 N/A N/A N/A
Restricted Stock Unit 204,978 $ 8,318,007
Phantom Units 128,00C $ 3,520,00C
Alvyn A. Schopp
Class £-2 Units — 50,000 N/A N/A N/A
Class E-2 Units — 125,000 N/A N/A N/A
Class E-4 Units(4) 318,750 106,250 N/A N/A N/A
Restricted Stock Unit 122,926 $ 4,988,337
Phantom Unit: 48,000 $ 1,320,00C

1)

(2)
(3)
(4)
(®)
(6)
()

8)

The equity awards that are disclosed in thiss@nding Equity Awards at 2014 Fiscal Year-Erdeander Option
Awards are units in Employee Holdings that areridesl to constitute profits interests for federalgarposes rather
than traditional option award

Awards reflected a“Unexercisabl” are Employee Holdings units that have not yet beceested

Awards reflected a“Exercisabl” are Employee Holdings units that have become vebtgcave not yet been settl
One-third of the unvested Employee Holdinggsureflected in this row will become vested onleatMay 7, 2015,
May 7, 2016 and May 7, 2017 so long as the apgdichlbmed Executive Officer remains continuously Eygd by
Antero or one of its affiliates through each suakec

These equity awards are not traditional ofgtiand, therefore, there is no exercise price oira@xpn date associated
with them.

The equity awards that are disclosed in thiss@nding Equity Awards at 2014 Fiscal Year-Erdeander Stock
Awards are restricted stock unigranted under thAR LTIP and phantom units granted under the Midstream L.
Except as otherwise provided in the applicable dvagreement, (i) (A) with respect to Messrs. Raaty Warren, 50¢
of the restricted stock units will vest on OctoB@rof each of 2016 and 2017, so long as Mr. Radiamen, as
applicable, remains continuously employed by Anfesm the grant date through the applicable vedtiaig, and (B)
with respect to Mr. Schopp, 25% of the restrictiedtls units will vest on April 1 of each of 2015,18) 2017 and 201
so long as Mr. Schopp remains continuously empldyedntero from the grant date through the applieaiesting
date, and (ii) 25% of the phantom units granteelsich of our Named Executive Officers will becomsted on
November 12, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018, in eaah sadong as the applicable Named Executive Offiemains
continuously employed by Antero from the grant dateugh the applicable vesting de

The amounts reflected in this column represimimarket value of (i) common stock underlying tbstricted stock
unit awards granted to the Named Executive Officgmsputed based on the closing price of Anterofmmon stock
on December 31, 2014, which was $40.58 per shad(i our common units underlying the phantont amvards
granted to the Named Executive Officers, computeskt on the closing price of our common units ooeD®er 31,
2014, which was $27.50 per ur
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Additional Narrative Disclosure
Retirement Benefi

Antero has not maintained, and does not currendlintain, a defined benefit pension plan or a
nonqualified deferred compensation plan providimgrétirement benefits. Antero maintains an emptoye
retirement savings plan through which employees saag for retirement or future events on a tax-athged
basis. Participation in the 401(k) plan is at tiseetion of each individual employee, and our Ndme
Executive Officers participate in the plan on theng basis as all other employees. While the plamifse
Antero to make discretionary matching and non-afeatontributions, Antero has not made any employer
contributions in recent years apart from safe hanbatching contributions equal to 100% of employpes-
tax contributions under the plan, but not as tetprecontributions exceeding 4% of their eligibargpensation
(up to IRS limitations).

Potential Payments Upon Termination or a Chang€amtrol

Antero does not maintain any employment, severanchange in control agreements with any of our
Named Executive Officers. However, the unvestetsuniEmployee Holdings granted to Messrs. Rady,
Warren and Schopp could be affected by the termoimaif their employment or the occurrence of certai
corporate events. The impact of such a terminaiiczorporate event upon the units is governed bytéhms of
both the restricted unit agreements issued to ihesonnection with the grant of their unit awards,well as
the Employee Holdings LLC Agreement.

The Employee Holdings LLC Agreement provides thadruthe termination of a Named Executive
Officer's employment with Antero by reason of deatHdisability” (as defined below) or upon the acence
of an “exit event” (as defined below) while the NagrExecutive Officer is employed by Antero, any ested
portion of the Employee Holdings units grantedhte Named Executive Officer will become vested; Aaite
termination of the Named Executive Officer's emptmnt with or without “cause,” as well as the offise
voluntary termination of employment, generally fé&sin the forfeiture of all unvested Employee Holgs
units. In addition, a termination for “cause” rasuh a forfeiture of all vested units. Any unvebstmrtion of
the Employee Holdings units granted to a Named &xez Officer may also become immediately vestedeaun
such circumstances and at such times as the bbdmkotors of Employee Holdings determines to be
appropriate in its discretion.

The Employee Holdings LLC Agreement also provided tipon the voluntary resignation of a Named
Executive Officer or the occurrence of an exit dyany portion of the Employee Holdings units geahto the
officer that have vested as of the time of the iapple event are subject to repurchase, at Emplbipégings’
option, at a purchase price equal to the “fair mialue” of such units, as determined by the unanos
resolution of the board of directors of Employeddittgs. Such amount may be paid by Employee Hokling
cash or by promissory note. In addition, in liewetifcting to repurchase all or any portion of a Mdm
Executive Officer’'s vested units in Employee Holginthe board of directors of Employee Holdingsthas
right to modify such units so that the aggregatewamthat may potentially be distributed with resge such
units is “capped” at the lesser of (a) the aggeegatount that the Named Executive Officer is exditb
receive with respect to such units under the Emgddytoldings LLC Agreement or (b) an amount equahéo
sum of (x) the fair market value of such units fithe date the Named Executive Officer's employment
terminates (the “Termination Value”) and (y) anration amount with respect to the Termination Value
calculated based upon a rate equal to 5% per amampounding annually in arrears as of the Terrionat
Date.

Under the Employee Holdings LLC Agreement, a Naterecutive Officer will be considered to have
incurred a “disability” if the officer becomes imacitated by accident, sickness or other circuncstémat
renders the officer mentally or physically incamabf performing the officer’s duties with Antero arfull time
basis for a period of at least 120 days duringHhynonth period. A termination for “cause” will agc
following an employee’s (1) gross negligence offuliimisconduct, (2) conviction of a felony or droe
involving theft, fraud or moral turpitude, (3) refl to perform material duties or responsibilitigg, willful
and material breach of a corporate policy or cddmaduct or (5) willful engagement in conduct tdamages
the integrity, reputation or financial success otéo or any of its affiliates. Further, an “exiteat” generally
includes the sale of Antero Investment, in onedaation or a series of related transactions, whethectured
as (a) a sale or other transfer of all or substintall of Antero Investment (including by way wierger,
consolidation, share exchange, or similar transagt(b) a sale or other transfer of all or
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substantially all of our assets promptly followedebdissolution and liquidation of our company or g
combination of the transactions described in clagagand (b).

As noted above, any unvested phantom units oricestrstock units granted to our Named Executive
Officers will become immediately fully vested ifetapplicable Named Executive Officer's employmeithw
Antero terminates due to his death or “disability=dr purposes of these awards, a Named Execuffiee©
will be considered to have incurred a “disabilitiyhe is unable to engage in any substantial gaaudtivity by
reason of any medically determinable physical ontmempairment that can be expected to resuleitld or
which has lasted or can be expected to last fantirmious period of not less than 12 months.

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Catrol Table for Fiscal 2014

Because the right to repurchase vested Employedings units is optional rather than mandatory,
none of our Named Executive Officers would have &aight to receive any amounts in respect of their
Employee Holdings units on or after a terminatibtheir employment or the occurrence of an exitrg\as of
December 31, 2014. However, if Messrs. Rady, Wawe&chopp’s employment with Antero would have
terminated due to the Named Executive Officerstldea disability or if an exit event occurred, thevested
portion of his Employee Holdings units would hawebtme vested. The Employee Holdings units effelgtive
represent an indirect interest in certain sharesnééro’s common stock. The closing price of Antero
common stock on December 31, 2014 was $40.58 jpeesh

Similarly, if any of our Named Executive Officesmployment with Antero would have terminated
due to the Named Executive Officers’ death or diggpthe unvested portion of his restricted stagkts and
phantom units, as applicable, would have becomdesThe restricted stock units represent a dintetest in
shares of Antero’s common stock, and the closimgepf Antero’s common stock on December 31, 2044 w
$40.58 per share. The phantom units represemeatdinterest in our common units, and the clogirige of
our common units on December 31, 2014 was $27.60Qmpe

The amounts that each of our Named Executive Qfiasuld receive in connection with the
accelerated vesting of their equity awards uparm@ination due to their death or disability (assugrsuch
termination occurred on December 31, 2014) is ohetlin the last column of the Outstanding Equityadds at
2014 Fiscal Year-End table above.

Compensation of Directors
Generally

Each director of our general partner who is nobfficer or employee of Antero receives the follogin
compensation for serving as a director:

an annual retainer fee of $60,000 per year;

an additional retainer of $7,500 per year if suithador is a member of the audit committee (or an
additional retainer of $20,000 per year if sucledior serves as the chairperson of the audit
committee); and

an additional retainer of $5,000 per year if suithalor is a member of the conflicts committeedor
additional retainer of $15,000 per year if sucledior serves as the chairperson of the conflicts
committee).

In addition to cash compensation, our non-emplajetors receive annual equity-based
compensation consisting of restricted units underMidstream LTIP with an aggregate grant dateevalyual
to $100,000, subject to the terms and conditiorth@Midstream LTIP and the award agreements potsoa
which such awards are granted.

All retainers are paid in cash on a quarterly bas@rears, but directors have the option to efect
receive their retainers in the form of common upiissuant to the Midstream LTIP rather than in c&xlr
non-employee directors do not receive any meeteg,fbut each director is reimbursed for (i) trarel
miscellaneous expenses to attend meetings andtiastiof the board of directors of our general partor its
committees and (i) travel and miscellaneous expgenslated to participation in general educatiah an
orientation programs for directors.
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Each director is fully indemnified by us for act®associated with serving as a director to thedull
extent permitted under Delaware law.

Director Compensation Tab

Officers or employees of Antero who also serveieectbrs of our general partner do not receive
additional compensation for such service. Theofeihg table provides information concerning the
compensation of our non-employee directors forfidwl year ended December 31, 2014.

Fee Earned ol

Paid in Cash  Unit Awards Total
Name ($) 010 ($) 0200 ($)
Peter Kegal $ 15,000 $ 116,000 $ 131,000
W Howard Keenan, J $ 15,000 $ 116,000 $ 131,000
Christopher R. Mannin $ 15,000 $ 116,000 $ 131,000
Richard W. Conno $ 20,000 $ 116,000 $ 136,000
David Peter: $ 20,625 $ 116,000 $ 136,625

(1) Includes annual cash retainer fee and committeie fefess for each nc-employee director during fiscal 2014,
described abov¢

(2) The amounts reflected in this column repretfemgrant date fair value of restricted unit asagcanted to the non-
employee directors of our general partner, compinteatcordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. See Note &ur
consolidated financial statements for additionahileegarding assumptions underlying the valuthete equity
awards. As of December 31, 2014, Messrs. Kagaan&®, Manning, Connor, and Peters each held adb4a000
restricted units, which will become fully vested davember 12, 2015 so long as the applicableeraployee directc
continues to serve on our general pa'’'s board of directors through such di

Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table sets forth information about @ecurities that may be issued under all existing
equity compensation plans of the Partnership artéraras of December 31, 2014.

Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securities to b future issuance under
issued upon exercise ¢ ~ Weighted-average exercisi equity compensation plan
outstanding options, price of outstanding options (excluding securities
warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
Plan Category (a) ('2) (b) (c)

Equity compensation plans
approved by security holde
Antero Resources Corporation

Long-Term Incentive Plan(: 1,970,587 $ 52.44(3) 14,819,82:
Antero Midstream Partners L
Long-Term Incentive Plan(: 2,361,44C N/A(4) 7,618,56(

Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holde — — —
Total 4,332,021 22,438,38:

(1) The Antero Resources Corporation Long-Terneifitive Plan (the “AR LTIP") was approved by ouressetockholder
prior to our IPO

(2) The Antero Midstream Partners LP Long Ternehtive Plan (the “Midstream LTIP”) was approvedtbg general
partner of the Partnership prior to its IF

(3) The calculation of the weighted-average esergirice of outstanding options, warrants and sigitludes restricted
stock unit awards granted under the AR L1

(4) Only phantom unit awards are granted undeMiustream LTIP, therefore there is no weightedrage exercise
price.
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Iltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiaDwners and Management

The following table sets forth the beneficial owstép of common units and subordinated units of

Antero Midstream Partners LP that will be issued autstanding as of February 19, 2015 held by:

« our general partner;

« beneficial owners of 5% or more of our common ynits

« each director and named executive officer; and

« all of our general partner’s directors and exeeutfficers as a group.

Unless otherwise noted, the address for each lwisledivner listed below is 1615 Wynkoop Street,

Denver, Colorado 80202.

Percentage ¢

Common
Percentage ¢ and
Percentage o Subordinated Subordinated  Subordinated
Common Units  Common Units Units Units Units
Beneficially Beneficially Beneficially Beneficially Beneficially

Name of Beneficial Ownetr Owned Owned Owned Owned Owned
Antero Resources Corporatit? 29,940,957 39.4% 75,940,957 100% 69.7%
Antero Resources Midstream

Management LL(* — —% — —% —%
Richard W. Conno 9,000 *0% — —% *0%
Peter R. Kaga 4,000 *% — —% *%
W. Howard Keenan, J 4,000 *% — —% *%
Christopher R. Mannin 14,000 *% — —% *0%
David A. Peter: 10,000 *0h — —% *0%
Paul M. Rady 60,000 *% — —% *%
Glen C. Warren, Ji 40,000 *0% — —% *%
Kevin J. Kilstrom — *% — —% *0%
Alvyn A. Schopp 6,000 *0% — —% *%
Ward D. McNeilly — *% — —% *0%
All directors and executive

officers as a group (10 persol 147,000 *% — —% *%

1)

)

Less than 1%.

Under Antero’s amended and restated certdichincorporation and bylaws, the voting and dssfian of any of our
common or subordinated units held by Antero willcoatrolled by the board of directors of AnterogTboard of
directors of Antero, which acts by majority approwamprises Peter R. Kagan, W. Howard KeenanChristopher
R. Manning, Robert J. Clark, Richard W. Connor, jBemn A. Hardesty, James R. Levy, Paul M. Rady @feh C.
Warren, Jr. Each of the members of Antero’s bo&wirectors disclaims beneficial ownership of arfiyor units held
by Antero.

Under our general partr's amended and restated limited liability compamgagent, the voting and disposition
any of our common or subordinated units or thentige distribution rights held by our general partwill be
controlled by its sole member, Antero Resourcesdtment LLC (“Antero Investment”). The board ofetitors of
Antero Investment, which acts by majority approeainprises Peter R. Kagan, W. Howard Keenan, Bris©pher
R. Manning, Paul M. Rady and Glen C. Warren, JchEaf the members of Antero Investment’s boardiafators
disclaims beneficial ownership of any of our setiesiheld by our general partn
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The following table sets forth the number of sharesommon stock of Antero owned by each of the
named executive officers and directors of our galngartner and all directors and executive offiagreur
general partner as a group as of February 19, 2015:

Percentage c

Shares Shares
Beneficially  Beneficially

Name of Beneficial Owner Owned Owned
Richard W. Conno®®® 4,861 s
Peter R. Kaga®® 6,036 *
W. Howard Keenan, JV®@ 4,821 s
Christopher R. Mannin®®® 40,571 *
David A. Peter: — —
Paul M. Rady 307,314 *
Glen C. Warren, J® 204,985 &
Kevin J. Kilstrom 122,926 *
Alvyn A. Schopp 122,926 *
All directors and executive officers as a groupé®sons 814,440 *

*  Less than 1%.

(1) Includes 1,477 shares of common stock of Antenaaise upon exercise of outstanding optic

(2) Includes 1,526 shares of restricted stock thatweiit on October 16, 201

(3) Mr. Connor indirectly own 40 shares of comnstock of Antero purchased by a family member, #rede shares are
included because of his relation to the purchaderConnor disclaims beneficial ownership of alasés reported
except to the extent of his pecuniary interestedime

(4) Mr. Manning is a partner of Trilantic Capital Pats. Mr. Manning indirectly owns 35,750 sharesahmon stock o
Antero purchased by TCP Antero Principals LLC, #aftic Capital Partners entity, and these sharesnzluded
because of his affiliation with Trilantic Capitahiners. Mr. Manning disclaims beneficial ownerstiill shares
reported except to the extent of his pecuniaryr@sietherein

(5) Mr. Warren indirectly owns 7 shares of comnstock of Antero purchased by a family member, fede shares are
included because of his relation to the purchaderWarren disclaims beneficial ownership of alasts reported
except to the extent of his pecuniary interestetin.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plan

The following table sets forth information with pest to the securities that may be issued under the
Midstream LTIP as of February 19, 2015. The Miglsin LTIP was adopted by our general partner in
connection with the closing of our IPO and proviflasthe making of certain awards. For informataout
the Midstream LTIP, that did not require approwaldor limited partners, please read “Item 11. Exiee
Compensation—Additional Narrative Disclosure—Miéstm Long-Term Incentive Plan” in this Form 10-K.

Number of securities to b Weighted average Number of securities remaining
issued upon exercise ¢ exercise price of available for future issuance undel
outstanding options, outstanding options, equity compensation plans
Plan Category warrants and rights (1)  warrants and rights (2) excluding securities reflected in colum
Equity compensation plans
approved by security
holders 2,381,44( — 7,618,56(

(1) Amounts in this column reflect phantom unitsl @estricted units that have been granted und@eMitistream LTIP.
No awards (as defined under the LTIP) have beereroditer than the phantom units and restricted .uhfitese
phantom units and restricted units vest subjetitecsatisfaction of service requirements, uporctimpletion of whicl
common units in the Partnership are delivered échitider of the restricted units or phantom ui

(2) This column is not applicable because phantom wloitsot have an exercise pri
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transdons and Director Independence

Antero owns 29,940,957 common units and 75,940s@bordinated units representing an aggregate
approximately 69.7% limited partner interest in Aistero Investment owns and controls (and appdilithe

directors of) our general partner, which owns a feconomic general partner interest in us and thenitive
distribution rights.

Distributions and Payments to Our General Partner ad Its Affiliates

The following table summarizes the distributiond @ayments to be made by us to our general partner
and its affiliates in connection with the conversiongoing operation and any liquidation of us.

Conversion of Antero Resources Midstream LLC to Ari Midstream Partners LP

The aggregate consideration
received by our general partner in
connection with the conversion of
its special membership interest
pursuant to the limited liability

company agreement of Antero ) .
Resources Midstream LL « the non-economic general partner interest; and

¢ the incentive distribution right

The aggregate consideration

received by Antero in connection

with the conversion of its

common economic interest

pursuant to the limited liability

company agreement of Antero

Resources Midstream LL * 35,940,957 common unit

® 75,940,957 subordinated uni

o adistribution of $332.5 million to reimburse itfeertain capital
expenditures it incurred in connection with thed@&eessor prior
to Midstream Operating being contributed to

e our assumption of $510 million of indebtedness inedi in
connection with the Predecessor prior to Midstr&yperating
being contributed to us; a

« we will also undertake a public or private offerisgcommon
units in the future upon request by Antero andthegyroceeds
thereof (net of underwriting or placement agensgdunts and
commissions, as applicable) to redeem an equal euofb
common units from Antero as a distribution to reimde Antero
for certain capital expenditures incurred in corioecwith the
Predecessor prior to Midstream Operating beingrimried to

us.
Option units or proceeds from In connection with the completion of the IPO, threlerwriters
option units exercises their option to purchase additional comonats. We

used the net proceeds resulting from the issuah@®00,000
common units upon such exercise to acquire an ebgnvnumber
of common units from Antero, which common units eveancelled,
to reimburse Antero for capital expenditures inedrin connection
with the Predecessor prior to Midstream Operatieigdp
contributed to us
Operational Stage
Distributions of cash available for We will generally make cash distributions 100% tw onitholders,
distribution to our general partner including affiliates of our general partner. In &, if
and its affiliates distributions exceed the minimum quarterly disttibn and other
higher target distribution levels, our general partwill be entitled
to increasing percentages of the distributionstoufi0% of the
distributions above the highest target distributerel.
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Payments to our general partner and
its affiliates

Withdrawal or removal of our
general partner

Liguidation Stage
Liquidation

Agreements with Antero

Assuming we have sufficient cash available forritistion to pay
the full minimum quarterly distribution on all otiooutstanding
common units and subordinated units for four quasteur general
partner and its affiliates (including Antero) woulkteive an annual
distribution of approximately $76.1 million on theinits.

Antero provides customary management and genengihitrative
services to us. Our general partner reimbursesréatiecost for its
direct expenses incurred on behalf of us and agstiomate amount
of its indirect expenses incurred on behalf ofinsluding, but not
limited to, compensation expenses. Our generahpadoes not
receive a management fee or other compensatidtsfor
management of our partnership, but we reimburseyeneral
partner and its affiliates for all direct and irelit expenses they
incur and payments they make on our behalf, inalgigiayments
made to Antero for customary management and general
administrative services. Our partnership agreerdees not set a
limit on the amount of expenses for which our gahpartner and
its affiliates may be reimbursed. These expensdade salary,
bonus, incentive compensation and other amountktpgiersons
who perform services for us or on our behalf angeases allocated
to our general partner by its affiliates. Our parghip agreement
provides that our general partner will determineelkpenses that
are allocable to u:

If our general partner withdraws or is removednids -economic

general partner interest and its incentive distrdsurights will
either be sold to the new general partner for castonverted into
common units, in each case for an amount equaktdatir market
value of those interests. Please read “The PahipefAgreement—
Withdrawal or Removal of Our General Part”

Upon our liguidation, the partners, including oengral
partner,will be entitled to receive liquidating tiisutions according
to their respective capital account balan

In connection with our IPO, we entered into cerigmeements with Antero, as described in more

detail below.

Registration Rights Agreement

Pursuant to the registration rights agreement, &g Ib@ required to register the sale of Antero ' s
(i) common units issued (or issuable) to it pursdarthe contribution agreement, (ii) subordinatedits and
(iif) common units issuable upon conversion of sdbwated units pursuant to the terms of the pastripr
agreement (together, the “ Registrable Securitiein "certain circumstances.

Demand Registration Rights

Antero has the right to require us by written netic register the sale of a number of their Reajidér
Securities in an underwritten offering. We are iegflito provide notice of the request within 10 si&yllowing
the receipt of such demand request to all additiballers of Registrable Securities, if any, whoyrria certain
circumstances, participate in the registration.afenot obligated to effect any demand registratiomhich
the anticipated aggregate offering price includeduch offering is less than $50,000,000. Oncereekgible

to effect a registration on Form-8, any such demand registration may be for a shgitration statement.
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Piggy -back Registration Rights

If, at any time, we propose to register an offedfigur securities (subject to certain exceptidos)
our own account, then we must give to Antero séiesrio allow it to include a specified number agistrable
Securities in that registration statement.

Redemptive Offerings

We may be required pursuant to the registrationtsiggreement to undertake a future public or
private offering and use the proceeds (net of umdiing or placement agency discounts, fees and
commissions, as applicable) to redeem an equal euoftcommon units from Antero.

Conditions and Limitations; Expenses

The registration rights are subject to certain d@ovts and limitations, including the right of the
underwriters to limit the number of Registrable Bd@&s to be included in a registration and oghtito delay
or withdraw a registration statement under certaicumstances. We will generally pay all registrati
expenses in connection with our obligations unHermregistration rights agreement, regardless othene
registration statement is filed or becomes effectivhe obligations to register Registrable Seagitinder the
registration rights agreement will terminate wherRegistrable Securities remain outstanding. Reedikt
Securities shall cease to be covered by the ragmtrrights agreement when they have (i) been potduant
to an effective registration statement under theu8tes Act, (ii) been sold in a transaction exéfinpm
registration under the Securities Act (includirgnsactions pursuant to Rule 144), (iii) ceaseckto b
outstanding, (iv) been sold in a private transactiowhich Antero ’ s rights under the registratiights
agreement are not assigned to the transferee bef@me eligible for resale pursuant to Rule 144gbany
similar rule then in effect under the Securitieg)Ac

Services Agreement

Pursuant to the services agreement, Antero hasagpeprovide customary operational and
management services for us in exchange for reirebuest of its direct expenses and an allocatiotsof i
indirect expenses attributable to the provisiosuwth services to us. For the year ended Decembh@034, we
incurred $15.5 million of operating and maintenaegpenses and $22.0 million of general and adinatige
expenses. To the extent that these expenses aresiddy Antero on our behalf, we would reimburseeko
for such expenses under the services agreement.

Gathering and Compression

Pursuant to our 28year gas gathering and compression agreement wittré, Antero has agreed to
dedicate all of its current and future acreage es¥Wirginia, Ohio and Pennsylvania to us (othentthe
existing third—party commitments), so long as such productiorotsotherwise subject to a prexisting

dedication to third-party gathering systems. Antero ’ s production scibjo a pre-existing dedication will be

dedicated to us at the expiration of sucheristing dedication. In addition, if Antero acquareny gathering
facilities, it is required to offer such gatherifagilities to us at its cost.

Under the gathering and compression agreementegesve a low pressure gathering fee of $0.30 per
Mcf, a high pressure gathe ring fee of $0.18 pef, lMcompression fee of $0.18 per Mcf, and a cosdin

gathering fee of $4.00 per Bbl, in each case stibjeCPI-based adjustments. If and to the extent Antero

requests that we construct new high pressure indsompressor stations requested by Antero, tieigiag
and compression agreement contains minimum voluwmaratments that require Antero to utilize or pay fo
75% and 70%, respectively, of the capacity of sumlv construction. Additional high pressure lined an
compressor stations installed on our own initiative not subject to such volume commitments. These
minimum volume commitments on new infrastructusewell as price adjustment mechanisms, are intetaled
support the stability of our cash flows.

We also have an option to gather and compressalgas produced by Antero on any acreage it

acquires in the future outside of West Virginia,i@and Pennsylvania on the same terms and conslitiorthe
event that we do not
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exercise this option, Antero will be entitled tat@in gathering and compression services and dedicat

production from limited areas to such thirparty agreements from third parties.

In return for Antero ’ s acreage dedication, weéhagreed to gather, compress, dehydrate and
redeliver all of Antero ’ s dedicated natural gasadfirm commitment, firstpriority basis. We may perform all

services under the gathering and compression agréeanwe may perform such services through thandigs.
In the event that we do not perform our obligatiander the gathering and compression agreemengyétill
be entitled to certain rights and procedural re@ethereunder.

Pursuant to the gathering and compression agreemertave also agreed to build to and connect all
of Antero ' s wells producing dedicated natural,gasject to certain exceptions, upon 180 dayditady
Antero. In the event of late connections, Antesonatural gas will temporarily not be subject te tkedication.
We are entitled to compensation under the gathemcompression agreement for capital costs iedufra
well does not commence production within 30 daylefang the target completion date for the well &&th in
the notice from Antero.

We have agreed to install compressor stations tdrAn s direction, but will not be responsible for
inlet pressures or for pressuring natural gas teratownstream facilities if Antero has not direttes to install
sufficient compression. Additionally, we will pralé high pressure gathering pursuant to the gathend
compression agreement.

Upon completion of the initial 28year term, the gathering and compression agreewitémontinue

in effect from year to year until such time as dlgegeement is terminated, effective upon an anraversf the
effective date of the agreement, by either us deAmon or before the 180 day prior to the anmsiasr of
such effective date.

Fresh Water Distribution

In addition to the gathering and compression agezgnfAntero has also granted us an option for a
period of two years to purchase its fresh watdribigion systems at fair market value, with ghtiof first
offer thereafter . Antero owns two independenttresiter distribution systems that distribute frestter from
the Ohio River and several other regional waterceifor producers * well completion operationshie
Marcellus and Utica Shales. These systems corfséstombination of permanent buried pipelines, nate
surface pipelines and fresh water storage fadlites well as pumping stations to transport thehfreater
throughout the pipeline networks. As of December2Ril4, Antero expanded its fresh water distributio
system to include 103 miles and 49 miles of buviadker pipelines in the Marcellus and Utica opeptineas,
respectively, as well as 22 and 8 fresh water gionmpoundments, respectively.

If we elect to exercise the option, we must prowiditen notice to Antero stating our intention to
exercise. Within 30 days after we deliver an exsrciotice, Antero must propose to us, in writinguechase
price for the fresh water distribution systems. Thaflicts committee of our general partner wiltefenine,
with the assistance of independent advisors, whéthaccept the proposed purchase price. If weaaagree
with Antero on a mutually acceptable purchase paiter good faith negotiations by both parties,ekatwill
nominate three investment banking firms and we sdglect one of those firms to determine the fairkeia
value of the fresh water distribution systems. Qtheeselected investment bank submits its valuatieanwill
have the right, but not the obligation, to purchidmefresh water distribution systems at the pdiegrmined by
the investment bank. Our exercise of the optiohneduire the approval of the conflicts committéete board
of directors of our general partner. We will hakie bption to pay the purchase price using our comuomits,

which will be valued at a 5% discount to the volummeeighted average price of our common units durirgg t
ten trading days prior to the date of the agreemearguant to which we would acquire the fresh water

distribution systems. Following the term of theiopt if the option is not exercised, we will haveght of first
offer to acquire the fresh water gathering systémsatero ever decides to dispose of such systems.

If we purchase Antero ' s fresh water distributgystems, we will enter into a 2@ ear fresh water

distribution agreement with Antero, pursuant toehha service area encompassing all of Antero easaof
operation in West Virginia, Ohio and Pennsylvaniti se dedicated to us. If Antero requires freshava
distribution services outside of the initial seevizrea, we will have the option to provide thoggises on the
same terms and conditions. In the event we dox®atese this option, Antero will be entitled to alot
proposals for fresh water distribution from thirarpes.
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We will then have the right to match any proposakived by Antero from a thirgparty. Under the fresh

water distribution agreement, we will receive adé&3.50 per barrel for fresh water deliveriesvill sites by
pipe or $3.00 per barrel if Antero accesses themat truck directly from our fresh water storageilities, in

each case subject to CHdased adjustments. Similar to the gathering anchcession agreement, the price

adjustment mechanisms in the fresh water distdbugigreement will be intended to support the staluf our
cash flows. In addition, if Antero acquires anyilities for providing water for hydraulic fractumn it will be
required to offer such facilities to us at its cost

The water pipeline system by which we would disttébfresh water includes facilities for receiving
fresh water at designated sources. Pursuant tioethie water distribution agreement, we transpodt store
such fresh water at specific areas of operatioe. Water pipeline system also includes permanent and
temporary water lines for delivering Antero ’ sdhewater from the transportation system to its wigdis for
hydraulic fracturing operations.

In return for Antero ' s acreage dedication, we agree to receive Antero ' s fresh water and deliv
such fresh water to the water pipeline system gifacilities or to particular well sites for hydti& fracturing
up to the available capacity of the water pipeigstem. Antero will retain the risk of acquiringtemain
sufficient quantities. We may perform all servicesler the fresh water distribution agreement omag
perform such services through third parties. Inehent that we do not perform our obligations urierfresh
water distribution agreement, Antero will be emtitlto certain rights and procedural remedies tmeieu

We will have the right to use excess water pipetiygtem capacity and water from Antero ' s fresh
water sources to provide to third parties, provitted we pay the cost, if any, of such excess water

Further, we will be required to build out and exgame water pipeline system in order to delivesffre
water to all of Antero’ s wells being drilled, gabt to certain exceptions. We will be obligatedttmnect the
water system and commence water deliveries togodati wells with the central portions of the inlits@rvice
area upon 180 days ' notice from Antero. Our oliayato connect and commence water deliveriesén th

outlying areas of the initial service area willfiteased in over time, but the 188ay notice period will

eventually become applicable to all areas in tit@lrservice area. If we do not connect to a paittir well for
water deliveries, Antero may transport water fram water storage sites for delivery to its welesit

Upon completion of the initial 28year term, the fresh water distribution agreemaehitcantinue in

effect from year to year until such time as thesagrent is terminated, effective upon an annivershtiye
effective date of the agreement, by either us deAmon or before the 180 day prior to the anrsiaer of
such effective date.

Processing

Although we do not currently have any processindlGiLs fractionation, transportation or marketing
infrastructure, we have entered into a rigbf —first —offer agreement with Antero for gas processingises/

pursuant to which Antero has agreed, subject t@miceexceptions, not to procure any gas processimGLs
fractionation, transportation or marketing serviagth respect to its production (other than protrcsubject

to a pre-existing dedication) without first offering us thght to provide such services.

Antero ' s request for offer will describe the puation that will be dedicated under the resulting
agreement and the capacities of the facilitiegdirgs and, if applicable, details of the faciliytero has
acquired or proposes to acquire. Antero is perchitncurrently te eek offers from third parties for the same

services on the same terms and conditions, butawe & right to match the fees offered by any thjdrty.
Antero will only be permitted to obtain these seed from third parties if we either do not makeoffer or do
not match a competing thireparty offer. The process could result in Antercaitihg certain of the required
services from us (for example, gas processing)can@in of such services (for example, NGLs frawiion
and related services) from a thirdarty. Our right of first offer does not apply tmguction that is subject to a

pre —existing dedication. The right of first offer agneent has a 26year term.

Pursuant to the procedures provided for in thetriglfirst offer agreement, if our offer prevails,
Antero will enter into a gas processing agreemeiotloer appropriate services agreement with usiénd,
applicable, transfer the
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acquired facility to us for the price for which Amb acquired it. Relevant production will be detidaunder
such agreement. We will provide the relevant sewvior the offered fees, subject to price adjustebased on
the consumer price index, or CPI, and Antero wélldbligated to deliver minimum daily volumes or fags
for any deficiencies in deliveries. We may perfalinservices under the gas processing or otheicserv
agreement or may perform such services througtl ffarties. In the event that we do not perform our
obligations under the agreement, Antero will betlert to certain rights and procedural remediesethieder.

If pursuant to the foregoing procedures Antero nitgo a gas processing agreement with us, we will
agree to construct or cause to be constructedcepsimg plant to process the dedicated naturakgaspt to
the extent rendered unnecessary if Antero is tearinfy an acquired facility to us. If Antero recggradditional
capacity in the future at the plant at which we@aviding the services, we will have the optiorptovide
such additional capacity on the same terms andittomsl In the event that we do not exercise tipisam,
Antero will be entitled to obtain proposals fronirthparties to process such production.

License

Pursuant to a license agreement with Antero, wehaire the right to use certain Anterelated
names and trademarks in connection with our operati the midstream business.

Procedures for Review, Approval and Ratification ofTransactions with Related Persons

The board has adopted a written code of businesducd and ethics, under which a director would be
expected to bring to the attention of our chiefaesive officer or the board any conflict or potahigonflict of
interest that may arise between the director oradfijate of the director, on the one hand, aneusur
general partner on the other. The resolution ofsargh conflict or potential conflict should, at ttiecretion of
the board in light of the circumstances, be deteeaiiby a majority of the disinterested directors.

If a conflict or potential conflict of interest ads between our general partner or its affiliasashe
one hand, and us or our unitholders, on the otaed hthe resolution of any such conflict or potaintbnflict
should be addressed by the board of directors o§eneral partner in accordance with the provisiminsur
partnership agreement. At the discretion of thedb@alight of the circumstances, the resolutionyrba
determined by the board in its entirety or by thafticts committee.

Pursuant to our code of business conduct, our gepartner’s executive officers are required toidvo
conflicts

Conflicts of Interest

Conflicts of interest exist and may arise in thieifa as a result of the relationships between our
general partner and its directors, officers, afds (including Antero) and owners, on the one hand us and
our limited partners, on the other hand. Conflioy arise as a result of the duties of our genedher and its
directors and officers to act for the benefit afaivners, which may conflict with our interests éimelinterests
of our public unitholders. We are managed and dpdray the board of directors and officers of oemeyal
partner, Midstream Management, which is owned biefninvestment. All of our initial officers and a
majority of our initial directors will also be offers or directors of Antero Investment. Similadil,of the
officers and a majority of the directors of our geal partner are also officers or directors of Anté\lthough
our general partner has a contractual duty to managn a manner that it believes is not adverseito
interests, the directors and officers of our gelnesieiner have a fiduciary duty to manage our gan@airtner in
a manner that is beneficial to Antero Investmenir @eneral partner’s directors and officers whoeadse
directors and officers of Antero have a fiduciantydto manage Antero in a manner that is beneftoi@dntero
and its shareholders. Our partnership agreemenifisdly defines the remedies available to unitlesk for
actions taken that, without these defined liab#itgndards, might constitute breaches of fiduailaty under
applicable Delaware law. The Delaware Act provitheg Delaware limited partnerships may, in their
partnership agreements, expand, restrict or elimitiee fiduciary duties otherwise owed by the gehgartner
to the limited partners and the partnership.
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Whenever a conflict arises between our generahpadr its owners and affiliates (including Antero)
on the one hand, and us or our limited partnersherther hand, the resolution or course of adgtiaespect
of such conflict of interest shall be permitted alemed approved by us and all our limited partaedsshall
not constitute a breach of our partnership agreénoéany agreement contemplated thereby or ofdany, if
the resolution or course of action in respect chstonflict of interest is:

« approved by the conflicts committee of our genpeatner, although our general partner is not

obligated to seek such approval,

« approved by the holders of a majority of the outdiag common units, excluding any such units

owned by our general partner or any of its affdg@

Our general partner may, but is not required tek $be approval of such resolutions or courses of
action from the conflicts committee of its boarddatectors or from the holders of a majority of thé&standing
common units as described above. If our generah@adoes not seek approval from the conflicts cittemor
from holders of common units as described abovetlamtboard of directors of our general partner aygs the
resolution or course of action taken with respec¢he conflict of interest, then it will be presuinéat, in
making its decision, the board of directors of general partner acted in good faith, and in angeeding
brought by or on behalf of us or any of our unittesk, the person bringing or prosecuting such gdiog will
have the burden of overcoming such presumptiornpamgng that such decision was not in good faithldds
the resolution of a conflict is specifically proeid for in our partnership agreement, the boardrettbrs of
our general partner or the conflicts committeeheftboard of directors of our general partner maysicter any
factors they determine in good faith to consideemwhesolving a conflict. An independent third pastyot
required to evaluate the resolution. Under ourraighip agreement, a determination, other actidailure to
act by our general partner, the board of direadbisur general partner or any committee thereafliding the
conflicts committee) will be deemed to be “ in gdaih " unless our general partner, the boardigfadors of
our general partner or any committee thereof (idiclg the conflicts committee) believed such deteation,
other action or failure to act was adverse to titerest of the partnership. Please read “ Managemen
Committees of the Board of Directors — Conflictsn@uittee ” for information about the conflicts contrae
of our general partner ’ s board of directors.

Director Independence

Rather than adopting categorical standards, thedBassesses director independence on a case-by-case
basis, in each case consistent with applicabld legairements and the listing standards of the BY&fter
reviewing all relationships each director has wiith Partnership, including the nature and exteaingf
business relationships between the Partnershigacid director, as well as any significant charéabl
contributions the Partnership makes to organizatighere its directors serve as board members augxe
officers, the Board has affirmatively determinedttthe following directors have no material relatibips with
the Partnership and are independent as defineldebgurrent listing standards of the NYSE: Messeydq,

Keenan, Manning, Connor and Peters. Neither MryRtm Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of our
general partner, nor Mr. Warren, the Presidentefdfinancial Officer and Secretary of our genegaatmer, is
considered by the Board to be an independent direetcause of his employment with Antero.
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Item 14. Principa | Accountant Fees and Services

The table below sets forth the aggregate feesapdnses billed by KPMG LLP, the Partnership 's
independent registered public accounting firm thar Partnership and its Predecessor for the yahaden
December 31, 2014:

For the Years Endec
December 31

(in thousands) 2014
Audit Fees[1[] :
Audit and Quarterly Review $ 242
Other Filings 276
Subtotal 518
Tax Fee«12[] : 46
Total $ 564

(1) Includes audit of the Predecessor’'s annual findstigements for the years ended December 31, 2042013, the
audit of the Partnership’s annual consolidatednioie statements for the year ended December 34 2@luded in
this Annual Report on form 10-K, review of the Parship's quarterly financial statements includeitsi Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q and review of the Partnersfhafiier filings with the SEC, including work penfoed in
conjunction with S-1 filings, consents and othesei@rch work necessary to comply with generally pteckauditing
standards for the years ended December 31, 2013, 26d 2014

(2) Consultation on tax matters.

The charter of the Audit Committee and its pre-appf policy require that the Audit Committee review
and pre-approve the Partnership’s independenttezgis public accounting firm's fees for audit, auwdlated,
tax and other services. The Chairman of the Audin@ittee has the authority to grant pre-approyaisyided
such approvals are within the pre-approval policg are presented to the Audit Committee at a sulesdq
meeting. For the year ended December 31, 2014gutie committee of our predecessor approved 1008teo
services described above under the captions "Atedit" and "Tax Fees."
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedute
(a)(1) and (a)(2) Financial Statements and Finandi&tatement Schedules

The consolidated financial statements are listetherindex to Financial Statements to this report
beginning on page F1.

(a)(3) Exhibits.

Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit
3.1 Certificate of Conversion of Antero Resourbkdstream LLC, dated November 5,

2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 tor€nt Report on Form 8-K
(Commission File No. 0(-36719) filed on November 7, 201-

3.2 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Anteraddtream Partners LP, dated November 5,
2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 tor€nt Report on Form 8-K
(Commission File No. 0(-36719) filed on November 7, 201-

3.3 Agreement of Limited Partnership, dated as@fember 10, 2014, by and between
Antero Resources Midstream Management LLC, as #me@@l Partner, and Antero
Resources Corporation, as the Organizational Lavitartner (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K (Corssidon File No. 001-36719) filed
on November 17, 2014

10.1 Amended and Restated Contribution Agreentenéd as of November 10, 2014, by and
between Antero Resources Corporation and Antersitvidm Partners LP
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Catfeeport on Form 8-K (Commission
File No. 00:-36719) filed on November 17, 201

10.2 Gathering and Compression Agreement, dateflldevember 10, 2014, by and
between Antero Resources Corporation and Antercstvidm LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on F8riK (Commission File No. 001-
36719) filed on November 17, 201.

10.3 Right of First Offer Agreement, dated as of/Bmber 10, 2014, by and between Antero
Resources Corporation and Antero Midstream LLCdjporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Current Report on Form 8-K (ComrigasFile No. 001-36719) filed on
November 17, 2014

10.4 License Agreement, dated as of November@D4,2by and between Antero Resources
Corporation and Antero Midstream Partners LP (ipooated by reference to Exhibit
10.4 to Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission Nte 001-36719) filed on
November 17, 2014

10.5 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as ofeier 10, 2014, by and among Antero
Midstream Partners LP and Antero Resources Coiiparéincorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to Current Report on Form 8-K (ComrussFile No. 001-36719) filed on
November 17, 2014

10.6 Credit Agreement, dated as of November 1@428mong Antero Midstream Partners
LP and certain of its subsidiaries, certain lendeasty thereto, Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as administrative agent,i$&uer and swingline lender and the
other parties thereto (incorporated by referenc&xhibit 10.6 to Current Report on
Form &K (Commission File No. 0(-36719) filed on November 17, 201.

10.7 Services Agreement, dated as of NovembeRd®4, by and among Antero Midstream
Partners LP and Antero Resources Corporation (puwated by reference to Exhibit
10.7 to Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission ANe. 001-36719) filed on
November 17, 2014
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10.8

10.9

21.1*
23.1*
31.1*

31.2*

32.1*

32.2*

101*

Form of Antero Midstream Partners LP Longridncentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Amendment No. 4 tdeko Resources Midstream LLC’s
Registration Statement on Forr-1, filed on July 11, 2014, File No. 3-193798).

Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorpexhtby reference to Exhibit 10.12 to
Amendment No. 4 to Antero Resources Midstream LLR&gistration Statement on
Form &1, filed on July 11, 2014, File No. 3-193798).

Subsidiaries of Antero Midstream Partners
Consent of KPMG, LLP

Certification of the Chief Executive Officétursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes
Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 724

Certification of the Chief Financial OfficdRursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes
Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 724

Certification of the Chief Executive Officdtursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes
Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 135

Certification of the Chief Financial OfficdRursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes
Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 135

The following financial information from thiSorm 10-K of Antero Midstream Partners
LP for the year ended December 31, 2014, formatieBRL (eXtensible Business
Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated Balance Shd@ Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss), (iihgolidated Statements of Equity,
(iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, andNptes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, tagged as blocks of t

The exhibits marked with the asterisk symbol (% &iled or furnished (in the case of Exhibits 32rd 32.2)
with this Annual Report on Form HK.

87



Table of Content
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be sigmeits behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duthearized.

ANTERO MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LP

ANTERO RESOURCES MIDSTREAM

By: MANAGEMENT LLC, its general partner

By: /s/Glen C. Warren, J
Glen C. Warren, J
President, Chief Financial Officer and Secrei

Date: February 25, 201
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed by th
following persons on behalf of the registrant ia ttapacities and on the dates indicated.

Title (Position with Antero Resources Midstream
Signature Management LLC) Date

Chairman of the Board, February 25,
Director and Chief Executive offici 2015
Paul M. Rady (principal executive officer

/sl Paul M. Rady

President, Director, February 25,
s/ Glen C. Warren, ‘]rChief Financial Officer and Secrete 2015
Glen C. Warren, Ji  (principal financial officer
. Chief Accounting Officer February 25,
s/ K. Phil Yoo and Corporate Controll¢ 2015
K. Phil Yoo (principal accounting officet
. February 25,
/sl Richard W. ConnorDirector 2015
Richard W. Conno
/s/W. Howard Keenar February 25,
Jr. Director 2015
W. Howard Keenan, !
February 25,
/sl Peter R. Kagan Director 2015
Peter R. Kaga
. February 25,
/s/ David A. Peters Director 2015
David A. Peter:
/sl Christopher R. February 25,
Manning Director 2015
Christopher R.
Manning
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Introductory Note to Consolidated Financial Stateimis

The information in this report includes periodsoptio the completion of Antero Midstream Partnels L
initial public offering (“IPO”) on November 10, 2@1 Consequently, the consolidated financial
statements and related discussion of financiadliton and results of operations contained in thfgort
include periods that pertain to the gathering asdmgression assets of Antero Resources Corporation
(“Antero”) , our predecessor for accounting puEp®

References in these financial statements to “Pesdee,” “we,” “our,” “us” or like terms, when reféng to
periods prior to November 10, 2014, refer to Antegathering and compression assets, our prededesso
accounting purposes. References to “the Partnqetshie,” “our,” “us” or like terms, when referringp
periods since November 10, 2014 or when used iprh®gent tense or prospectively, refer to Anterdditeam
Partners LP.
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REPOR T OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Unitholders
Antero Midstream Partners LP:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balameets of Antero Midstream Partners LP (“the
Partnership”) and its accounting predecessor @3eacember 31, 2013 and 2014 and the related coasedid
statements of operations and comprehensive inctwss)( partners’ capital, and cash flows for eatlthe
years in the three-year period ended December G14.2These consolidated financial statements age th
responsibility of the Partnership 's managementr @sponsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on outsaudi

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversighatslo
(United States). Those standards require that \aa phd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assar
about whether the financial statements are frawaitrial misstatement. An audit includes examinorga test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disessin the financial statements. An audit alsoudeb
assessing the accounting principles used and gignifestimates made by management, as well asatirg)

the overall financial statement presentation. Whebe that our audits provide a reasonable basisofo

opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeeferred to above present fairly, in all mategspects, the
financial position of Antero Midstream Partners &Rd its accounting predecessor as of December®@B3 2
and 2014, and the results of their operations hei tash flows for the years then ended in conifiyrmith
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/sl KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 25, 2015
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ANTERO MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LP

Consolidated Balance Sheet s
December 31, 2013, and 2014

(In thousands , except unit counts )

2013 2014
Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ — $ 230,192
Accounts receivab-affiliate 3,032 17,646
Prepaid — 518
Total current asse 3,032 248,356
Property and equipmer
Gathering and compressions syste 580,800 1,180,707
Less accumulated depreciati (14,324 (51,110
Property and equipment, r 566,476 1,129,597
Other assets, n 8,581 17,168
Total asset $578,089 $1,395,121
Liabilities and Partners' capital
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 5804 $ 8,728
Accounts payab-affiliate — 1,380
Accrued capital expenditur 33,343 37,208
Accrued liabilities 648 5,346
Other current liabilitie: 910 —
Total current liabilities 40,705 52,662
Long-term liabilities
Other 4,864 —
Total liabilities 45,569 52,662
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Partners' capita
Common unitholder- public (46,000,00Cunits issued anoutstanding) — 71,665
Common unitholde- Antero (29,940,957units issued anoutstanding) — 180,757
Subordinated unitholde Antero (75,940,957units issued anoutstanding) — 1,090,037
Total partners' capit: — 1,342,45¢
Parent net investme 532,520 —
Total capital 532,520 1,342,45¢
Total liabilities and partners' capi $578,088 $1,395,121

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsisients.
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ANTERO MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LP

Con solidated Statements of Oper ations and Corepsie Incom e (Loss)
Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2013, and 2014

(In thousands, except unit counts and per unit arsou

Revenu—affiliate
Operating expense
Direct operating
General and administrative (including $15,931 a8@ %9 of
equity-based compensation in 2013 and 2014, respecti
Depreciatior
Total operating expens
Operating income (los!
Interest expens
Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (|

Net income attributable to Antero Midstream Parsig?
subsequent to IP:

Less: General partner's interest in net incomeespeEnt tc

IPO

Limited partners' interest in net income subseqt@ifPO

Net income attributable to Antero Midstream Parsridp

subsequent to IPO per limited partner unit (basit diluted)

Common units
Subordinated unit

Weighted average number of limited partner unitstanding

(basic and diluted’
Common unit-public
Common unit-Antero
Subordinated uni-Antero

See accompanying notes to consolidated financstisients.
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95,746

15,470

22,035
36,789

74,294

21,452

4,620

16,832

8 B

7,422

7,422

0.05
0.05

46,000,00(C
29,940,95i
75,940,957
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ANTERO MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LP

Consolidated Statements of Partners’ Capita |
Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2013, and 2014
(In thousands)

Partnership

Common General
Common Unitholder Subordinated Partner
Unitholders Unitholder Parent Net
Public Antero Antero Antero Investment Total
Balance at December 31, 20 $ —$ —$ —$ —$ 29,0028 29,002
Net loss and comprehensive I (4,586 (4,586
Deemed contribution from parent, 1 118,446 118,446
Balance at December 31, 2C — — — — 142,862 142,862
Net loss and comprehensive I« — — — — (14,332 (14,332
Deemed contribution from parent, 1 — — — — 388,059 388,059
Equity-based compensatic — — — — 15,931 15,931
Balance at December 31, 2C — — — — 532,520 532,520
Net income and comprehensive inca — — — — 9,410 9,410
Deemed contribution from parent, 1 — — — — 29,764 29,764
Equity-based compensatic = — — — 6,351 6,351
Balance at November 10, 2014 (prior to |l — — — — 578,045 578,045
Allocation of net investment to unitholde — 163,458 414,587 — (578,045 —
Net proceeds from IP 1,087,224 — — — — 1,087,22¢
Distribution to Anterc — (94,023 (238,477 — — (332,500
Net income and comprehensive inca 2,248 1,463 3,711 — — 7,422
Equity-based compensatic 565 767 936 — — 2,268
Balance at December 31, 2C $1,090,03'$ 71,665% 180,757 % — $ — $1,342,45¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitgsients.
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ANTERO MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LP

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow s
Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2013, and 2014
(In thousands)

2012 2013 2014

Cash flows provided by (used in) operating actgt
Net income (loss $ (4,586 $ (14332 $ 16,832
Adjustment to reconcile net income (loss) to nehca
provided by operating activitie

Depreciatior 1,679 11,346 36,789
Equity-based compensatic — 15,931 8,619
Amortization of deferred financing cos — — 135
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accounts receivab—affiliate (126; (2,873 (19,465
Prepaid — — (518;
Accounts payabl — — 738
Accounts payab—affiliate — — 1,059
Accrued liabilities (119 541 4,698
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi (3,152 10,613 48,887
Cash flows used in investing activitie
Additions to property and equipme (115,267 (389,340 (553,582

Change in working capital of affiliate related to

property and equipme — — (40,277
Change in other asse — (8,581 (3,530
Net cash used in investing activiti (115,267 (397,921 (597,389
Cash flows provided by financing activitie
Deemed contribution from parent, 1 118,446 388,059 29,764
Net proceeds from initial public offerir — — 1,087,224
Distribution to Anterc — — (332,500
Borrowings on bank credit facilit — — 510,000
Repayments on bank credit facil — — (510,000
Payments of deferred financing co — — (4,871
Payments on capital lease obligatir (27) (751 (923
Net cash provided by financing activiti 118,419 387,308 778,694
Net increase in cash and cash equival — — 230,192
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe — — —
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe $ — $ — $ 230,192
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid during the period for inter $ 8 $ 146 $ 4,485
Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing dissui
Increase in accrued capital expenditures and atsoun
payable for property and equipme $ 27,721 $ 9,003 $ 46,327

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigdsients.
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ANTERO MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LP
Note s to Con solidated Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2013, and 2014
Organization
(a) Organization

Antero Midstream Partners LP (the “Partnership’a growth-oriented limited partnership formed
by Antero Resources Corporation (“Antero”) to owperate and develop midstream assets to service
Antero’s natural gas and oil and condensate prastuctOn November 10, 2014, the Partnership
completed its initial public offering (the “IPO"¥@6,000,000 common units representing limited
partnership interests at a price of $25.00 per comonit. The Partnership was originally formed as
Antero Resources Midstream LLC and converted toadd partnership in connection with the
completion of the IPO. At the closing of the IPEhtero contributed substantially all of its highd low
pressure gathering and compression assets to Adidsiream LLC (“Midstream Operating”), and the
equity interests of Midstream Operating were chitied to the Partnership.

Our consolidated financial statements as of Dece@bg2014, include the accounts of Antero
Midstream Partners LP and Antero Midstream LLC.

The public currently owns 46,000,000 common umépresenting a 30.3% limited partner interest
in the Partnership. Antero and its affiliates catlgown the remaining 29,940,957 common units alhd
75,940,957 subordinated units, representing areggég 69.7% of the limited partner interest in the
Partnership .

Net proceeds received by the Partnership fromRi@&were approximately $1.1 billion, after
deducting underwriting discounts, structuring fard expenses. The Partnership used $843 million to
repay inde btedness assumed from Antero, to reisebintero for certai n capital expenditures incdirre
and to redeem 6,000,000 common units held by Anfigte Partnership retained $250 million of the net
proceeds for general partnership purposes.

(b) Description of the Business

Our assets consist of-8 12—, 16 -, and 20-inch high and low pressure gathering pipelines and

compressor stations that collect natural gas drehdi condensate from Antero’s wells in the Marncl|
Shale in West Virginia and the Utica Shale in Ohio.

We have agreements with Antero pursuant to whichlwllgorovide gathering and compression
services for a 20 year period and a services agmeewhereby Antero provides operational and
management services to us. See Note 3—Transagtitmgffiliates.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation

Our consolidated financial statements have beguapee in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United St@t@&AP”). In the opinion of management, the
accompanying consolidated financial statementsidechll adjustments considered necessary to present
fairly our financial position as of December 3113(& nd 2014, and the results of our operationsoand
cash flows for the years ended December 31, 20113,2and 2014. We have no items of other
comprehensive income or loss; therefore, net inecomoss is identical to comprehensive incomess.|

The accompanying consolidated financial statemeisesent the assets, liabilities, and results of
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ANTERO MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LP
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)

Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2013, and 2014
operations of Antero’s gathering and compressieetasas the accounting predecessor (the “Prededesso
to the Partnership, presented on a carve-out bagiatero’s historical own ership of the Predecessthe
Predecessor financial statements have been preframnedhe separate records maintained by Antero and
may not necessarily be indicative of the actualltef operations that might have occurred if the
Predecessor had been operated separately duripgtioels reported. T he parent net investmetitén
Predecessor is shown as parent net equity .

Our costs of doing business incurred by Antero wnbehalf have been reflected in the
accompanying consolidated financial statementssd@leests include general and administrative exgense
allocated by Antero to us in exchange for:

» business services, such as payroll, accounts pagabl facilities management;
« corporate services, such as finance and accoutigal, human resources, investor relations
and public and regulatory policy; a

* employ ee compensation, including equiyased compensation.

Transactions between us and Antero have been fidenih the consolidated financial statements
as transactions between affiliates (see Note 3).

As of the date these consolidated financial statésn@ere filed with the S ecurities and Exchange
Commission , the Partnership completed its evalnaif potential subsequent events for disclosuderen
items requiring disclosure were identified, excapt-ebruary 2 , 2015 we declared a cash distributfo
$0.09 43 per unit, as described in Note 6—PastiprEquity and Distributions, and Note 7—Net Ineom
Per Limited Partner Unit.

(b) Revenue Recognition

We provide gathering and compression services uiegebased contracts based on throughput.

Under these arrangements, we receive a fee ofdegathering oil and gas products and compression
services. The revenue we earn from these arrandsiisegirectly related to (1) in the case of ndtgees
gathering and compression, the volumes of metesaigtal gas that we gather, compress and deliver to
natural gas compression sites or other transmisitwvery points or (2) in the case of oil and censate
gathering, the volumes of metered oil and conderntbat we gather and deliver to other transmission
delivery points. We recognize revenue when alheffollowing criteria are met: (1) services haverbe
rendered, (2) the prices are fixed or determinadnid, (3) collectability is reasonable assured.

(c) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetets and notes in conformity with GAAP
requires that management formulate estimates amuhgtions that affect revenues, expenses, assets,
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assetd liabilities. Items subject to estimates arsliagptions
include the useful lives of property and equipmeatyation of accrued liabilities, and obligaticetated
to employee benefits, among others. Although mamage believes these estimates are reasonable| actua
results could differ from these estimates.

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Historically, the majority of the Predecessor’s giens were funded by Antero and managed
under A ntero’s cash management program. Net araduntied by Antero are reflected as net
contributions from or
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distributions to parent on the accompanying Statesnef Partners’ Capital and Cash Flows.

We consider a Il liquid investments purchased withinitial maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash asd eguivalents approximates fair value due to the

short-term nature of these instruments.
(e) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment primarily consists of gattgepipelines and compressor stations and are
stated at the lower of historical cost less accaedl depreciation, or fair value, if impaired. V\pitalize

construction-related direct labor and material costs. Mainterpaar repair costs are expensed as
incurred.

Depreciation is computed over the asset’s estimagetll life using the straighiine method,

based on estimated useful lives and salvage valugssets. Gathering pipelines and compressoostati

are depreciated over a 20 year useful life. Theatggation of fixed assets recorded under capitsde
agreements is included in depreciation expenseetthiaties that may impact these estimates include,
among others, changes in laws and regulationsnglad environmental matters, including air andavat
quality, restoration and abandonment requiremectsiomic conditions and supply and demand in the
area. When assets are placed into service, managjema&es estimates with respect to useful lives and
salvage values that management believes are rdasoRmwever, subsequent events could cause a ehang
in estimates, thereby impacting future depreciatiorounts.

Property and equipment included assets under ecarisin of $21 1 million and $318 million at
December 31, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

(f) Impairment of Long -Lived Assets

We evaluate the ability to recover the carrying ani®f long-lived assets and determine

whether such longlived assets have been impaired. Impairment ewisen the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds estimates of the undiscounted cagh dkpected to result from the use and eventual
disposition of the asset. When alternative cous$@stion to recover the carrying amount of a letiged
asset are under consideration, estimates of futwlescounted cash flows take into account possible
outcomes and probabilities of their occurrenc¢héfcarrying amount of the londived asset is not

recoverable, based on the estimated future undigedwcash flows, the impairment loss is measuredeas
excess of the asset’s carrying amount over itsnastid fair value, such that the asset’s carryinguarnis
adjusted to its estimated fair value with an otfegtcharge to impairment expense.

Fair value represents the estimated price betweshanparticipants to sell an asset in the
principal or most advantageous market for the abssied on assumptions a market participant would

make. When warranted, management assesses thaltarof long-lived assets using commonly accepted

techniques and may use more than one source immakich assessments. Sources used to determine fair
value include, but are not limited to, recent thpaity comparable sales, internally developed distaxd

cash flow analyses and analyses from outside adviSignificant changes, such as changes in cdntrac
rates or terms, the condition of an asset, or mamagt’s intent to utilize the asset, generally nequ
management to reassess the cash flows relatedgelived assets. A reduction of carrying value of fixe
assets would represent a Level 3 fa ir value measuder GAAP. No impairments for such assets have
been recorded through December 31 , 2014.
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(g) Asset Retirement Obligations

Certain of our assets have an indeterminate lifierd is no requirement to record the fair value of
the retirement obligations associated with sucktas3hese assets include our gathering pipelings a
compressor stations. A liability for these assgtement obligations will be recorded only if anthen a
future retirement obligation with a determinabfe kan be estimated. These assets have an inde&temi
life because they will operate for an indetermir@geod when properly maintained. As such, we ate n
able to make a reasonable estimate of when fuisneashtlement and removal dates of such assets will
occur and therefore have not recorded asset raditeobligations at December 31, 2013 or 2014.

(h) Litigation and Other Contingencies

An accrual is recorded for a loss contingency witenccurrence is probable and damages can be
reasonably estimated based on the anticipatedIikelst outcome or the minimum amount within a range
of possible outcomes. We regularly review contirggesito determine the adequacy of our accruals and
related disclosures. The amount of ultimate losg differ from these estimates.

We accrue losses associated with environmentajatiins when such losses are probable and
can be reasonably estimated. Accruals for estimate@onmental losses are recognized no laterdhan
the time the remediation feasibility study, or 8waluation of response options, is complete. Theseuals
are adjusted as additional information becomedaeior as circumstances change. Future envirotahen
expenditures are not discounted to their presdnev&®ecoveries of environmental costs from otlatigs
are recorded separately as assets at their undigzbualue when receipt of such recoveries is frigha

We have not recorded any accruals for loss conticigs or environmental obligations at
December 31, 2013 or 2014 .

() Equity -Based Compensation

Our financial statements reflect various equihyased compensation awards granted by Antero ,

as well as compensation expense associated witbvauplans . These awards include profits inteses t
awards, restricted stock, stock options , restiicteits, and phantom units . For purposes of these
consolidated financial statements, we recognizezkpense in each period the required allocatiom fro
Antero, with the offset included in parent netvaatment . See Note 3—Transactions with Affiliates.

In connection with the IPO, our general partnensaed the Antero Midstream Partners LP Long-
Term Incentive Plan (* Midstream LTIP ") , pursuaatwhich certain noremployee directors of our
general partner and certain officers, employeescandultants of our general partner and its aféBaare
eligible to receive awards. An aggregate of 10,000,common units may be delivered pursuant to asvard
under the Midstream LTIP, subject to customary stipents. On November 12, 2014, we granted
approximately 20,000 restricted units and 2,361 gld@ntom units under the Midstream LTIP. For
accounting purposes, these units are treatedlasyifare distributed from us to Antero. Antero igruiaes
compensation expense for the units awarded tarifdayees and a portion of that expense is allocated
us. See Note 5—Equity-based Compensation.

() Income Taxes
Our consolidated financial statements do no t ikelincome tax as we are treated as a partnership

for federal and state income tax purposes, with @actner being separately taxed on its shareeof th
taxable income.
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(k) Fair Value Measures

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB:counting Standards Codification
Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Discloswilesifies the definition of fair value, establishe
framework for measuring fair value, and expandsld&ires about fair value measurements. This ga@an
also relates to all nonfinancial assets and ligddithat are not recognized or disclosed on arrecubasis

(e.g., the initial recognition of asset retiremehligations and impairments of longjved assets). The fair

value is the price that we estimate would be reszbio sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabifitgn
orderly transaction between market participanth@tmeasurement date. A fair value hierarchy isl tige
prioritize input to valuation techniques used ttneate fair value. An asset or liability subjectthe fair
value requirements is categorized within the h@raibased on the lowest level of input that is ificgmnt
to the fair value measurement. Our assessmenedigimificance of a particular input to the faituea
measurement in its entirety requires judgment amsiclers factors specific to the asset or liabilltye
highest priority (Level 1) is given to unadjustatbted market prices in active markets for identasdets
or liabilities, and the lowest priority (Level 3 given to unobservable inputs. Level 2 inputsdata, other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that@servable for the asset or liability, either dilg or
indirectly.

The carrying values on our balance sheet of our aad cash equivalents, accounts receivable—
affiliate, prepaid, other assets, accounts p ayaloleounts payable—affiliate, accrued liabilitiesgcrued
capital expenditures , and the revolving creditlitgcapproximate fair values due to their shorttordies.

Transactions with Affiliates
(@) Revenues

All revenues during the year ended December 312 29013, and 2014 were earned from Antero.
(b) Accounts receivable—affiliate, and Accounts dfe—affiliate

Accounts receivable—affiliate represents amoungsfdam Antero, primarily related to gathering
and compression services and other costs. Accpaytble—affiliate represents amounts due to Antero
for general and administrative and other costs.

(c) Accounts Payable, Accrued Expenses, and Accr@egbital Expenditures

All accounts payable, accrued liabilities and aedroapital expenditures balances are due to
unaffiliated parties. Prior to the IPO, all opengtiand capital expenditures were funded througitalap
contributions from Antero and borrowings undemitisistream credit facility. See Note 4 — Long-term
Debt. These balances were managed and paid undemfncash management program. Following the
IPO, we maintain our own bank accounts and sowtbkguidity and continue to utilize Antero's cash
management expertise.

(d) Allocation of Costs

The employees supporting our operations are emefogeAntero. Direct operating expenses
related to employees who support our operationgnaheded in direct operating expense. Direct ofpega
expense includes direct labor expenses from Arae#i.5 million for the year ended December 31,201
General and administrative expense charged oraéiddo us was $2.9 million, $23.1 million and $22.
million during the year

F-12






Table of Contents

(4)

ANTERO MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LP
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)

Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2013, and 2014
ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respgctiMatse costs relate to: (i) various businesscesy
including payroll processing, accounts payable @ssing and facilities management, (ii) various ooafe
services, including legal, accounting, treasurfgrimation technology and human resources and
(iif) compensation, including equitybased compensation. These expenses are chargiéatatesl to us

based on the nature of the expenses and are aliblbased on a combination of our proportionateesbfr
Antero’s gross property and equipment, capital egfiares and direct labor costs, as applicable.

Our general and administrative expenses includéyehased compensation costs allocated by
Antero. See Note 5—Equity-based Compensation faerrdormation.

(e) Agreements
The Partnership has entered into various agreemathtsAntero, as summarized below.

Gathering and Compression

Pursuant to our 28year gathering and compression agreement, Anteradpeeed to dedicate all
of its current and future acreage in West Virgit@hijo and Pennsylvania to us (other than the exjsti
third —party commitments). We also have an option to gathd compress natural gas produced by Antero

on any acreage it acquires in the future outsid&/est Virginia, Ohio and Pennsylvania on the saene$
and conditions. Under the gathering and compressjpeement, we receive a low pressure gatheringffee
$0.30 per Mcf, a high pressure gathering fee af&@er Mcf, a compression fee of $0.18 per Mcf, and

condensate gathering fee of $4.00 per Bbl, in eask subject to CRPbased adjustments. If and to the

extent Antero requests that we construct new higegure lines and compressor stations, the gathend
compression agreement contains minimum volume comenits that require Antero to utilize or pay for
75% and 70%, respectively, of the capacity of suml construction. Additional high pressure lined an
compressor stations installed on our own initiative not subject to such volume commitments. These
minimum volume commitments on new infrastructure iatended to support the stability of our cash
flows.

Services Agreement

Upon the closing of the IPO, we entered into aisesvagreement with Antero, pursuant to which
Antero agrees to provide customary operationalrmadagement services for us in exchange for
reimbursement of its direct expenses and an altotaf its indirect expenses attributable to thevigion
of such services to us. To the extent that thepereses are incurred by Antero on our behalf, wabarse
Antero for such expenses under the services agrdeme

Long -term Debt

(@) Midstream Credit Facility

Prior to the IPO on November 10, 2014, long-termtdepresented amounts outstanding under a
credit facility agreement between Midstream Oparatthen a wholly owned subsidiary of Antero and/no
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Partnership, dredlénders under Antero’s credit facility that were
incurred for the acquisition of the Predecessoathgring and compression assets (the “midstreaditcre
facility”). The facilities were ratably secured mortgages on substantially all of Antero’s and stidam
Operating’s properties and guarantees from Antatbits restricted subsidiaries. Commitments urtlisr
facility were allocated from the borrowing base aodhmitment levels under the Antero facility. retst
on the facility was payable at a variable
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rate based on LIBOR plus a margin ranging from %%0 2.50% or the prime rate plus a margin ranging
from 0.50% to 1.50%, based on an election at the tf borrowing and on the borrowing base
usage. Commitment fees on the unused portioneo€tddit facility were due quarterly at rates from
0.375% to 0.50% of the unused facility.

On November 10, 2014, in connection with the comigheof the IPO, the outstanding balance of
$510 million that related to gathering and compmesassets was repaid out of the proceeds of e IP
and this facility was assumed by Antero.

(b) Revolving Credit Facility

On November 10, 2014, in connection with the clgsifithe IPO, the Partnership entered into a
revolving credit facility with a syndicate of lende The revolving credit facility provides for lesd
commitments of $1.0 billion and for a letter ofditesublimit of $150 million. At December 31, 201e
had no of borrowings and no letters of credit @rtding under the revolving credit facility. The oéxing
credit facility will mature on November 10, 2019.

Principal amounts borrowed are payable on the ntptate with such borrowings bearing
interest that is payable quarterly. The Partnerkhia choice of borrowing in Eurodollars or atlihse
rate. Eurodollar loans bear interest at a rateapaum equal to the LIBOR Rate administered by the
Intercontinental Exchange (“ICE”) Benchmark Admtrégion for one, two, three, six or twelve months
plus an applicable margin ranging from 150 to 2a@8i® points, depending on the leverage ratio then i
effect. Base rate loans bear interest at a rataqparm equal to the greatest of (i) the agent lsank’
reference rate, (ii) the federal funds effectivie ydus 50 basis points and (iii) the rate for oranth
Eurodollar loans plus 100 basis points, plus ardiegigle margin ranging from 50 to 125 basis points,
depending on the leverage ratio then in effect.

The revolving credit facility is secured by mortgagn substantiall y all of our and our restricted
subsidiaries’ properties and guarantees from aitricted subsidiaries. The revolving credit fagilit
contains restrictive covenants that may limit obiliy to, among other things:

« incur additional indebtedness;

« sell assets;

- make loans to others;

« make investments;

« enterinto mergers;

« make certain restricted payments;
« incur liens; and

« engage in certain other transactions without tiar ponsent of the lenders.
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Borrowings under the revolving credit facility alsequire the Partnership to maintain the following
financial ratios:

« an interest coverage ratio, which is the ratichef Partnership’s consolidated EBITDA to its
consolidated current interest charges of at le&sta?1.0 at the end of each fiscal quarter;
provided that upon obtaining an investment gratiagathe borrower may elect not to be
subject to such ratic

« aconsolidated total leverage ratio, which is #it@rof consolidated debt to consolidated
EBITDA, of not more than 5.0 to 1.0 ; provided th#ter electing to issue unsecured high
yield notes, the consolidated total leverage natlbnot be more thai5.25 to 1.0, or,
following the election of the borrower for two fedaquarters after a material acquisition, 5.50
to 1.0; and

« if the Partnership elects to issue unsecured higld potes, a consolidated senior secured
leverage ratio, which is the ratio of consolidasedior secured debt to consolidated EBIT
of not more thai3.75 to 1.C.

(5) Equity- Based Compensation

Our general and administrative expenses includéyehased compensation costs allocated by
Antero to us for grants made pursuant to: (i) timtefo Resources Corporation Lorgierm Incentive Plan

(the “Antero LTIP”) (i) profits interests awardsiled in connection with the Antero reorganization
pursuant to its initial public offering of commotosk, which closed on October 16, 2013, and (i@ t

Midstream LTIP. Equity-based compensation expense allocated to us was $illion and $8.6 million

for the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2014ecteply. These expenses were allocated to us based
on our proportionate share of Antero’s direct labasts. We will be allocated a portion of approiaty
$104.8 million of unrecognized equity-based comp#na expense related to the Antero LTIP as of
December 31, 2014, approximately $37 million ofacognized equity-based compensation expense
related to profits interest awards as of Decemiie814, and approximately $66.7 million of
unrecognized equity-based compensation relatduetdtidstream LTIP as of December 31, 2014 that will
be recognized by Antero over the remaining serpigods of the awards.

Midstream LTIP

Our general partner manages our operations andtesiand employs the personnel who provide
support to our operations. In connection with tA®] our general partner adopted the Midstream LTIP,

pursuant to which noremployee directors of our general partner and icedfficers, employees and

consultants of our general partner and its afékeadre eligible to receive awards. On NovembeP 024,
the Partnership granted approximately 20,000 msttiunits and 2,361,440 phantom units under the
Midstream LTIP to Antero’s employees and officelhe restricted units and phantom units vest stiltgec
the satisfaction of service requirements, uporctimapletion of which common units in the Partnersinp
delivered to the holder of the restricted unitplbantom units. Compensation related to each resdrignit
and phantom unit award is recognized on a strdigatbasis over the requisite service period ofahtre
award. The grant date fair values of these awarelsletermined based on the closing price of the
Partnership’s common units on the date of granés€tunits are accounted for as if they are did&ibu
from us to Antero. Antero recognizes compensatiqrease for the units awarded to its employees and a
portion of that expense is allocated to us. Antdlacates equity-based compensation expense tasgslb
our proportionate share of Antero’s direct labostsoOur portion of the equity-based compensation
expense is included in general administrative espsn
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A summary of restricted unit and phantom unit awacdtivity during the year ended December
31, 2014 is as follows:

Weighted

average Aggregate
Number of grant date intrinsic value
units fair value (in thousands)
Total awarded and unvested, December 31, : — 3 — 3 —
Granted 2,381,44C $ 29.00 $ —
Vested — & — % —
Forfeited — 3 — % —
Total awarded and unves—December 31, 201 2,381,44C ¢ 29.00 $ 65,490

Intrinsic values are based on the closing pricenefPartnership’s common units on the referenced
dates. Unamortized expense of $66.7 million atdbdwer 31, 2014 is expected to be recognized over a
weighted average period of approximately 3.8 yaarsour proportionate share will be allocated tasi
is recognized.

(6) Partnership Equity and Distributions
Our Minimum Quarterly Distribution

Our partnership agreement provides for a minimuartguly distribution of $0.17 per unit for
each whole quarter, or $0.68 per unit on an anpelbasis. The payment of the full minimum quayterl
distribution on all of the common units and suboadéd units to be outstanding require us to hask ca
available for dis tribution of approximately $26illian per quarter, or $ 105 million per year.

On February 2, 2015 , we announced the board e€idirs of our general partner had
declared a cash distribution of $0 .0943 per comarohfor the quarter ended December 31, 2014.
This amount represents the prorated minimum guwprdéstribution of $0.17 per unit, or $0.68 per
unit on an annualized basis.

The board of directors of our general partner fikgpted a policy pursuant to which distributions
for each quarter will be paid to the extent we hsw#icient cash after establishment of cash reseand
payment of fees and expenses, including paymerasrtgeneral partner and its affiliates. Our apiia
pay the minimum quarterly distribution is subjexwarious restrictions and other factors.

Our partnership agreement generally provides tieadistribute cash each quarter during the
subordination period in the following manner:

» first, to the holders of common units, until eadmenon unit has received the minimum quarterly
distribution of $0.1700 plus any arrearages fromrguarters

« second, to the holders of subordinated units, eatth subordinated unit has received the
minimum quarterly distribution of $0.1700; a

« third, to the holders of common units and subortdidaunits pro rata until each has received a
distribution 0f$0.1955.
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If cash distributions to our unitholders exceedl$85 per common unit and subordinated unit in

any quarter, our unitholders and our general pgrasethe holder of our incentive distribution tiglh
(“IDRs"), will receive distributions according tbe following percentage allocations:

Marginal Percentage
Interest in
Distributions

General Partner

Total Quarterly Distribution (as holder of
Target Amount Unitholders IDRs)
above$0.1955up t0$0.2125 85% 15%
above$0.2125up t0$0.255C 75% 25%
above$0.2550 50 % 50%

Subordinated Units

Antero owns all of our subordinated units. The gipal difference between our common units
and subordinated units is that, for any quarteinduthe subordination period, holders of the subwid
units are not entitled to receive any distributicm operating surplus until the common units have
received the minimum quarterly distribution fromeogting surplus for such quarter plus any arrearage
the payment of the minimum quarterly distributioonfi prior quarters. Subordinated units will notraec
arrearages. When the subordination period endsf #le subordinated units will convert into an alqu
number of common units.

To the extent we do not pay the minimum quarteidyrithution on our common units, our
common unitholders will not be entitled to recesueh arrearage payments in the future except dtiing
subordination period. To the extent we have casiilable for distribution from operating surplusany
future quarter during the subordination periodxness of the amount necessary to pay the minimum
quarterly distribution to holders of our commontanive will use this excess cash to pay any digtidb
arrearages on common units related to prior quatefore any cash distribution is made to holdérs o
subordinated units .

(7) Net Income Per Limited Partner Unit
Net Income Per Limited Partner Unit

The Partnership’s net income is allocated to theegd partner and limited partners, including

subordinated unitholders, in accordance with trespective ownership percentages, and when apfdicab

giving effect to incentive distributions paid tetgeneral partner. Basic and diluted net incomdiméed
partner unit is calculated by dividing limited peats’ interest in net income, less general paitramtive
distributions, by the weighted average number ¢$tamding limited partner units during the period.

We compute earnings per unit using the two-alasthod for master limited partnerships. The
two-class method requires that securities that tieetlefinition of a participating security be colesed
for inclusion in the computation of basic earnipgs unit. Under the two-class method, earningaupéris
calculated as if all of the earnings for the pengate distributed under the terms of the partnershi
agreement, regardless of whether the general pdrasediscretion over the amount of distributiambé
made in any particular period, whether those egemould actually be distributed during a particula
period from an economic or practical perspective, o
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whether the general partner has other legal oractuial limitations on its ability to pay distribons that
would prevent it from distributing all of the eangs for a particular period.

We calculate net income available to limited parrigased on the distributions pertaining to the
current period’s net income. After adjusting foe #ippropriate period’s distributions, the remaining
undistributed earnings or excess distributions @anings, if any, are allocated to the generahpamand
limited partners in accordance with the contracteahs of the partnership agreement under the tessc
method.

Basic earnings per unit is computed by dividingesaings attributable to unitholders by the
weighted average number of units outstanding dugamch period. However, because our IPO was
completed on November 10, 2014, the number of isstsed following the IPO is utilized for the 2014
periods presented. Diluted net income per limitadnger unit reflects the potential dilution thautsoccur
if securities or agreements to issue common uslish as awards under the long-term incentive plane
exercised, settled or converted into common uWisen it is determined that potential common units
resulting from an award subject to performance arket conditions should be included in the diluted
income per limited partner unit calculation, thepamt is reflected by applying the treasury stockihmme.
Diluted earnings per unit reflects the potentiditittn of common equivalent units that could ocigur
equity participation units are converted into commaits.

The following table illustrates the Partnershipédcalation of net income per common and
subordinated unit for the periods indicated:

November 10, 2014 to December 31, 20

Limited
Limited partner's
) General partners' subordinated
In thousands except per unit amount: partner common units units Total
Basic and diluted earnings per ul
Earnings:
Distribution declare( t [J $ — % 7,161 $ 7,161 $ 14,322
Distributions in excess of earnin — (3,450 (3,450 (6,900
Total earning $ — 3 3,711 $ 3,711 $ 7,422

Weighted average units outstandi

Basic and dilutes — 75,941 75,941 151,882
Net income attributable to Antero Midstream Pars
LP subsequent to IPO per limited partner |

Basic and diluted

Total earnings per un $ — 3 0.05 $ 0.05

1)

On February 2, 2015, we announced the boadireftors of our general partner had declaredaatgrly cash
distribution of $0.0943 per unit, totaling approxitely $ 14 million. The quarterly cash distributifom the period
November 10, 2014 to December 31, 2014 was cadmlikzs a minimum quarterly distribution of $0.17@® pnit
prorated for the period subsequent to the IPO.di$teibution is payable on February 27, 2015 tahaiders of recor:
on February 13, 201.
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(8) Commitments and Contingencies

Environmental Obligations

We are subject to federal, state and local reguriatiegarding air and water quality, hazardous
and solid waste disposal and other environmentéiensa We believe there are currently no such mstte
that will have a material adverse effect on ouulteof operations, cash flows or financial positio

(9) Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

Our quarterly financial information for the yearsdded December 31, 2013 and 2014 is as

follows:
First Second Third Forth
guarter guarter guarter guarter

Year ended December 31, 2C

Total operating revenut $ 1,953% 3,539% 7,138% 9,733

Total operating expens 2,984 4,300 5,726 23,539

Operating income (los: (1,031 (761 1,412 (13,806

Net income (loss (1,050 (805; 1,369 (13,846
Year ended December 31, 2C

Total operating revenut $ 11,773 16,923% 26,282% 40,768

Total operating expens 10,825 16,632 19,270 27,567

Operating income (los! 948 291 7,012 13,201

Net income (loss 774 (735 5,079 11,714
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Exhibit 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF ANTERO MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LP

Name of Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Organization
Antero Midstream LLC Delaware




Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors and Unitholders
Antero Midstream Partners LP :

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrégistration statement (No. 333-200111 ) on For® S
Antero Midstream Partners LP of our report datedréary 25, 2015, with respect to the consolidataldrice
sheets of Antero Midstream Partners LP its accagriredecessor as of December 31, 2013 and 20d4han
related consolidated statements of operations amgprehensive income (loss), partners’ capital, eash
flows for each of the years in the three-year meeoded December 31, 2014 , which report appeatisei
December 31, 2014 annual report on Form 10-K dEAnMidstream Partners LP .

/sl KPMG LLP
Denver, Colorado
February 25, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) AND RULE 15D-14(A)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Paul M. Rady, Chairman and Chief Executive Gffiof Antero Midstream Partners LP , certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1GeKthe year ended December 31, 2014 of Antero
Midstream Partners LP (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or amit
state a material fact necessary to make the statsmeade, in light of the circumstances under whkioth
statements were made, not misleading with respeatietperiod covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash flofvthe
registrant as of, and for, the periods presentedisnreport;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdRAitds 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registaaait
have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensuterthterial information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madevkm to us by others within those entities, paraciyl
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed; and

b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presented i
this report our conclusions about the effectiversdésghe disclosure controls and procedures, akeof t
end of the period covered by this report basedush svaluation; and

c. Disclosed in this report any change in thestegint’s internal control over financial reportitiat
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgerter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartettie
case of an annual report) that has materially tdtecr is reasonably likely to materially affettie
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’'s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons perfogithe equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyadversely affect the registrant’s ability to regord
process, summarize and report financial informatiord

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal casitover financial reporting.

Date:February 25, 201

/s/ Paul M. Rad)

Paul M. Rady
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) AND RULE 15D-14(A)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Glen C. Warren, Jr., President and Chief Finaln@ifficer of Antero Midstream Partners LP , certifat:

1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1FeKthe year ended December 31, 201 4 of Antero
Midstream Partners LP (the “registrant”);

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiordny untrue statement of a material fact or émit
state a material fact necessary to make the statsmeade, in light of the circumstances under wkioth
statements were made, not misleading with respetietperiod covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash flofvthe
registrant as of, and for, the periods presentédisnreport;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdRAitds 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registazat
have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedures

to be designed under our supervision, to ensutarihgerial information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madeviam to us by others within those entities, particiyl
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed; and

b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presented i
this report our conclusions about the effectiversdésghe disclosure controls and procedures, akeof t
end of the period covered by this report baseduch svaluation; and

c. Disclosed in this report any change in thestegint’s internal control over financial reportitiat
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgerter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartettie
case of an annual report) that has materially sdtbr is reasonably likely to materially affettie
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’'s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons perfogithe equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyadversely affect the registrant’s ability to regord
process, summarize and report financial informatiord

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal casitover financial reporting.

Date:February 25, 201

/s/ Glen C. Warren, J

Glen C. Warren, J
Chief Financial Officel



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
OF ANTERO MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LP
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with this Annual Report on Form 10eKAntero Midstream Partners LP for the year ended
December 31, 2014 , |, Paul M. Rady, Chief Exeeu@fficer of Antero Midstream Partners LP , hereby
certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as @stbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxtyoAA
2002, that to my knowledge:

1.  This Annual Report on Form 10- K for the yeades December 31, 2014 fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S&esrExchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in this Annual RepmrtForm 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2014
fairly presents, in all material respects, thefficial condition and results of operations of Antero
Midstream Partners LP for the periods presentegtitie

Date:February 25, 201

s/ Paul M. Rad!

Paul M. Rady
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
OF ANTERO MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LP
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with this Annual Report on Form 10eKAntero Midstream Partners LP for the year ended
December 31, 2014 , |, Glen C. Warren, Jr., Chieéikcial Officer of Antero Midstream Partners LiRereby
certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as @stbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxtyoAA
2002, that to my knowledge:

1. This Annual Report on Form 10- K for the yeadet December 31, 2014 fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S&esrExchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in this Annual RepmrtForm 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2014
fairly presents, in all material respects, thefficial condition and results of operations of Antero
Midstream Partners LP for the periods presentectine

Date:February 25, 201

/s/ Glen C. Warren, J
Glen C. Warren, J
Chief Financial Office




